
   

 
 

 

Nottingham City Council 

Planning Committee 

 
Date: Wednesday, 22 September 2021 
 
Time:  2.30 pm 
 
Place: Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, 

NG2 3NG 
 
Please see information at the bottom of this agenda front sheet about arrangements for 
ensuring Covid-safety. 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 
 

 
Director for Legal and Governance 
 
Governance Officer: Kate Morris     Direct Dial: 0115 8764353 
 

   
1  Apologies for Absence  

 
 

2  Declarations of Interests  
 

 

3  Minutes  
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 18 August 2021  
 

3 - 6 

4  Planning Applications: Reports of the Director of Planning and 
Regeneration  
 

 

a   King Edward Court King Edward Street Nottingham  
 

7 - 42 

b   
 
c 

3 Triumph Road Nottingham  
 
Site Of 135-137 Lower Parliament Street Nottingham 
Please note - An incorrect version of this report was uploaded to the 
original agenda. It has been replaced with the correct version of the 
report and published within a supplement agenda  
 

43 - 54 

d   248-262  Huntingdon Street Nottingham NG1 3NB  
 

55 - 80 

e   The Island Quarter - Phase 2  Nottingham Evelyn Street  NG2 4LA  
 

81 - 108 

Public Document Pack



f   Val Roberts House  25 Gregory Boulevard Nottingham NG7 6NX  
 

109 - 124 

 

If you need any advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please contact 
the Governance Officer shown above, if possible before the day of the meeting  
 

Citizens attending meetings are asked to arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of the 
meeting to be issued with visitor badges 
 
Citizens are advised that this meeting may be recorded by members of the public. Any 
recording or reporting on this meeting should take place in accordance with the Council’s 
policy on recording and reporting on public meetings, which is available at 
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk. Individuals intending to record the meeting are asked to notify 
the Governance Officer shown above in advance. 
 
In order to hold this meeting in as Covid-safe way as possible, all attendees are: 

 asked to maintain a sensible level of social distancing from others as far as 

practically possible when moving around the building and when entering and 

leaving the meeting room.  As far as possible, please remain seated and maintain 

distancing between seats throughout the meeting.   

 strongly encouraged to wear a face covering when entering and leaving the meeting 

room and throughout the meeting, unless you need to remove it while speaking to 

enable others to hear you.  This does not apply to anyone exempt from wearing a 

face covering. 

 make use of the hand sanitiser available and, when moving about the building 

follow signs about traffic flows, lift capacities etc 

 



1 

Nottingham City Council  
 
Planning Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held at Loxley House, Station Street, NG2 3NG, on 18 
August 2021 from 2.30 pm - 3.28 pm 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Graham Chapman (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Kevin Clarke 
Councillor Maria Joannou 
Councillor Angela Kandola 
Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan 
Councillor Sally Longford 
Councillor Mohammed Saghir 
Councillor Wendy Smith 

Councillor Leslie Ayoola 
Councillor Michael Edwards 
Councillor Pavlos Kotsonis 
Councillor AJ Matsiko 
Councillor Toby Neal 
Councillor Ethan Radford 
Councillor Cate Woodward 
 

 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
Ann Barrett - Team Leader, Legal Services 
Lisa Guest - Principal Officer, Highway Development Management 
Mark Leavesley ) Governance Officer 
Emma Powley ) 
Dave Liversidge - Ward Councillor for St Ann’s 
Martin Poole - Area Planning Manager 
Paul Seddon - Director of Planning and Regeneration 
Nigel Turpin - Team Leader, Planning Services 
 
 
17  Chair 

 
In the absence of Councillor Edwards, the meeting was Chaired by Councillor 
Chapman (Vice-Chair). 
 
18  Apologies for absence 

 
Councillor Ayoola ) other Council business 
Councillor Matsiko ) 
 
Councillor Edwards )  
Councillor Neal ) personal 
Councillor Radford ) 
 
19  Declarations of interests 

 
None. 
 
20  Minutes 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 2021 were agreed as a correct record 
and were signed by the Chair presiding at the meeting. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Planning Committee - 18.08.21 

2 

21  Bendigo Building, Brook Street, Nottingham, NG1 1AR 
 

Prior to the Committee’s consideration of this item, and with the permission of the 
Chair presiding, Councillor Dave Liversidge, in his role as a St Ann’s Ward 
Councillor, addressed the Committee and stated the following: 
 
i. the application site is in the 5th most deprived area in the City. The height of the 

proposed building means it will over-shadow the St Mary’s Rest Garden, making 
a popular open space for the community less welcoming; 
 

ii. the proposal for student accommodation will have an impact on the locality as it 
will mean that 50% of the city’s student population will be accommodated within 
the area; impacting on community balance and feel; 
 

iii. due to the potential for more home-learning as a result of the pandemic 
potentially creating a drop in student numbers requiring accommodation, was the 
design adaptable and able to be easily changed to create family accommodation 
instead?; 
 

iv. the design is poor, being monolithic, and is not in keeping with the history of the 
area or the character of the Conservation Area; 
 

v. as the Council is currently consulting on a Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD) for the East Side, consideration of this proposal should be deferred until 
the SPD has been adopted. 
 

Martin Poole, Area Planning Manager, introduced application number 
21/00968/PFUL3 for planning permission by Planning and Design Group (UK) 
Limited on behalf of GR No25 Limited for demolition of the existing building, and 
development of a purpose-built student accommodation (up to thirteen storeys) with 
ground floor commercial units and car and cycle parking. 
 
The application was brought to Committee because it is major application for a 
prominent site with important design and heritage considerations, which has 
generated significant public interest. 
 
Further to the report, and in response to questions from members, the following 
points were discussed: 
 
i. the proposal is to demolish all buildings on site and replace with a building which 

is of a substantially similar scale and mass to one which was previously granted 
on appeal and where the inspector found that any overshadowing caused would 
be acceptable. The shadow-impact of the building on St Mary’s Rest Garden will 
vary depending on the season - during summer months when the sun is high, 
there will be minimal shadow, but during winter months the shadows will be 
longer so have a greater impact, although this is still considered acceptable in a 
city environment and in light of the previous findings of the Planning Inspector; 
 

ii. the detailing of the proposed building was different from that previously approved 
on appeal and was still a ‘work in progress’. The proposal contains more glass 
than brick and the best materials possible will be secured through conditions in 
the decision notice; 
 

Page 4



Planning Committee - 18.08.21 

3 

iii. members of the Committee were generally unhappy with the design and detailing 
of the building, finding it uninspiring, unattractive and box like. They appreciated 
however that improvements had been achieved in recent weeks. The addition of 
arches at the top of the building had softened the massing and the possible 
addition of other design features suggested by members will be discussed with 
the applicant, including: 
 

 brick colours and possible brick in-lays; 

 more arches; 

 flue design; 

 changes to all entrances to the building to make it more prominent; 
 

iv. the Supplementary Planning Document is currently out for consultation and is 
subject to a statutory adoption process which needs to be followed. It is 
anticipated that the adoption process will be completed within the next 12 
months; 
 

v. all appropriate planning applications now include a condition requiring that 
energy and sustainability measures requested are implemented, fully operational 
and signed-off by the authority prior to occupation of the development. 

 
Resolved that 
 
(1) the proposal be approved in principle but be delegated to the Director of 

Planning and Regeneration to determine subject to: 
 

(i) satisfactory amendments to detailing and materials being negotiated; 
 
(ii) conditions substantially in the form of the indicative conditions listed 

in the draft decision notice at the end of the report; 
 
(iii) prior completion of a Section 106 planning obligation to secure the 

following: 
 

(a) an off-site Open Space contribution of £713,452; 
(b) local employment and training benefits, including opportunities 

in the construction phase of development, together with payment 
of a financial contribution of £103,460 towards employment and 
training; 

(c) a student management plan and restrictions on keeping private 
vehicles; 

 
(subject to the Director being satisfied that Regulation 122(2) 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 is complied 
with, in that the planning obligations sought are (a) necessary to 
make the development acceptable in planning terms, (b) directly 
related to the development and (c) fairly and reasonably related in 

scale and kind to the development); 

 
(2) power to determine the final details of both the terms of the Planning 

Obligation and the conditions of planning permission be delegated to the 
Director for Planning and Regeneration; 

Page 5



Planning Committee - 18.08.21 

4 

 
(3) the Director for Planning and Regeneration be requested to compare, in 

light of the recent pandemic, actual student numbers in the City with the 
expected numbers in the Council’s Student Policy, and inform members 
of this Committee of his findings. 

 
22  102 Palm Street, Nottingham, NG7 7HS 

 
Martin Poole, Area Planning Manager, introduced application number 
20/02769/PFUL3 for planning permission by Mr Oliver Cammell, Hockley 
Developments Limited, on behalf of Mr Alan Forsythe for conversion of a temple (Use 
Class F1) to fifteen flats, and external alterations. 
 
The application was brought to Committee because due to viability issues it is 
recommended for approval with planning obligations that are substantially less than 
typically required by planning policies. 
 
Mr Poole confirmed that the applicant’s viability appraisal had been independently 
assessed and that the development was not viable if the policy compliant planning 
obligations of £125,096 were to be sought. The development could however provide 
approximately £30,000 of obligations, as per the recommendation in the report. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) to grant planning permission subject to: 
 

(i) the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in 
the draft decision notice at the end of the report; 

 
(ii) prior completion of a Section 106 planning obligation to secure the 

following: 
 

(a) a financial contribution of £10,000 towards affordable housing; 
(b) a financial contribution of £20,096 towards open space 

improvement; 
 

(2) that power to determine the final details of both the terms of the Planning 
Obligation and the conditions of planning permission be delegated to the 
Director for Planning and Regeneration; 

 
(3) that the Committee were satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community 

Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning 
obligations sought are (a) necessary to make the development acceptable 
in planning terms, (b) directly related to the development and (c) fairly and 
reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

 

Page 6



 
 
Wards Affected: St Anns Item No:  
 

Planning Committee 
22nd September 2021 

 
Report of Director of Planning and Regeneration 
 
King Edward Court, King Edward Street 
 
1 Summary 
 
Application No: 21/01033/PFUL3 for planning permission 

 
Application by: Pearce Planning Ltd on behalf of Fusion Nottingham Devco 

Limited 
 

Proposal: Full Application for demolition of existing offices onto King Edward 
Street, Glasshouse Street and Kent Street, and new build Purpose 
Built Student Accommodation of up to 8 storeys, with communal 
facilities and associated works. Outline Application for demolition 
of existing offices onto Huntingdon Street and King Edward Street 
and new build residential apartments (Class C3) of up to 8 storeys, 
with ground floor offices and retail (Class E) and associated works. 
(Hybrid Planning Application). 

 
The application is brought to Committee because it is a major application for a prominent 
site with important design and heritage considerations. 
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should have been determined 
by 9th August 2021 
 
 
2.1 To GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION for the reasons set out in this report, subject 

to: 
 

(i) the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in the draft 
decision notice at the end of this report;  

 
(ii) prior completion of a Section 106 planning obligation,: 

 
arising from the proposed purpose built student accommodation element of 

 the proposed development to secure: 
 
(a) an off-site Open Space contribution of £569,112; 
(b) a student management plan and restrictions on keeping private vehicles  
(c) local employment and training benefits including opportunities in the 

construction phase of development together with payment of a financial 
contribution of £70,382.40 towards local employment and training  

  
and arising from the proposed new build residential apartments element of 
the proposed development to secure: 
 
(d) an off-site Open Space financial contribution of £145,628; 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4a



 
(e) on-site affordable housing provision of 18 new build residential 

apartments (20% of the total number of proposed apartments), with the 
mix to be a 50/50 split between social rented units and shared ownership 
units. 

(f)  local employment and training benefits including opportunities in the 
construction phase of development together with payment of a financial 
contribution of £47,806 towards local employment and training  
 

2.2 Power to determine the final details of both the terms of the Planning 
Obligation and the conditions of planning permission to be delegated to the Director 
of Planning and Regeneration. 

 
2.3 That Committee are satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community Infrastructure Levy 

Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning obligations sought are (a) 
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, (b) directly 
related to the development and (c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to 
the development. 
 

3 Background 
 
3.1 The application site is a whole city block, bounded by King Edward Street, 

Huntingdon Street, Rick Street and Glasshouse Street. The site is currently 
occupied by a perimeter block of two and three storey office buildings in red brick 
and with pitched roofs. The buildings were constructed in two phases in the mid 
1980’s. There is a vehicle and pedestrian access off King Edward Street and the 
central area of the layout is predominantly used for car parking. 

 
3.2 Other than the planning permissions for the development of the current buildings, 

the planning history of the application site is limited to minor alterations that are of 
no relevance to the proposed redevelopment of the site. 

 
3.3 Adjacent to the site lies the Lace Market Conservation Area and a number of listed 

buildings and non-designated local list heritage assets. 
 
4 Details of the proposal 
 
4.1 The application concerns a hybrid planning application, which seeks full planning 

permission for part of the site and outline planning permission for another part of 
the same site. In total, the application proposes the redevelopment of the entire city 
block between Glasshouse Street and Huntingdon Street, and between King 
Edward Street and Rick Street. Demolition and redevelopment is proposed in two 
phases. 

 
4.2 The first phase of redevelopment (for which full planning permission is sought) 

would be the demolition of the existing offices buildings onto King Edward Street, 
Glasshouse Street, and Kent Street and the new development of a Purpose Built 
Student Accommodation (PBSA) buildings of up to 8 storeys, with communal 
facilities and associated works. There would be two buildings to this first phase, the 
larger building having primary elevations to the three streets and also an elevation 
onto a new public pedestrian route that would be created between King Edward 
Street and Rick Street. The completed perimeter building would then have an 
enclosed central courtyard space. The second element to this PBSA proposal 
would be a smaller independent building with a primary elevation onto Rick Street 
and with a side elevation onto the new public pedestrian route at this point. 

Page 8



 
Combined, these two buildings would provide a total of 552 student bedrooms in a 
range of accommodation types, including cluster flats and studios. The primary 
entrance and reception to the larger building would be located at the curved corner 
being formed at the junction of King Edward Street with Glasshouse Street. There 
would be a second entrance and reception onto the new public pedestrian route. 
Ground floor student facilities would extend across the frontages of the building 
onto the streets, including a range of social, study and recreational spaces (gym, 
basketball court, events space). Cycle stores, bin stores, and plant rooms are also 
located at various points. 

 
4.3 The second phase of redevelopment (for which outline planning permission is 

sought) would be the demolition of the existing office building onto Huntingdon 
Street and the new development of residential apartments (Class C3) of up to 8 
storeys, with ground floor offices and retail (Class E) and associated works. The 
application for this element of the proposed development is for outline planning 
permission and whilst details of the design and appearance of the proposed 
building are indicated within the submitted document, other than means of access 
and the setting of parameters of overall scale and mass, the submission for this 
second phase reserves matters of layout, appearance and landscaping for future 
consideration. The submission does however indicate that this phase of 
development would be capable of providing a mix of 52 one-bed, 31 two-bed, and 6 
three-bed apartments (total 89) and with a ground floor offices and retail space of 
608 sq.m. This element of the proposal has been recently amended to reduce the 
height of the proposed building from an initial 9 storeys to 8 storeys. 

 
4.4 The proposed buildings are designed with active ground floor elevations, with 

regular patterns of fenestration above and with flat roofs. Some elements of the 
design have set back top floors. The buildings would be constructed predominantly 
in brick, with a range of red through to buff colours being used to introduce breaks 
in the appearance of these larger blocks. The indicated palette focusses on the use 
of a red brick to the corner of King Edward Street with Glasshouse Street at the 
main entrance to the student accommodation. The palette then varies to a 
predominantly lighter buff brick onto Rick Street, being a narrower street, before 
reverting back to a red brick on the indicative appearance of the residential 
apartments building onto Huntingdon Street. 
  

5 Consultations and observations of other officers 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 
A total of 568 individual notification letters have been sent to neighbouring 
properties, including: 
 
The Litmus Building, Huntingdon Street (all apartments) 
Avalon Court, Kent Street (all apartments) 
Bloomsbury Court, Beck Street (all apartments) 
2 Clare Street (all apartments) 
1 Glasshouse Street (all apartments) 
9 - 13 Glasshouse Street (all apartments) 
201, 203, 282 - 284, 286 - 288, 290, 310 Huntingdon Street 
278  - 280 Huntingdon Street (all addresses) 
Ground Floor, Huntingdon House, Huntingdon Street 
Pryzm Lower Parliament Street 
22A, 24, 26, 28, 43 - 55, 30 - 34, 38, 50 Lower Parliament Street 

Page 9



 
1A - E, 2, 3A - E King Edward Court 
William Booth Memorial Hall, King Edward Street 
45A - C Broad Street 
38, 40 George Street 
Units 1 - 5 Victoria Court 
 
The application has also been publicised by site and press notices. A total of 6 
citizen responses have been received, all being from residents of The Litmus 
Building that is opposite the application site on Huntingdon Street. The responses 
are all objections to the proposed development on the following grounds: 
 

1. Unreasonable density of development with two tall buildings opposite each other. 
2. Loss of light/sunlight and overshadowing impact, especially for tenants living on 

lower levels. 
3. Overlooking/loss of privacy due to height and proximity, including views into 

swimming pool within the Litmus Building. 
4. Loss of view from the Litmus Building towards the city centre. 
5. Increased traffic generation and air pollution. 
6. Construction noise, air pollution and disturbance. 

 
Councillor Liversidge: Objection to yet another high rise block in an area that is 
becoming dense with them. This one will allow residents to overlook other people 
particularly in the Litmus building both flats and its swimming pool.  
 
Nottingham Civic Society: Objects to the height of the proposed building fronting 
Huntingdon Street because the scale of Phase 2, at nine storeys, would overwhelm 
the two and three-storied 1930s buildings including the Grade II listed former 
Barton's Bus Garage (No.270-276 Huntingdon Street) and two buildings on 
Nottingham's Local List (Nos. 278-290 Huntingdon Street adjacent to the 
application site and No. 268 Huntingdon Street). The Design and Access Statement 
does not adequately address this height disparity with its dominating impact and 
there appear to be no scaled elevations showing the relationship between the 
proposed building and its historic neighbours. The perspective view looking south 
down Huntingdon Street is too distant to illustrate the harmful effect. The height of 
the Phase 2 building should be stepped down somewhat in Huntingdon Street to 
acknowledge this important group of twentieth-century buildings. 
 
It is regrettable that the height of the development at Glasshouse Street would also 
result in the loss of the view of the Council House Dome on the skyline in longer 
views from King Edward Street. The proliferation of taller blocks in this vicinity of 
Eastside, is contributing to the unfortunate impression that cherished views of the 
city centre's civic landmarks are no longer worth safeguarding. View 01 from St 
Ann's Well Road demonstrates this unfortunate effect.  
 
The Salvation Army: Are the owners of the William Booth Memorial Halls situated 
adjacent to the proposed development and generally accept proposals to 
regenerate and redevelop sites within the vicinity. This application and two 
additional proposals for student accommodation could lead to a complete change in 
dynamic of the populace in the immediate vicinity of the Salvation Army, now 
granted Grade II listed building status. The Salvation Army can provide support for 
students from its facilities, but the existing facilities will require re-modelling to 
achieve suitable multi-use space. To this end, there will be a requirement for funds, 
and it is hoped that community contributions by developers will be forthcoming to 
complement their respective developments. The Salvation Army sees an 

Page 10



 
opportunity to have an on-site presence within the proposed building. Anticipate 
further pressure on car parking and any solution should provide for an allocation of 
spaces for the use of attendees at WBMH.  

 
Additional consultation letters sent to: 
 
Planning Policy Team: No objection. The provision of further good quality PBSA in 
the City Centre is likely to attract students that would otherwise occupy houses of 
multiple occupation outside of the city centre freeing up such accommodation for 
families. The scheme would in principle help to deliver an important element of the 
Council’s housing policy, including a long term aim to promote high quality PBSA at 
the right locations. This can address the shortage of PBSA provision and not only 
help to meet the housing needs of a growing student population, and reduce the 
demand on the City’s existing housing stock, but also have a broader role to play in 
facilitating redevelopment of key sites within the City Centre adding further vitality 
and viability and hopefully assist in rebalancing communities currently with high 
concentrations of student occupation. 

 
Policy 5 of the ACS supports student accommodation in the City Centre in order to 
diversify the profile and mix of City Centre housing, where appropriate. Policy HO5 
of the LAPP sets out suitable locations for additional PBSA accommodation and 
includes large parts of the City Centre, including the location of the application site.   

 
The applicant has submitted a Student Accommodation Needs Assessment with 
the planning application in which they contend that there is considerable absence of 
PBSA in the city. The Council’s recent PBSA vacancy survey for the 2020-21 
academic year, notes that the majority of PBSA providers (representing 84% of the 
total PBSA bedspaces) considered that the PBSA market will return to normal once 
the pandemic restrictions are fully lifted.  Previous results from the Council’s 
vacancy surveys have shown near full occupation across the PBSA market with 
less than 2% vacancies.   

 
The applicant has also confirmed that the proposed student accommodation has 
been set out such that it could be re-purposed as more general residential 
accommodation without the need for substantial renovation works.  The policy 
requirement for adaptability is therefore addressed.   

 
The Council is currently consulting on a Draft Supplementary Planning Document 
for the Eastside area, which this application falls within.  The aim of the SPD is to 
ensure a mix of good quality homes (which are not dominated by any one type of 
occupant) are provided alongside a vibrant mix of facilities. 

 
Given the existing high levels of concentration in the Eastside area, it is likely that 
further student housing has the potential to impact negatively on the character of 
the area, the local context and levels of amenity (as set out in Policies DE1 and 
DE2) and these factors will be important when assessing any proposals for further 
student accommodation in the Eastside area.  With this proposal consisting of a mix 
of uses including a large PBSA scheme, residential and office development it is 
considered that the proposal would comply with the emerging SPD.  Re-use of part 
of this site to accommodate student development to meet the Council’s wider 
aspirations can therefore be supported and there are no principle policy objections 
to the proposed development in this location. 

 

Page 11

http://documents.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/download/8996


 
City Archaeologist: No objection subject to conditions. A programme of 
archaeological works, initially consisting of an archaeological evaluation, should be 
required as a condition of planning permission. A second condition, requiring the 
submission of a foundation design which enables the preservation of the known 
cave (and any other unknown caves which may be encountered through ground 
investigations) should also be applied. 

 
The site lies just outside the medieval defences of Nottingham. However, it lies 
within an area of known medieval occupation, on the site of the Hospital of St John 
(which later became a House of Correction, and later still the site of Nottingham 
Prison). A cave is known to have existed within the site and there is no evidence 
that this was destroyed during the development of the Central Market. Indeed, the 
available evidence suggests it was preserved in situ. Excavations in the vicinity of 
this site (including those at 1-7 Glasshouse Street and 67 Lower Parliament Street) 
have demonstrated the survival of medieval archaeological remains even where 
truncated by cellars. The archaeological Desk Based Assessment, with 
incorporated caves assessment, submitted with the planning application 
demonstrates that there is potential for archaeological remains to exist within the 
boundary of the site. Although previous development of the site will have caused 
some disturbance to archaeological remains, the assessment concludes: ‘there is 
significant potential for the preservation of such remains, sometimes relatively close 
to the surface in some areas, notably in the central car parking area.’ 

 
This potential should be investigated through archaeological evaluation as an initial 
stage of a conditioned programme of archaeological works. The archaeological 
evaluation will investigate the character, condition and extent of any archaeological 
remains and will provide an evidence base to determine what further works may be 
required in advance of and/or during groundworks for the development.  

 
As part of the programme of archaeological works, it will be necessary to monitor 
ground investigations which aim to locate the cave. The archaeological Desk Based 
Assessment indicates that the applicant has given consideration to the cave (and 
the potential for further, unknown, caves), and this is welcomed. The assessment 
states that a scheme of ground investigations (specifically cave probing) will aim to 
locate the cave, enabling a construction design to be produced which avoids impact 
upon this heritage asset. The probing should be monitored by an archaeologist and 
the scope of the cave probing should be agreed with the City Archaeologist. 

 
A condition of planning permission should be a requirement for a foundation design 
to be drawn up following the ground investigations, with accompanying information 
from a structural engineer, which ensures the preservation of the known cave (and 
any previously unknown caves which may be encountered during investigations) 
which exist within the site boundary.  

 
Education: The mix of proposed apartments does not generates a significant 
demand for school places that can be accommodated within existing schools. 
Therefore no S106 education claim for this development. 
 
Environmental Health: No objection subject to conditions. Due to the Covid 
restriction on entertainment venues it has not been possible to undertake a noise 
survey of the representative noise levels at the site and the assessment is based 
on likely levels. The submitted report does acknowledge that noise related 
conditions can be included which will set appropriate criteria for the detailed design 
of the facades and ventilation strategy. 

Page 12



 
 

From EH experience the key noise source in additional to general road traffic noise 
is the noise associated with the Prysm night club. The actual noise break out from 
the premises has not, in the past, been significant.  However the noise particularly 
in the early hours of the morning associated with raised voices / shouting of 
customers entering & leaving the night club & on the surrounding streets, & taxis / 
mini cabs double & triple parked immediately outside the night club is significant. 
 
A retail unit in Use Class E could also operate as a restaurant without the need for 
permission for a change of use.  Therefore it would be advisable that retail units (& 
perhaps any commercial / office element – given the possibility of future changes of 
planning use) has provision for ventilation / extraction to roof level. 
 
Highways: No objections subject to comments and conditions. The development 
will require changes and alterations to the existing highway. The details for the 
design and suitability can be resolved through discussions and technical approval 
with Highways. Redundant cross-overs are to be reinstated to full height kerb 
around the perimeter. Accesses for vehicular use are to have a pedestrian priority 
treatment with a crossover vehicle design. The applicant is strongly advised to 
place a demountable barrier to the access off Kent Street to control a no vehicle 
movement access at all times excepting those agreed with Highways (e.g. drop 
off/collection at start and end of terms). Demolition will require suspension of 
restrictions in the area, such as parking bays and bus lanes. All Highways licences 
will need approval. 
 
The applicant’s proposals for deliveries as well as for waste collection require 
further details require some extra thought and additional information. A condition on 
these details and the control of vehicles within the courtyard as well as managing 
access is to be strongly advised. Details of waste management for the future 
residential and commercial units will also be required. It is noted that the applicant 
is proposing to have NCC residential waste collection off an unadopted private 
courtyard. The applicant is to obtain written permissions from the Head of Waste 
Services, that this arrangement has been discussed and agreed with NCC. 
 
Pay and display bays will be affected by the development and the applicant is to 
fund all investigations and relevant changes required to ensure on street parking is 
maintained. 
 
Biodiversity: No objection subject to conditions. A further Bat Survey Addendum 
Report has been provided that notes bats are present on the site and that works will 
therefore require a licence from Natural England. A condition requiring a method 
statement detailing the approach to the demolition of the existing buildings with 
regard to the recorded presence of bats is recommended. A mitigation and 
enhancement condition is also recommended for bat and swift boxes to be included 
on the development with locations and specifications to be provided. Clearance of 
any vegetation required should be timed to occur outside of the bird breeding 
season (core breeding season is March – August inclusive) wherever possible to 
avoid impact on active nests. Where this is not possible, vegetation clearance 
should be preceded by a check for nesting birds by a suitably experienced 
ecologist. Also recommend a condition to require the submission of a landscape 
plan and species list which focuses on native species or ornamental species with 
high ecological value such as fruiting species for birds. 

 

Page 13



 
Drainage: No objection subject to conditions. Attenuation and flow control have 
been proposed to manage surface water, achieving a 30%> betterment. However, 
would like to see SuDS explored further, utilising the proposed landscaping design. 
For example, where trees are proposed, these should be SuDS tree pits to 
maximise storage capacity and to improve longevity of the tree and maximise their 
benefits. Furthermore, where flat roofing is proposed, there is an opportunity for 
green roofing to be integrated.  

 
At this stage, the drainage strategy has been labelled as conceptual. Full and 
finalised details should be submitted to the team, especially if any changes are to 
be made to the key concepts. Some of the microdrainage calculations indicate flood 
risk that require further information. 

 
Design Review Panel: The proposed development was reviewed by the Panel on 
18 February 2021 at its pre-application stage, with the following overall conclusions. 
 
“The Panel’s overall view of the scheme is positive, commending it as a good 
example of a student accommodation model, and for the design consideration 
given to how the building can interact and activate the surrounding streets.  

 
The proposal picks up well on the importance of this prominent city facing corner 
and the need for a corner turning building. However, the architecture needs to work 
harder to relate more to the urban design of Nottingham’s heritage of corner turning 
buildings, by picking out the corner element and focussing on it more, rather than it 
blending into the rest of the building, which is also currently magnifying the 
appearance of the building’s scale. Importantly, the removal of the link is necessary 
to separate the blocks to help reduce massing, and introduce a physical break to 
create a central street, with entrances into both blocks off the new street, in order to 
make this a proper functioning space. The mix of ground floor uses below the 
residential works well, offering active frontages to the street. There is though more 
opportunity to improve the building’s relationship with Kent Street to enhance the 
context of the street and the public realm offer, with the possibility of the 
pedestrianisation of Kent Street. Finally, there is an important need for sustainability 
to permeate through the whole design of a building, and match Nottingham City’s 
commitment to sustainability.  

 
Overall, the scheme shows promise, but more work on refining the design is 
required.” 

 
6 Relevant policies and guidance 
 

Aligned Core Strategies 
 
Policy A: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
Policy 1: Climate Change 
Policy 5: Nottingham City Centre 
Policy 10: Design and Enhancing Local Identity 
Policy 11: The Historic Environment 
 
Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 
 
Policy CC1: Sustainable Design and Construction 
Policy CC3: Water 
Policy DE1: Building Design and Use 

Page 14



 
Policy EE4: Local Employment and Training Opportunities 
Policy EN2: Open Space in New Development 
Policy EN6: Biodiversity 
Policy HE1: Proposals Affecting Designated and Non-Designated Heritage Assets 
Policy HE2: Caves 
Policy HO3: Affordable Housing 
Policy HO5: Locations for Purpose Built Student Accommodation 
Policy HO6: Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and Purpose Built Student 
Accommodation 
Policy IN2: Land Contamination, Instability and Pollution 
Policy IN4: Developer Contributions 
Policy TR1: Parking and Travel Planning 
 
NPPF (2021): 

 
The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development 
and that applications for sustainable development should be approved where 
possible.  Paragraph 126 notes that the creation of high quality, beautiful and 
sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and 
development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make 
development acceptable to communities. 
  
Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should 
ensure that developments: 
 
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short 
term but over the lifetime of the development;  
 
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 
effective landscaping; 
 
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging 
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);  
 
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 
places to live, work and visit;  
 
e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate 
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and 
support local facilities and transport networks; and  
 
f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health 
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and 
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life 
or community cohesion and resilience. 
 
In determining applications that may affect heritage assets, paragraph 194 of the 
NPPF advises that local planning authorities should require an applicant to describe 
the significance of any heritage assets affected, including any contribution made by 
their setting. The level of detail should be proportionate to the assets’ importance 

Page 15



 
and no more than is sufficient to understand the potential impact of the proposal on 
their significance.  

 
Paragraph 197 of the NPPF then states that in determining applications, local 
planning authorities should take account of:  

a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets 
and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;  

b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to 
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and  

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local 
character and distinctiveness. 
 
• The Provision of Open Space Within New Residential and Commercial 

Developments Supplementary Guidance (2019) 
• Caves of Nottingham Supplementary Planning Document (2019) 
• City Centre Urban Design Guide (2009) 

 
7. Appraisal of proposed development 
 
 Main Issues 

 
(i) Student accommodation use and impact upon the amenity of neighbouring 

occupiers and the wider area. 
(ii) Scale, layout and design and impact upon the amenity of neighbouring 

occupiers and the wider area. 
(iii) Impact upon local focal points and heritage assets, including the character 

and appearance of the adjacent Lace Market Conservation Area and setting of 
listed buildings and non-designated local list heritage assets. 

 
Issue (i) Student accommodation use and impact upon the amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers and the wider area. (ACS Policy 5 and LAPP Policies 
HO5 and HO6) 

 
7.1 The application site is located in the city centre and within convenient walking 

distance of Nottingham Trent University campus (including Confetti on Lower 
Parliament Street/Huntingdon Street), and city centre amenities. Policy 5 of the 
ACS also supports city centre living initiatives including student housing where 
appropriate. 

 
7.2 Policy HO5 of the LAPP acknowledges that purpose built student accommodation 

of an appropriate scale and design will be encouraged within the City Centre 
boundary, subject to accordance with site and area specific policies. 

 
7.3 Policy HO6 of the LAPP states that planning permission will be granted for purpose 

built student accommodation where this does not undermine local objectives to 
create or maintain sustainable, inclusive and mixed communities. In assessing the 
development’s impact on local objectives to create or maintain sustainable, 
inclusive and mixed use communities, regard is to be given to a range of criteria 
including student concentration, but with exceptions being made for those sites 
within areas identified in Policy HO5 where new purpose built accommodation is to 
be encouraged. The application site, being within both the city centre, complies with 
this exception and is therefore considered to be appropriate in principle for this 

Page 16



 
development based on its location. Whilst other criteria form part of the detailed 
assessment it is therefore considered that the proposed development accords with 
Policy HO5 and HO6 of the LAPP. 

 
7.4 Notwithstanding the potential impacts of the Covid 19 pandemic upon the future 

demand for student accommodation, monitoring reports on the provision of student 
accommodation have consistently illustrated the need to maintain an on-going 
supply of additional bed spaces in order to meet increases in the number of 
students attending further and higher education courses within the city. The 
strategy to meet this on-going supply has been to focus upon the provision of high 
quality purpose built accommodation within the city centre and thereby to attract 
students that could otherwise occupy houses of multiple occupation outside of the 
city centre. 

 
7.5 The Policy team advise above that the response of the majority of PBSA providers 

to the Council’s recent PBSA vacancy survey consider that the PBSA market will 
return to normal once the pandemic restrictions are fully lifted. Previous results from 
the Council’s vacancy surveys have shown near full occupation across the PBSA 
market with less than 2% vacancies. 

 
7.6 The Policy response also notes that the Council is currently consulting on a Draft 

Supplementary Planning Document for the Eastside area, which includes the 
application site. This consultation document expresses a vision for balance in the 
types of development across the area and makes particular reference to the 
domination of student housing within the area and need for a wider mix of uses 
within developments, with the specific aim of ensuring a mix of good quality homes. 
In this context it is noted that the proposed development is a hybrid application with 
the second phase of works to include new build residential apartments (Class C3) 
and ground floor offices and retail (Class E) uses. 

 
7.7 Whilst the consultation draft status of the Supplementary Planning Document does 

not carry any significant planning weight, and the application is to be determined in 
accordance with the adopted ACS and LAPP policies, it is encouraging that the 
application proposes a genuine mix of uses, with the residential apartments 
element of the development also to include affordable housing in accordance with 
LAPP Policy HO3. As submitted, the proposed development is therefore considered 
to accord with the consultation draft of the emerging SPD. 

 
7.8 The layout and mix of studio and cluster flat accommodation within the proposed 

development is arranged with rooms either facing out onto the surrounding streets 
or into the courtyard amenity space that is created within the centre of the plan of 
the building. The floorspace standards within the proposed accommodation are 
considered to be good, and with internal and external communal amenity space 
being provided for use by all student residents. 

 
7.9 Whilst the potential for antisocial behaviour will always exist in student 

developments of the scale being proposed, a student management plan is a 
requirement of the S106 agreement. This will include a commitment for an operator 
to work proactively with the local community, including 24 hour on-site management 
and community liaison. It is also considered that such on-site management will be 
capable of ensuring responsible behaviour within the communal courtyard space to 
be provided within the scheme.  

 
 

Page 17

http://documents.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/download/8996


 
7.10 Restrictions on keeping private vehicles within the city will also be applied and has 

been a proven deterrent to the potential impact of car parking. It is therefore 
considered that appropriate student management measures will therefore minimise 
any impact of the student accommodation use on the local community in 
accordance with Policy HO6 of the LAPP. 

 
7.11 The applicant has submitted an example floor plan illustrating how the building 

could be adapted to residential flats in future in accordance with Policy HO6. The 
flats layout is confirmed to comply with the Nationally Described Space Standards 
for a range of flat sizes. 

 
7.12 Accordingly, it is considered that the proposed scheme complies with Local Plan 

policies and in particular Policy 5 of the ACS regarding the location of student 
accommodation development, as well as Policy HO5 and HO6 of the LAPP. 

 
Issue (ii) Scale, layout and design and impact upon the amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers and the wider area (ACS Policy 10 and LAPP Policy 
DE1). 

 
7.13 The concerns of neighbouring residents of The Litmus Building to the scale and 

relationship of the proposed residential apartments building onto Huntingdon are 
acknowledged and understood. The scale of the existing buildings at two and three 
storeys is generally lower than others in the area and therefore the proposed 
development can be expected to alter the relationship with its surrounding 
buildings. The number of storeys of the proposed building onto Huntingdon Street 
has now been reduced from nine to eight storeys, with the eighth storey being a 
setback top floor. The overall height of the building would be 25.7m. It is noted that 
this height includes a commercial height ground floor. 

 
7.14 Buildings of some scale are to be expected on sites within the city centre. In this 

particular instance the development site sits at the junction of Huntingdon Street 
with King Edward Street, with Huntingdon Street also being a wide primary traffic 
route to the east of the city centre. The general approach to scale for developments 
within the Eastside of the city centre is included within the City Centre Urban 
Design Guide (CCUDG), which indicates that ground plus six storeys could be 
acceptable as a maximum height (or 23m to eaves height), subject to full 
consideration of its context. The CCUDG also notes some scope for corner 
buildings to be taller to mark their position in the street scene. 

 
7.15 It is considered that the proposed building onto Huntingdon Street is now 

appropriate to its location and context. The width across Huntingdon Street would 
be approximately 24.5m, providing a good distance of separation between facades. 
The orientation of the street would also ensure that sunlight and daylight would 
reach the façade of The Litmus Building at periods of the day. Whilst it is 
acknowledged that the proposed development would limit sunlight and daylight at 
times in the afternoon, it is not considered that this loss would be significant to 
warrant a refusal of the proposed scale of development in the context of its position 
in the city centre. It would also be the case that at fourteen storeys high, The Litmus 
Building would remain the tallest and most prominent development at this point on 
Huntingdon Street. 

 
7.16 It is considered that the façade to façade distance between the proposed building 

onto Huntingdon Street and the façade of The Litmus Building would not 
significantly prejudice the privacy of residents. It is also noted that the glazing to the 

Page 18



 
swimming pool within The Litmus Building already has privacy film to most of its 
height onto Huntingdon Street and, were privacy to remain a concern upon the 
completion of the proposed development, then the application of further privacy film 
would be an appropriate solution. 

 
7.17 The loss of an existing view is not a material planning consideration for all 

developments.  
 
7.18 Lastly in response to the points raised by local residents, the proposed 

development makes no provision for on-site car parking, which recognises the 
sustainable city centre location of the application site. Whilst there would be traffic 
associated with the proposed development, including student arrivals and 
departures at the start and end of terms, it is considered that this is capable of 
being appropriately managed in the same fashion as other large scale PBSA 
developments within the city centre. Future residents of the proposed residential 
apartments would be expected to shop within the city centre and rely on cycle and 
public transport. 

 
7.19 The proposed development would replace the entire city block between 

Glasshouse Street and Huntingdon Street, and between King Edward Street and 
Rick Street. The scale of the proposed development onto each of these streets is 
considered to be appropriate, with the corner to Glasshouse Street being 
particularly significant in terms of its position and prominence as part of this 
junction. This corner would form the primary entrance into the larger PBSA element 
of the proposed development and its design, with recent amendments, provides it 
with an appropriate focus. Discussions on the further individual details of other 
distinct elements of the proposed development as it steps at points along King 
Edward Street and Rick Street have also refined the appearance of the proposed 
street elevations to a satisfactory level, subject to conditions that seek to ensure 
that the quality of appearance is ensure throughout the construction phases. The 
proposed development has been deliberately set back from the line of the existing 
development along Rick Street in order to increased width and space to the street, 
including frontage planting, as well as the opportunity to maintain the proposed 
scale of development along this street. Student accommodation developments that 
are opposite on Glasshouse Street and Rick Street are considered to be compatible 
with the use of the proposed development and therefore unaffected in terms of their 
general residential amenity. 

 
7.20 The scale relationship of the proposed development to neighbouring buildings of 

278-290 Huntingdon Street, the William Booth Memorial Halls, and the Prysm 
nightclub on Lower Parliament Street is discussed below in relation to the 
respective heritage asset status of those buildings. 

 
7.21 The proposed development is therefore considered to accord with ACS Policy 10 

and LAPP Policies DE1 in relation to its scale, layout and design and impact upon 
the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and the wider area.  

 
 

Issue (iii) Impact upon local focal points and heritage assets, including the 
character and appearance of the adjacent heritage assets and non-designated 
local list heritage assets (ACS Policy 11 and LAPP Policy HE1). 

 
7.22 When considering whether or not to grant planning permission for development that 

affects a listed building or its setting, the LPA is under a statutory duty to have 
Page 19



 
special regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building, its setting and any 
special architectural or historic features, under section 66, of the Planning (Listed 
Building and Conservation Area) Act 1990) (“the LBA 1990”.) 

 
7.23 In addition paragraph 199 of the NPPF indicates that when considering the impact 

of a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, 
great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation…irrespective of whether 
any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial 
harm to its significance. 

 
7.24 The Heritage Assessment submitted with the application provides a comprehensive 

review of heritage assets that have been considered as potentially being affected 
by the proposed development, including but not limited to: 

 
• Lace Market Conservation Area 
• Sneinton Market Conservation Area 
• Former bus garage, 270-276 Huntingdon Street (Grade II listed building) 
• Council House, Exchange buildings and adjoining shops and bank (Grade II* 

listed building) 
• William Booth Memorial Halls (Grade II listed building) 
• Pryzm, Lower Parliament Street (non-designated heritage asset) 
• 278-290 Huntingdon Street (non-designated heritage asset) 
• 268 Huntingdon Street (non-designated heritage asset) 

 
7.25 An analysis of the impact of the proposed development upon key views identified 

within the CCUDG has been provided, with the view of the Council House dome 
from St. Mary’s Rest Garden confirmed as being unaffected. Nottingham Civic 
Society’s comment that the height of the development at Glasshouse Street would 
result in the loss of a view of the Council House Dome from King Edward Street is 
acknowledged. However, this view is not recognised within the CCUDG and would 
be lost as a consequence of any moderate increase in the scale of development at 
the Glasshouse Street corner of the application site. The merits of the scale of 
proposed development at this corner have been discussed above. 

 
7.26 It is considered that the scale and appearance of the existing buildings do not make 

full use of the site or make any significant contribution the character and 
appearance of the adjacent Lace Market Conservation Area. The principle of their 
redevelopment is therefore considered to be appropriate within this context. 
Notwithstanding the fact that the proposed development does not fall within a 
conservation area, it is considered that the character and appearance of the 
adjacent Lace Market Conservation Area would be unharmed by the scale and 
appearance of the proposed development, which is considered to be a significant 
improvement on both the existing buildings, with the quality of its design and details 
representing a clear and strong identity. Regardless of the fact that the duty in s72 
of the LBA 1990 is not engaged, it is considered that the scale and appearance of 
the proposed development would be a significant improvement, contributing to the 
view from the adjacent Lace Market Conservation Area. 

 
7.27 The scale of the proposed development will result in a degree of change in the 

setting of a number of built heritage assets around the application site. The 
relationship of the proposed development to the surrounding heritage assets has 
been reviewed at stages through the consideration of the proposed development, 
including the Design Review Panel where it had been concluded to show promise 
subject to more work on refining the design. This further work has been focussed 

Page 20



 
on braking down elements of the mass of development and improving the focal 
points and verticality to the facades in a manner that would be more 
complementary to its context in both its close and more distant built relationships. 
Accordingly, and as an example, the design of the main corner of the proposed 
development between King Edward Street and Glasshouse Street has been 
improved as a contemporary representation of corner buildings within the Lace 
Market. The cross-relationship between this corner of the proposed development 
and the Prysm nightclub building as a non-designated heritage asset is also 
considered to be improved and acceptable. The height of the proposed second 
phase apartments building has also been reduced by one storey to limit the 
prominence of this building within the street scene of Huntingdon Street and to 
provide a more sympathetic step in the scale of development relative to the 
adjacent heritage assets. This is a point also raised within the response of 
Nottingham Civic Society and is therefore considered to be addressed by the 
amendment made. 

 
7.28 It is considered that the design of the proposed development, being adjacent to 

rather than within the Lace Market Conservation Area, is appropriate and would 
enhance the appearance of the Conservation Area through the quality of its design 
and through the replacement of buildings that make no particular contribution to the 
appearance of the Conservation Area. 

 
7.29 The response of the City Archaeologist is noted and reflected in the proposed 

conditions regarding an archaeological evaluation, caves ground investigation, and 
foundation design that will ensures the preservation of any caves in accordance 
with LAPP Policies HE1 and HE2 and the Caves of Nottingham Supplementary 
Planning Document. 
 

7.30 Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states that local authorities need to weigh the harm 
caused to designated heritage assets against the public benefits of the proposal, 
including securing an asset’s optimal viable use. It is considered that the Heritage 
Assessment and accompanying application details provide a good analysis of the 
heritage issues. It is considered that any harm caused to the significance of the 
heritage assets would be ‘less than substantial’ and despite affording considerable 
importance and weight to the "desirability of preserving... the setting " of listed 
buildings,  that the public benefits of the redevelopment of buildings that do not 
make full use of the site or make any significant contribution the character and 
appearance to the adjacent Lace Market Conservation Area, substantially outweigh 
any heritage impacts. The proposals are felt to at least preserve, if not enhance the 
appearance of the conservation area and the setting of the listed buildings are 
preserved. On this basis it is considered that the proposed development accords 
with ACS Policy 11 and LAPP Policy HE1. Planning conditions are also proposed to 
secure the quality of detailed elements of the proposed buildings’ design. 

 
7.31 It is therefore considered that the impact of the setting of the proposed 

development on heritage assets around the application site has been appropriately 
addressed and in accordance with ACS Policy 11 and LAPP Policy HE1 and the 
duty within s66 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Area) Act 1990. 

 
Other 

 
7.32 The response of Highways is noted and general access and waste management 

measures are being discussed further with the applicant. Conditions on appropriate 
measures for the two phases of proposed development are proposed. 

Page 21



 
 
7.33 The proposed cycle parking for the student accommodation is provided within a 

secure, undercover cycle store on the ground floor of the building. A total of 270 
cycle spaces will be provided for use by the students and their visitors, which 
accords with the LAPP’s minimum standards for student occupants and visitors. 
Further cycle parking provision for the residential apartments and ground floor 
offices and retail element would be an expectation as part of the reserved matters 
submission of this phase of the development where internal layout details would be 
provided. Subject to conditions the proposed development is therefore considered 
to comply with LAPP Policy TR1. 

 
7.34 The response of Environmental Health is noted and reflected in the proposed 

conditions regarding ground contamination assessment, noise assessment, 
implementation of an approved sound insulation scheme, and ventilation in 
accordance with LAPP Policy IN2. 

 
7.35 The response of the Drainage team is noted and reflected in the proposed condition 

requiring full drainage strategy and design details incorporating SuDS measures to 
utilise the proposed site landscaping and green roofs in accordance with LAPP 
Policy CC3. 

 
7.36 The response of the Biodiversity team is noted and reflected in the proposed 

conditions for a method statement detailing the approach to the demolition of the 
existing buildings, the incorporation of bat and bird boxes (to include the review of 
the potential for roof nesting features), plus full planting details and use of native 
species in accordance with LAPP Policy EN6.  

 
8. Sustainability 
 
8.1 The site is sustainably located as part of the city centre. A wide range of individual 

sustainable measures are to be incorporated within the proposed development 
including within the first phase (PBSA): 

 
• Passive design measures to reduce the energy demand of the building, including 

improving the thermal performance of the building fabric and achieving an air 
permeability in excess of the requirements of Building Regulations. Cooling and 
ventilation loads to be reduced by providing performance glazing to reduce solar 
gain. 

• Energy efficient plant to be used to ensure that the energy consumed in the 
operation of the building is consumed on the most efficient manner possible. 

• A target a water reduction of 110 litres per person per day to 77 litres per day, 
equating to a reduction of circa 30%. 

• Roof mounted photovoltaic panels and air source heat pumps to be used to provide 
low/zero carbon electrical and heat energy for the development  
 

8.2 The Energy Statement submitted with the application calculates that the 
combination of these measure would result in an energy demand reduction of 56%. 
Being implemented on this basis, it is considered that the proposed development 
would accord with Policy 1 of the ACS and Policy CC1 of the LAPP. 

 
8.3 It is indicated that there would be an intention to mirror this approach within the 

second phase of development (residential apartments/offices/retail). It is therefore 
recommended that planning conditions are attached to require the implementation 
of the first phase of development in accordance with the submitted Energy 

Page 22



 
Statement and that a further Energy Statement for the future second phase of 
development is to be submitted in accordance with the approved energy strategy of 
the first phase. 

 
9 Section 106 (LAPP Policies HO6, IN4, EN2 and EE4) 
 
9.1 In accordance with The Provision of Open Space Within New Residential and 

Commercial Developments Supplementary Guidance open space contributions of 
£569,112 arising from the purpose built student accommodation element and 
£145,628 arising from the new build residential apartments element, towards open 
space improvements is to be provided in accordance with Policies EN2 and IN4. 

 
9.2 The applicant has indicated that they will work with the Council’s Employment and 

Skills team in relation to these future local construction and operational job 
opportunities with a financial contribution of £70,382.40 arising from the purpose 
built student accommodation element and £47,806 arising from the new build 
residential apartments and ground floor offices and retail element, in accordance 
with Policy EE4 of the LAPP. 

 
9.3 The proposed new build residential apartments generates a requirement to provide 

20% on-site affordable housing in accordance with LAPP Policy HO3. The applicant 
has confirmed a policy compliant provision of 18 affordable units. This provision has 
been discussed with the Housing Strategy team, with the mix to be a 50/50 split 
between social rented units and shared ownership units also in accordance with 
Policy HO3 of the LAPP. 

 
9.4 A student management plan will be a requirement of the S106 agreement, to 

include 24 hour on-site management and a commitment for an operator to work 
proactively with the local community. Restrictions on student occupants keeping 
private vehicles within the city will also be applied. It is considered that appropriate 
student management measures will therefore minimise any impact of the student 
accommodation use on the local community in accordance with Policy HO6 of the 
LAPP. 

 
9.5 The proposed obligations accord with planning policy and are therefore reasonable, 

meeting the tests of Regulation 122(2) of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010. 

 
10 Financial Implications 
 
10.1 Financial contributions of £569,112 and £145,628 in accordance Policy IN4 and 

The Provision of Open Space Within New Residential and Commercial 
Developments Supplementary Guidance. 

 
10.2 Financial contributions of £70,382.40 and £47,806 in accordance with Policy EE4 of 

the LAPP. 
 

11 Legal Implications 
 

It is only necessary for a Local Planning Authority, to pay special attention to the 
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a 
conservation area under section 72 of the Planning (Listed Building and 
Conservation Area) Act 1990, when determining a planning application within a 
conservation area. This application is not within but adjacent to a conservation 

Page 23



 
area, so the duty in s72 does not apply in this instance.  
 
The duty in s66 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Area) Act 1990 
does apply in the context of this application and so must be considered as a 
material consideration in the planning balance.  
 
The Committee must afford considerable importance and weight to the "desirability 
of preserving... the setting " of listed buildings when weighing this factor in the 
balance with other "material considerations" which have not been given this special 
statutory status. 
 
A finding of harm to the setting of listed buildings is a consideration to which the 
Committee must give "considerable importance and weight, when weighing up the 
harm, against any benefits or countervailing factors. However, that does not mean 
to say that a strong presumption against granting permission for development that 
would harm the listed building and or its setting, cannot be outweighed by 
substantial public benefits so as to rebut that presumption.  

 
The remaining issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. 
Should further legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting. 
 

12 Equality and Diversity Implications 
 
The provision of Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) compliant accessible buildings. 
 

13 Risk Management Issues 
 
None. 
 

14 Strategic Priorities 
 
Encourage purpose built student accommodation in places where it reduces 
pressure on family housing. Ensuring that all planning and development decisions 
take account of environmental and sustainability considerations. Ensuring 
Nottingham’s workforce is skilled. 
 

15 Crime and Disorder Act implications 
 
Improved surveillance and community safety. 
 

16 Value for money 
 
None. 
 

17 List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing 
confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 21/01033/PFUL3 - link to online case file: 
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QSRY4GLYI9300 
 

18 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
Aligned Core Strategies – Local Plan Part 1 (2014) 
Land and Planning Policies – Local Plan Part 2 (2020) 

Page 24

http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QSRY4GLYI9300
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QSRY4GLYI9300


 
The Provision of Open Space Within New Residential and Commercial 
Developments Supplementary Guidance (2019) 
Caves of Nottingham Supplementary Planning Document (2019) 
NPPF (2019) 
City Centre Urban Design Guide (2009) 
 

Contact Officer:  
Mr Jim Rae, Case Officer, Development Management.  
Email: jim.rae@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.      Telephone: 0115 8764074

Page 25



Key
°0 0.02 0.04 km

NOMAD printed map

© Crown copyright and database right 2021. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317. Aerial photography © Getmapping Plc and Bluesky International Limited 2019.
NOMAD print generated by a NOMAD user on 14/09/2021. THIS MAP IS UNSUITABLE FOR PUBLICATION: contact gi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk for high quality maps.

City Boundary No description provided
Description

Copyright Nottingham City Council, © Crown Copyright and database right 2020. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317.

Page 26



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

My Ref: 21/01033/PFUL3 (PP-09735825)

Your Ref:

Contact: Mr Jim Rae

Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Pearce Planning Ltd
FAO Mr Alan Pearce
The Office
Woodspring House
17 Hill Road
Clevedon
BS21 7NE

Development Management
City Planning
Loxley House
Station Street
Nottingham
NG2 3NG

Tel: 0115 8764447
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Date of decision: 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

Application No: 21/01033/PFUL3 (PP-09735825)
Application by: Fusion Nottingham Devco Limited
Location: King Edward Court, King Edward Street, Nottingham
Proposal: Full Application for demolition of existing offices onto King Edward Street, 

Glasshouse Street and Kent Street, and new build Purpose Built Student 
Accommodation of up to 8 storeys, with communal facilities and associated 
works. Outline Application for demolition of existing offices onto Huntingdon 
Street and King Edward Street and new build residential apartments (Class C3) 
of up to 8 storeys, with ground floor offices and retail (Class E) and associated 
works. (Hybrid Planning Application).

Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby GRANTS PLANNING PERMISSION 
for the development described in the above application subject to the following conditions:-

 1. The Purpose Built Student Accommodation phase of the development hereby permitted shall 
be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

 2. Applications for the approval of Reserved Matters relating to the layout, appearance and 
landscaping of the subsequent new build residential apartments, with ground floor offices and 
retail phase of development shall be made to the Local Planning Authority before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

 3. The subsequent new build residential apartments, with ground floor offices and retail phase of 
development shall be begun before the expiration of two years from the date of approval of the 
last of the reserved matters to be approved.

1

Time limit

Page 27



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

4. No demolition works shall be commenced until a method statement detailing the approach to 
the demolition of the existing buildings with regard to the recorded presence of bats (Bat 
Survey Addendum Report  - Tyler Grange Report No. 13484_R03_CA_CW) has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed demolition works are carried out having regard 
to the recorded bat roost within the application site and therefore in accordance with Policy 
EN6 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 
(2020).

5. No phase of demolition or development shall commence until a programme of archaeological 
work including a Written Scheme of Investigation for that phase has been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include an assessment of 
significance and research questions; and:

1. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording 
2. The programme for post investigation assessment 
3. Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording 
4. Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of the 
site investigation 
5. Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site 
investigation 
6. Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works set out 
within the Written Scheme of Investigation. 

No demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with the approved 
Written Scheme of Investigation. 

Reason: To ensure that any archaeological remains of significance are safeguarded in 
accordance with Policy HE1 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - 
Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

6. Other than the demolition of the existing buildings, no individual phase of development shall 
commence until details of a foundation design which enables the preservation of the known 
cave (and any other unknown caves which may be encountered through ground 
investigations) within the application site have been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that any archaeological remains of significance are safeguarded in 
accordance with Policy HE1 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - 
Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

2

Pre-commencement conditions
(The conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the local planning authority 
for approval before starting work)

Page 28



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

7. Other than the demolition of the existing buildings, no development individual phase of the 
development shall commence until an environmental noise assessment, sound insulation and 
ventilation scheme and a verification plan for that individual phase has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

The environmental noise assessment shall include the impact of any transportation noise, 
noise from people on the street and be carried out whilst any premises and/or activities in the 
vicinity that are likely to have an adverse effect on noise levels are operating. In addition it 
shall include predicted noise levels for any plant and equipment which will form part of the 
development, octave band analysis and all assumptions made (e.g. glazing and façade areas), 
noise from plant rooms, leisure and commercial elements of the development.  

The sound insulation and ventilation scheme shall include the specification and acoustic data 
sheets for glazed areas of the development and any complementary acoustic ventilation 
scheme and be designed to achieve the following internal noise levels: 

i. Not exceeding 30dB LAeq(1 hour) and not exceeding NR 25 in bedrooms for any hour 
between 23.00 and 07.00, 
ii. Not exceeding 35dB LAeq(1 hour) and not exceeding NR 30 for bedrooms and living rooms 
for any hour between 07.00 and 23.00,
iii. Not normally more than 45dB LAmax(1 min) in bedrooms (measured with F time weighting) 
between the hours of 23.00 and 07.00,
iv. Not more than 50dB LAeq(1 hour) for garden areas (including garden areas associated with 
residential homes or similar properties). 

The sound insulation and ventilation scheme verification plan shall include details of the post-
completion acoustic measurements and other data that will be collected following completion 
of the development in order to demonstrate that the internal noise levels set out above have 
been achieved. 

The sound insulation and ventilation scheme and verification plan shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details unless varied with the express written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of future residents and in accordance with Policy IN2 of 
the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

3
Page 29



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

8. Other than the demolition of the existing buildings, no individual phase of the development 
shall commence until a Remediation Strategy that has regard to the Phase 1 Contaminated 
Land Report by Ivy House dated April 2021 and includes the following components to deal 
with the risks associated with ground contamination of the site has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:  

a) A Site Investigation and a detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be 
affected, including those off site. 

b) A Remediation Plan, based on a) above, giving full details of the remediation measures 
required and how they are to be undertaken (including a contingency plan for dealing with any 
unexpected contamination not previously identified in the Site Investigation). 

c) A Verification Plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to demonstrate 
that the works set out in b) above are complete.

The Remediation Strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless 
varied with the express written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put at unacceptable 
risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of pollution in accordance with Policy 
IN2 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 
(2020).

9. No individual phase of development, including demolition, shall commence until a Construction 
Traffic Management Plan for that phase has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority for that phase. The plan shall as a minimum include details of the 
type, size and frequency of vehicles to/from the site, haul routes (if any), staff parking provision 
(including subcontractors), site security, traffic management plans, wheel cleaning facilities 
and measures to prevent the deposit of debris on the highway and a timetable for its 
implementation. Thereafter the Construction Traffic Management Plan shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details and timetable unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of neighbouring developments in 
accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategies.

10. Other than the demolition of the existing site buildings, the Purpose Built Student 
Accommodation phase of the approved development shall not be commenced until full details 
for deliveries to the site and for the management and collection of waste, having particular 
regard to the control of vehicles within the approved courtyard area of the site, have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of neighbouring developments in 
accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategies.

11. Other than the demolition of the existing site buildings, the new build residential apartments, 
with ground floor offices and retail phase of development shall not be commenced until full 
details for deliveries to the site and for the management and collection of waste, having 
particular regard to the control of vehicles within the approved courtyard area of the site, have 
been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of neighbouring developments in 
accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategies.

4
Page 30



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

12. No individual phase of above ground development shall commence until a detailed designs for 
the drainage of the site have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
As a minimum the submitted information should contain:

i. Details of how the surface water run-off will be managed,
ii. Drainage plan showing the layout of the proposed drainage (both foul and surface water),
iii. Proposed Adoption of SuDS features (who will maintain the SuDS features),
iv. Maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development (how will the SuDS features be 
maintained),
v. Relevant surface water calculations from licenced software.

The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of ensuring the appropriate management of surface water and to 
minimise the risk of surface water flooding events affecting occupants of the development in 
accordance with Policy CC3 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - 
Local Plan Part 2 (January 2020).

13. Other than the demolition of the existing site buildings, the Purpose Built Student 
Accommodation phase of the approved development shall not commence until large-scale 
elevation and section drawings (e.g. scale 1:20/1:10) of the detailed design of the following 
elements of each of the approved development have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority:

a) Elevations: including to scale details of the elevations of each element of the approved 
development, with full details of the proposed brick reveals, brick detailing, glazing systems, 
and louvers.

b) Roofs: including edges and parapets;

c) Plant: including lift enclosure, external ventilation systems, and other similar elements that 
are integral to the fabric of the building;

The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In order to ensure that the detailed design of these areas are consistent with the high 
quality of the development and in accordance with Policy DE1 of the Land and Planning 
Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (January 2020).

14. No individual phase of above ground development shall commence until a large scale sample 
panels of all proposed materials to be used on the external elevations of the approved 
development has been constructed on site and has been reviewed and agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Confirmation of the proposed external materials shall also be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences and the development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the 
approved materials.

Reason: In order to ensure an appropriate quality of finish to the approved development and in 
accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy DE1 of the Land and 
Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (January 2020).

5
Page 31



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

15. No individual phase of above ground development shall commence until a detailed scheme for 
the for the incorporation of bat and swift boxes, to be in accordance with the proposed 
mitigation and enhancements described within the Ecological Assessment and Bat Survey 
Addendum Reports  - Tyler Grange Report Nos. 13484_R01a_CA_CW and 
13484_R03_CA_CW, and also to include the review of the potential for roof nesting features, 
has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme 
shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interest of ensuring the incorporation of these features within the approved 
development to support biodiversity and in accordance with Policy EN6 of the Land and 
Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (January 2020), and the 
Biodiversity Supplementary Planning Document (February 2020).

16. No individual phase of above ground development shall commence until a detailed 
landscaping scheme for that phase indicating the type, height, species and location of 
proposed planting (trees and shrubs), has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. The submitted scheme shall incorporate native species and shall 
demonstrate opportunities for enhancement of biodiversity, ensuring net gain.

Reason: In accordance with Policies DE1 and EN6 of the Land and Planning Policies 
Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (January 2020), and the Biodiversity 
Supplementary Planning Document (February 2020).

17. No Class E use within the development where food and drink is prepared, cooked or served, 
shall be commenced until a scheme for the ventilation and means of discharging and 
dispersing fumes and the prevention of nuisance caused by odour from the development has 
been submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

The submission shall include an odour risk assessment, the design configuration, odour 
abatement technology and specification for the scheme for the ventilation and means of 
discharging and dispersing fumes from development.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of future residents and in accordance with Policy IN2 of 
the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

18. Prior to the commencement of the residential apartments phase of the approved development, 
a Ventilation Strategy for this phase shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The Ventilation Strategy shall summarise the ventilation proposals at 
each floor level and façade and shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details 
unless varied with the express written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of future residents and in accordance with Policy IN2 of 
the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

6

Pre-occupation conditions
(The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is occupied)

Page 32



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

19. The Purpose Built Student Accommodation phase of the approved development shall not be 
occupied until a Traffic Management Plan for the loading and unloading of vehicles collecting 
and delivering the belongings of the student occupants at the start and finish of each academic 
term has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  The Traffic 
Management Plan shall thereafter be exercised in accordance with the approved details 
unless varied by the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure that the operation of approved development incorporates adequate 
management arrangements to avoid prejudice to traffic conditions in the vicinity of the 
development site and in the interests of highway safety and the amenity of the area in 
accordance with Policy HO6 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - 
Local Plan Part 2 (January 2020).

20. No individual phase of the approved development shall be occupied until the archaeological 
site investigation and post investigation assessment has been completed in accordance with 
the programme set out in the approved Written Scheme of Investigation and the provision 
made for analysis, publication and dissemination of results and archive deposition has been 
secured, with confirmation to be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that any archaeological remains of significance are recorded in 
accordance with Policy HE1 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - 
Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

21. No phase of the approved development shall be first occupied until a Verification Report, 
which shall include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, to demonstrate that the 
approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground contamination of the site has been fully 
implemented and completed has been submitted to approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put at unacceptable 
risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of pollution in accordance with Policy 
IN2 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 
(2020).

22. No Class E use within the development where food and drink is prepared, cooked or served 
shall be first occupied until verification that the approved scheme for the ventilation and means 
of discharging and dispersing fumes and prevention of odour nuisance for that use has been 
implemented and is fully operational shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of future residents and in accordance with Policy IN2 of 
the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

23. The Purpose Built Student Accommodation and residential apartments phases of the 
approved development shall not be first occupied until written verification that the approved 
ventilation strategy has been implemented has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of future residents and in accordance with Policy IN2 of 
the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

7
Page 33



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

24. The Purpose Built Student Accommodation and residential apartments phases of the 
approved development shall not be first occupied until a Verification Report, which shall 
include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, demonstrating that the approved sound 
insulation and ventilation scheme and any complementary acoustic ventilation is fully 
operational and meets the required internal noise levels has been submitted to and be 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of future residents and in accordance with Policy IN2 of 
the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

25. The Purpose Built Student Accommodation phase of the approved development shall not be 
occupied until verification that the energy and sustainable measures included within the 
approved Energy Statement by Amber Management and Engineering Services Ltd. 
(Document Ref: FUSKES-AMES-00-XX-RP-ME-FI40-0001, April 2021) have been 
implemented and are fully operational shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure that the identified sustainable design features are incorporated into 
the approved development, in the interests of ensuring the energy efficient and low carbon 
sustainable development of the site and in accordance with Policy CC1 of the Land and 
Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 and Policy 1 of the Aligned 
Core Strategies.

26. No phase of the approved development shall be first occupied until the existing vehicle 
accesses and dropped kerbs that are made redundant as a consequence of the 
implementation of that phase of the approved development have been reinstated with full 
height kerbs and footways in accordance with details that are to be submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of ensuring that these works are carried out in association with the 
approved redevelopment of the site and in the interests of highway safety and amenity in 
accordance with Policy DE1 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - 
Local Plan Part 2 (January 2020).

27. The Purpose Built Student Accommodation phase of the approved development shall not be 
first occupied until details of a demountable barrier to off Kent Street to control a no vehicle 
movement access or egress at all times, excepting those agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority as part of a Traffic Management Plan for the loading and unloading of vehicles 
collecting and delivering the belongings of the student occupants at the start and finish of each 
academic term, has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to avoid prejudice to traffic conditions in the vicinity of the development site 
and in the interests of highway safety and the amenity of the area in accordance with Policy 
HO6 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 
(January 2020).

8

Regulatory/ongoing conditions
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters)

Page 34



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

28. The combined noise from any mechanical services plant or equipment (including any air 
handling plant) specified to serve any phase of the development and running at 100% load 
shall not exceed a level 10dB below the existing ambient LA90 background noise level, at a 
point 1 metre from the window of any nearby noise sensitive premises at any time during the 
relevant operational period of the development. 

No items of plant or equipment (either singly or in combination) shall have a distinguishable, 
discrete continuous note (whine, hiss, screech, hum) and/or distinct impulses (bangs, clicks, 
clatters, thumps).

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of future residents and in accordance with Policy IN2 of 
the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

29. The approved landscaping scheme for each phase of the approved development shall be 
carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation or the completion 
of that phase of development whichever is the sooner, and any trees which die, are removed, 
or become seriously damaged or diseased within a period of five years shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning 
Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development will be satisfactory in accordance 
with Policy 10 of the Adopted Core Strategy.

Standard condition- scope of permission

S1. Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried 
out in complete accordance with the details described in the forms, drawings and other 
documents comprising the application as validated by the council on 10 May 2021.

Reason: To determine the scope of this permission.

Informatives

 1. The reason for this decision, and a summary of the policies the local planning authority has had 
regard to are set out in the committee report, enclosed herewith and forming part of this decision.

 2. This permission is valid only for the purposes of Part III of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. It does not remove the need to obtain any other consents that may be necessary, nor does it 
imply that such other consents will necessarily be forthcoming. It does not override any restrictions 
contained in the deeds to the property or the rights of neighbours. You are advised to check what 
other restrictions there are and what other consents may be needed, for example from the 
landowner, statutory bodies and neighbours.  This permission is not an approval under the Building 
Regulations.

 3. Environmental Noise Assessment

The environmental noise assessment shall be suitable and sufficient, where appropriate shall 
consider the impact of vibration, and shall be undertaken by a competent person having regard to 
BS 7445: 2003 Description and Measurement of Environmental Noise and any other appropriate 
British Standards.  The internal noise levels referred to are derived from BS 8233: 2014 Sound 
Insulation and Noise Reduction for Buildings.

Where noise sources shared a floor / ceiling separation or party wall with the development then a 
sound insulation test of the relevant separation may be required as well as an assessment of the 
noise source itself and how it is limited or controlled.  

9
Page 35



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

The sound insulation and ventilation scheme verification plan must include the measurement of the 
impact of any transportation noise, noise from people on the street and be carried out whilst any 
premises and/or activities in the vicinity that are likely to have an adverse effect on noise levels are 
operating, including any plant and equipment which forms part of the development.

The verification report shall confirm that the approved sound insulation and ventilation scheme has 
been implemented and shall include; 

- The specification and acoustic data sheets for glazed areas of the development and any 
complementary acoustic ventilation scheme
- Example photographs of the products eg glazing and ventilation units in situ (prior to identifying 
labels being removed)
- Photographs, drawings (and where applicable) product data sheets of any other sound insulation 
measures eg floor joists, floating floors, independent acoustic ceilings or walls etc
- The approved post-completion acoustic measurements 

The approved sound insulation and ventilation scheme must be maintained &, in the case of 
mechanical ventilation, must be maintained, serviced and operated in accordance with 
manufacturer's recommendations. 

 4. Commercial Noise

The objective of this condition is to prevent background noise creep in the vicinity of the 
development. The mechanical services plant or equipment (including any air handling plant), 
including any mitigation measures, must be maintained, serviced and operated in accordance with 
manufacturer's recommendations while the development continues to be occupied.  

 5. Control of Odour & Provision of Adequate Ventilation

The design of the approved scheme for the ventilation and means of discharging fumes shall have 
regard to the Guidance on the Control of Odour & Noise from Commercial Kitchen Exhaust 
Systems (EMAQ, 2018).  

The approved scheme shall be designed to provide for ventilation and means of discharging and 
dispersing fumes, the prevention of odour nuisance and the minimisation of the risk of ducting fires.  
The approved scheme must be maintained, serviced and operated in accordance with 
manufacturer's recommendations and other authoritative guidance while the development 
continues to be occupied. 

Fire safety advice for restaurants, fast food outlets and take away shops may be obtained from 
Nottinghamshire Fire & Rescue Service (email: fireprotectionsouth@notts-fire.gov.uk ).  (NB 
Cheshire Fire & Rescue Service have useful advice on their website See - 
https://www.cheshirefire.gov.uk/business-safety/fire-safety-advice-for-businesses/restaurants-fast-
food-outlets-and-take-away-shops). 

The approved scheme must be kept under review by the operator and alterations or improvements 
may be required to prevent odour nuisance where any subsequent significant change to the 
operation of the development is proposed which may affect the control of odour or risk of fire:

Significant changes to the operation of the development which may affect the control of odour 
include:

i. The intensification of use of the kitchen, 
ii. The nature of the food prepared, served or cooked on site

10
Page 36



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

iii. The method of preparation and cooking of the food served or cooked on site
iv. The extension of operating times 

It is the duty of the operator to design, install and maintain the ventilation system to prevent an 
odour nuisance. Adequate measures must be taken to prevent nuisance due to odours passing 
through windows, floors or walls etc. into adjoining properties. 

Adequate Ventilation 
The operator of any cooking appliance must ensure that there is effective and suitable ventilation in 
order to enable the effective combustion of fuel and the removal of the products of combustion. The 
specification of a ventilation system shall be determined on the basis of a risk assessment, taking 
account of factors such as the cooking arrangements taking place and the need to replace 
extracted air.

The ventilation system must be designed, installed and maintained in accordance with 
manufacturer's instructions. Guidance on the design specifications of kitchen ventilation systems is 
contained within "DW/172" produced by the Building and Engineering Services Association 
(formerly the Heating and Ventilating Contractors Association). Supporting guidance has been 
published by the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) within Catering Information Sheet 10 
(CAIS10), available at http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/cais10.pdf . 

Gas appliances are subject to specific legislation and standards. Newly installed gas appliances 
should be fitted with an interlock to shut the gas supply off in the event of a failure to the ventilation 
system. Further guidance on gas safety in catering is available within Catering Information Sheet 
23 (CAIS23), available at http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/cais23.pdf . 

The onus for ensuring that the system does not cause odour nuisance or present a risk of fire rests 
with the operator. If the system is found to be causing an odour nuisance or a risk of fire at any 
point, then suitable modification works will be required to be carried out and an enforcement notice 
may be served. 

 6. Construction & Demolition - Noise Control: Hours of Work

The acceptable hours for demolition or construction work (including deliveries to & from the site) 
are detailed below; -

Monday to Friday:       0730-1800 (noisy operations restricted to 0800-1800)
Saturday:                    0830-1700 (noisy operations restricted to 0900-1300)
Sunday:                       at no time
Bank Holidays:            at no time

Work outside these hours may be acceptable in exceptional circumstances but must be agreed with 
Nottingham City Council's Environmental Health Team (email: 
pollution.control@nottinghamcity.gov.uk)

 7. Contaminated Land

The Remediation Strategy (including its component elements) must be undertaken and 
implemented in accordance with the Environment Agency's Land Contamination Risk Management 
guidance published at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/land-contamination-risk-
management-lcrm, CIRIA C735 Good Practice on the Testing & Verification of Protection Systems 
for Buildings Against Hazardous Ground Gases (2014)' and other authoritative guidance. The 
Remediation Strategy must also provide details of:

- 'Cut and fill' operations on site

11
Page 37



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

- How trees retained on site will be dealt with
- How compliance with the requirements of the Nottingham City Council - Guidance on Cover 
Layers & Verification Testing 2019 will be achieved
- Any asbestos surveys carried out, the method statement for removal of asbestos and subsequent 
validation of air and soil following asbestos removal and demolition.

Following completion of the development, no construction work, landscaping or other activity must 
be undertaken which may compromise the remediation measures implemented to deal with ground 
contamination of the site.  

It is a requirement of current Building Regulations that basic radon protection measures are 
installed in all new constructions, extensions conversions & refurbishments on sites which are 
Radon Class 3 or 4 and full radon protection measure are installed on site which are Radon Class 5 
or higher.  Advice from the Council's Environmental Health Team regarding appropriate gas 
protection measures must be sought where there are both radon issues and ground gas issues 
present.

The responsibility and subsequent liability for safe development and secure occupancy of the site 
rests with the developer and/or the landowner.  The developer is required to institute a thorough 
investigation and assessment of the ground conditions, nature and degree of contamination on the 
site to ensure that actual or potential risks to public health and safety can be overcome by 
appropriate remedial, preventive or precautionary measures.  The developer shall provide at his 
own expense such evidence as is required to indicate clearly that the risks associated with ground, 
groundwater and ground gas contamination of the site has been addressed satisfactorily.

 8. CTMP (construction Traffic Management Plan)

Vehicles delivering to the site cannot be permitted to wait/park on the highway, in accordance with 
details to be submitted to and agreed in writing after consultation with the city council highway 
authority and planning authority. A Construction Traffic Management Plan will be required and this 
will also include a construction traffic routing agreement. This is in the interests of highway safety.

 9. Mud on road

It is an offence under Section 148 and Section 151 of the Highways Act 1980 to deposit mud on the 
public highway. If the development works will have any impact on the public highway, please 
contact Network Management 0115 8765293 or email 
Highway.Management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk. All associated costs will be the responsibility of the 
developer.

10. Highway licences

a. The Highways Network Management team at Loxley House must be notified regarding when the 
works will be carried out as disturbance to the highway may be occurring and licences may be 
required. Please contact highway.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 0115 8765293. 
b. Consideration of boundary treatments, overhang licences and abutting structures adjacent to our 
highway. As such please consider the opening out of doors and windows (below a certain height) is 
not permitted onto an adopted highway.

11. Traffic regulation Orders (TROs)

Prior to occupation of the consented development, it is necessary to amend and introduce Traffic 
Regulation Orders. These will be both temporary and permanent in nature. This is a separate legal 
process and the Order can be made on behalf of the developer by Nottingham City Council at the 
applicant's expense. It is strongly recommended that you make contact at the earliest opportunity to 

12
Page 38



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

allow time for the process to be completed; please contact Highways Network Management on 
0115 8765293 to instigate the process. The residents will NOT be able to join any nearby residents 
parking schemes. For TRO advice and further information the applicant is advised to contact Traffic 
Management on 0115 8765245 or email traffic.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk .

12. Cycle Parking

For information on cycle parking including stands and cycle maps please contact the email address 
requesting support: CyclingTeam@nottinghamcity.gov.uk. The applicant is to read the background 
information below on the decision to seek our policy number of cycle parking spaces.

13. S278 Agreement

a. Planning consent is not consent to work on the highway. To carry out off-site works associated 
with the planning consent, approval must first be obtained from the Local Highway Authority. 
Approval will take the form of a Section 278 Agreement and you should contact Highways Network 
Management on 0115 8765293 to instigate the process. It is strongly recommended that you make 
contact at the earliest opportunity to allow time for the process to be completed as you will not be 
permitted to work on the Highway before it is complete. All associated costs will be borne by the 
developer. 
b. Street trees, materials and street furniture will require commuted sums. We reserve the right to 
charge commuted sums in respect of ongoing maintenance where the item in question is above 
and beyond what is required for the safe and satisfactory functioning of the highway.
c. The applicant will be building a structure that will require consideration of gradients and levels 
abutting the adopted highway. They must contact our Bridges and Structures team via email at 
Ian.Bretton@nottinghamcity.gov.uk if there are any structures (e.g. retaining walls) that may affect 
the adopted highway.

14. Refuse collection

The applicant is to ensure that bin storage for both the residential, student and commercial is 
suitable in size to accommodate all residents and commercial operations and is placed adjacent to 
the adopted highway and to an access. This is to ensure refuse collection is kerbside from an 
adopted highway. A waste and servicing management strategy has been submitted for the 
development, this requires additional information and changes to make it acceptable. The applicant 
is to contact Business Improvement Manager Lisa Terry at Neighbourhood Services in the first 
instance on 0115 8765628 or email at Lisa.Terry@nottinghamcity.gov.uk. Lisa will be able to 
provide contact details for discussions on the following:

o Kerbside collection from an ADOPTED highway is required and not collection from the internal 
courtyard, unless this has been agreed by the Waste Services Manager. We need to  consider 
legal issues, public liabilities, highway safety impact and timings as well as the safety of our waste 
operatives.
o The applicant is required to provide the highway authority with a written statement and plan of 
intent for collection, alongside a revised waste management strategy with the addition of hard 
standing areas for bin storage on pick up dates.
o A hard standing area is to be provided within the curtilage of the site that is large enough to 
accommodate the waste storage so that our highway is NOT blocked or restricted and no detritus is 
left.

15. Drainage

The developer should contact Drainage via email at FloodRiskManagement@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
to discuss drainage issues.

13
Page 39



Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

16. Sustainable Transport, Vehicle Access Management & Student drop off & pick up

A Travel Plan and vehicle access management plan is to be provided by the applicant alongside a 
plan for student pick up and drop off at the start and end of each term. The applicant must provide 
up-to-date contact details of the appointed travel plan co-ordinator, an up to date (annually) Travel 
Plan and a Travel Plan Notice board within a communal area providing transport related information 
on the provision of sustainable modes of transport. To obtain further information on expectations 
please contact Highway Development Management - HighwaysDM@nottinghamcity.gov.uk. 

The highway authority are accepting of any proposal to utilise the access off Kent Street as a one 
way exit for small vehicles/cars during the management of student drop off and pick up times. The 
access is to be closed at all other times by way of a demountable bollard set back a minimum of 
5.5m from Kent Street.

Where a condition specified in this decision notice requires any further details to be submitted for 
approval, please note that an application fee will be payable at the time such details are submitted 
to the City Council. A form is available from the City Council for this purpose.

Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet.

14
Page 40



- 15 -

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

RIGHTS OF APPEAL
Application No: 21/01033/PFUL3 (PP-09735825)

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to impose conditions on the grant of 
permission for the proposed development, then he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under 
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Any appeal must be submitted within six months of the date of this notice.  You can obtain an appeal 
form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, Temple 
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN.  Phone: 0117 372 6372.  Appeal forms 
can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at http://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm.  Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an 
online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You can find the service 
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs.

The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeals area of the 
Planning Portal).  This may include a copy of the original planning application form and relevant 
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, together with the 
completed appeal form and information you submit to the Planning Inspectorate.  Please ensure that 
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you that you are happy will 
be made available to others in this way.  If you supply personal information belonging to a third party 
please ensure you have their permission to do so.  More detailed information about data protection 
and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but will not normally 
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons 
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it imposed.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the City 
Council based its decision on a direction given by him.

PURCHASE NOTICES

If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants it 
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial 
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the 
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in 
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

COMPENSATION

In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation 
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The 
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990.
  

STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING

Nottingham City Council has a statutory responsibility for agreeing and registering addresses. If the 
development will create one or more new addresses or streets (for example a new build or 
conversion) please contact address.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk as soon as possible, 

Page 41



- 16 -

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

quoting your planning application reference. Any addresses assigned outside of this process will 
not be officially recognised and may result in difficulties with service delivery.

Page 42



 
 
Wards Affected: Lenton And Wollaton East (May 2019)  Item No:  
 

Planning Committee 
22nd September 2021 

 
Report of Director of Planning and Regeneration 
 
3 Triumph Road, Nottingham 
 
1 Summary 
 
Application No: 21/01558/PRES4 for approval of reserved matters 

 
Application by: Desg on behalf of Cassidy Group (Triumph House) Ltd 

 
Proposal: Application for the approval of reserved matters relating to 

condition 2 (details of appearance and landscaping) of Section 73 
application reference 20/02228/PVAR3  (Demolition of existing 
buildings and erection of student accommodation - revisions to site 
layout, footprint and scale of the proposed building of outline 
planning permission reference 19/02581/POUT) 

 
 
The application is brought to Committee at the formal request of its members of their 21 
February meeting 2021, following approval of application reference 20/02228/PVAR3, on 
the basis of this being a major development on a prominent site with important design 
considerations. 
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should be determined by 12th 
October 2021 
 
 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 To GRANT RESERVED MATTERS APPROVAL subject to the indicative 

conditions listed in the draft decision notice at the end of this report. 
  
Power to determine the final details of the conditions to be delegated to Director for 
Planning and Regeneration. 

 
 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
 Site and Surroundings 
 
3.1 This reserved matters submission relates to a 0.37ha site located on the western 

side of Triumph Road, close to the junction with Derby Road. The site comprised of 
two industrial buildings which have recently been demolished. 

 
3.2 The River Leen runs along the southern boundary of the site and to the south of the 

Leen are properties fronting onto Derby Road, namely Fanum House which is 
occupied by the NHS as an emergency dental service, a terrace of almshouses 
(The William Woodsend Memorial Homes) and the Rose and Crown Public House. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 4b



 
To the north of the site are industrial premises and on the opposite side of Triumph 
Road a car dealership and further industrial premises.  

 
3.3 Within the Part 2 Local Plan (the LAPP) the site falls within an area safeguarded for 

the expansion of the University of Nottingham Jubilee Campus. One of the more 
recent University buildings on the Jubilee Campus, the Advanced Manufacturing 
Building, immediately adjoins the western boundary of the site and fronts Derby 
Road. 

 
 Planning History 
 
3.4 Planning Application 18/01498/POUT: An outline planning application was 

submitted in 2018 (with layout, scale and means of access being submitted for 
consideration at that time. Appearance and landscaping were reserved for future 
approval. The proposed development comprised a single block of student 
accommodation with 204 bedspaces. The application was subject to an appeal 
against non-determination and although this was dismissed in November 2019, the 
Planning Inspector concluded that the development was acceptable but that the 
appeal failed due to a technical flaw in the draft S106 agreement. 

 
3.5 Planning Application 19/02581/POUT:  A further outline application was 

submitted in 2019 that was identical to the previous one but with the flaw in the 
draft S106 resolved. The 204 bed student accommodation again comprised a mix 
of studios, cluster flats and one bedroomed apartments and communal facilities on 
the ground floor. This outline application was granted permission in February 2020 
subject to the completion of a S106 Obligation to secure local employment and 
training opportunities (including a financial contribution of £27,988 towards the 
operation of the Council’s Employer Hub), a student management plan (including a 
restriction on car usage) and a financial contribution of £43,009.32 towards the 
provision or improvement of open space or public realm. 

 
3.6 Planning Application 20/02228/PVAR3: At the February 2021 meeting Planning 

Committee resolved to approve a Section 73 application which sought to vary the 
plans approved under outline planning permission 19/02581/POUT. The applicant 
sought to make design changes to the proposed scale of the building and site 
layout, together with an increase in the number of student bedrooms from 204 to 
270. Approval was subject to a variation of the previous S106 Obligation to require 
an increased financial contribution of £258,390 towards the provision or 
improvement of open space or public realm. The S73 application was subsequently 
approved in June 2021 upon completion of the variation to the S106 Obligation. 

 
 
4 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 The layout, scale and means of access for this development have been approved 

under application 20/02228/PVAR3, approved at Committee in February 2021. The 
current proposal is for the approval of the outstanding ‘Reserved Matters’ in relation 
to the appearance of the building and the landscaping of the site.  
  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



 
5 CONSULTATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS OF OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 
26 immediate neighbours were notified, a site notice posted and the application 
advertised in the local press (final date for comments 27.08.21). 
 
No representations have been received in response to the statutory consultation of 
the application. 
 
Councillor Trimble, Ward Councillor for Lenton and Wollaton East, has requested 
that his objection to the previous S73 application 20/02228/PVAR3 which was sent 
at that time to all members of Planning Committee, again be presented to 
Committee as an objection to this reserved matters application. His objection is set 
out in full below and is in lieu of speaking at Committee: 
 
“I wish to object to this planning application for 3 Triumph Road (20/0228/PVAR3). 
The vast majority of housing in the area where this development is proposed are 
HMO’s and Purpose Built Accommodation. What could be termed as community 
imbalance for the area is already at crisis point. We spend a great deal of time 
trying to build balanced communities in Nottingham with a diverse and wide range 
of people and communities getting on well together. And here we are yet again with 
a complete disregard for this. Noisy parties are a massive problem. In non Covid 
times Derby Road from Canning Circus to the QMC suffers severely with noise 
issues from 10-00pm until after 4-00am. Both universities already contribute 
£30,000 each towards community protection overtime costs. It’s so bad that I would 
argue that that £60,000 is nowhere near enough to deal with the issues. The 
councils Anti-Social Behaviour car is regularly defaulted to the area. On a 
community protection exercise 1,353 Community Protection Notices were issued for 
noise and 1,124 street alcohol confiscations and not all were recorded. On one 
night alone, in a special operation for a couple of hours there was 315 street 
alcohol confiscations and because it was so visible they by no means caught 
everyone. The local primary held a survey and all the children in that area were 
deprived of sleep, including during exam time. That's not acceptable. Taking into 
account that both noise from student parties as well as street drinking are two very 
common occurrences of ASB in the area, DE1(1)(c) of the LAPP is particularly 
relevant where it notes that future development needs to be assessed on the basis 
of whether it would "enhance community safety". I am not at all convinced that the 
270 unit PBSA proposed here would not exacerbate existing tensions between the 
student population and permanent residents and that it wouldn't lead to a rise in 
ASB cases. 
 
Here we have developers following each other like lemmings over a cliff, creating a 
monolithic high volume concentration of small single housing units with very little or 
no diversity. When the city had the highest number of Covid cases in the country 
the local area was hit badly with the highest concentration of positive Covid tests 
being in Purpose Built Student Accommodation. We have seen quite a number of 
fines handed out including one for 10,000 pounds. This type of single use, single 
type of property, in this scale and in this location doesn’t do anything to create 
balanced communities. This is the complete opposite of what we trying to achieve 
in every other part of the city.   
 
The scale proposed height and scale of the 5 storey building is far too big. The flat 
roof is far too utilitarian and does nothing for the area. It dwarfs the almshouses 
known as the William Woodsend Memorial Holmes in a very stark and 

Page 45

https://www.google.com/maps/search/3+Triumph+Road?entry=gmail&source=g


 
unsympathetic manner. The intensity and size of the building are also in stark 
contrast to the peaceful nature of the River Leen. It should be noted here that HO5 
of the LAPP clearly states that "Purpose Built student accommodation" should be 
encouraged if it is "of an appropriate scale and design". Policy DE1 is particularly 
relevant to this development as well as it states that planning applications should 
be considered against a number of criteria including "whether the development 
would respect and enhance the ... character of the area, and in particular its 
established scale, massing, rhythm, landscape ..." etc. 
 
Furthermore, it has a distinct lack of facilities for the number of residents especially 
as this has increased from the proposed 220 to 270 bed spaces. As parking is a 
major problem in the local area provision for drop off and pick up time look to be 
almost non-existent and completely unfeasible. The number of students or their 
visitors using cars and needing parking places can also be a serious concern taking 
into account the scale of the proposed development. Parking is already a huge 
problem in the area and whilst students are not supposed to bring cars especially at 
PBSAs, they still bring them and they park them on surrounding streets sometimes 
rarely moving them. Policy DE2 of the LAPP is relevant in this instance as it states 
that development proposals "will be expected to: ... (l) ensure that the development 
does not generate levels of traffic, on street parking, vehicle movements or access 
arrangements which would have a detrimental impact on... the efficient operation of 
the highway network..." furthermore and in particular reference to parking, the 
LAPP states on the aforementioned policy that developments ought to "(k) 
maximise opportunities for sustainable transport and provide appropriate parking 
solutions to reflect the character of the development." Note as well that getting a 
"planning agreement or condition" restricting car use by potential occupiers as 
outlined in TR1(2)(g) of the LAPP in this context wouldn't work due to the scale of 
the proposed development as well as existing parking issues in the area. The fact 
remains that a planning condition applied here wouldn't stop prospective students 
having visitors nor owning and using cars, thus the problem would remain.” 
 
Environmental Health and Safer Places: No objections. 
 
Drainage: No objections, subject to the drainage conditions imposed on application 
20/02228/PVAR3 being complied with. 
 
Biodiversity Officer:  The Biodiversity Officer welcomes the use of native species as 
part of the landscape plan and other species of value to wildlife. 
 

 
 
6 RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 
 

National Planning Policy Framework (2021): 
 

The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development 
and that applications for sustainable development should be approved where 
possible.  
 
Paragraph 126 notes that the creation of high quality buildings and places is 
fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve, and 
that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development. 
 
Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should 
ensure that developments: 

Page 46



 
 
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short 
term but over the lifetime of the development; 
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 
effective landscaping; 
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging 
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities); 
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 
places to live, work and visit; 
e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate 
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and 
support local facilities and transport networks; and 
f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health 
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users and 
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life 
or community cohesion and resilience. 

 
Aligned Core Strategies (ACS) (2014) 
 
Policy A - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
Policy 10 - Design and Enhancing Local Identity 
Policy 17- Biodiversity 

 
Land and Planning Policies (LAPP) (2020) 
 
Policy DE1: Building Design and Use 
Policy DE2: Context and Place Making 
Policy EN6: Biodiversity 

 
 
7. APPRAISAL 
 
 Principle of the Development 
   
7.1 The 2019 outline planning permission established the principle of re-developing the 

site for student accommodation. The subsequent 2021 Section 73 permission 
established the layout, scale and means of access for a scheme comprising 270 
bedrooms. At that time consideration was given to height and envelope of the 
building, its relationship with neighbouring properties and to access arrangements, 
including for the future maintenance of the River Leen. 

 
7.2 This application solely relates to the elevational treatment of the building and both 

hard and soft landscaping proposals within the site. These reserved matters are 
within the scope of the outline application as varied and now comprise a standalone 
permission. 

 
 Design and Landscaping Considerations (Policies A and 10 of the ACS and 

Policies DE1 and DE2 of the LAPP) 
 
7.3 The elevations to the building have a consistent architectural style that comprise a 

strong brick frame with clearly defined base middle and top. Large-scale openings 
with deep reveals and a consistent approach to the fenestration pattern are 

Page 47



 
incorporated throughout. The use of full height windows on the ground floor 
together with feature textured brickwork and reconstituted stone banding provide 
additional detailing. 

 
7.4 Through the pre-application process the front elevation of the building in particular 

has been enhanced by the re-organisation of the fenestration pattern and the 
design development of the entrance canopy. The prominent south eastern corner of 
the building has been revised to incorporate larger wraparound window openings, 
serving communal spaces, to create further interest in the streetscene when viewed 
along Triumph Road and from Derby Road. 

 
7.5 A simple palette of materials is proposed consisting of two complementary bricks; 

either a red or pale grey multi brick to the upper storeys and a dark grey brick to the 
base. The windows are to be recessed 225mm and would have a dark frame with 
integral bronze clad feature window linings and spandrel panels. A bronze coloured 
canopy would define the entrance to the building. 

 
7.6 The landscaping proposals would provide an attractive south facing external space 

for students within a new landscaped ‘buffer’ between the building and the 
Almhouses located on the opposite side of the River Leen. The indoor amenity 
space opens onto this area. Landscaping includes new trees, extensive shrub 
planting, some grassed areas and hard landscaping immediately adjacent to the 
building. Alongside the River Leen an 8m easement is required by the Environment 
Agency. A 3.7m wide reinforced grass access strip is to provide access for 
maintenance vehicles directly adjacent to the river with the remaining area of the 
easement being landscaped with wild flower and native shrub planting, to help 
create a habitat corridor along the Leen. New trees and soft landscaping are also 
proposed along Triumph Road to create an enhanced street frontage. 

 
 Notwithstanding the submitted details, a condition requiring planting details is 

proposed, given that the final details of the scheme are yet to be decided. 
 
7.7 In conclusion, the proposed appearance of the building and landscaping proposals 

would make a positive contribution to the site and its surroundings, External 
materials and more detailed information on the design features of the building are 
already incorporated on the permission 20/02228/PVAR3 (conditions 8 and 10). 
The development therefore accords with policies A and 10 of the ACS and policies 
DE1 and DE2 of the LAPP. 

 
8. SUSTAINABILITY / BIODIVERSITY (Policy 17 of the ACS and Policy EN6 of the 

LAPP) 
 
8.1 The Biodiversity Officer welcomes the use of native species as part of the landscape plan 

and other species of value to wildlife. 
 
8.2 The landscape proposals therefore accord with policy 17 of the ACS and policy EN6 of the 

LAPP. 
 
9 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



 
10 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. Should 
legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting. 
 

11 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATTIONS 
 
None. 
 

12 RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
None. 
 

13 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
Neighbourhood Nottingham: Redevelopment of a partially cleared brownfield site 
with a high quality, sustainable and mixed-use development 
 
Safer Nottingham: The development enhances the surrounding pedestrian 
environment and incorporates active ground floor frontages that would contribute to 
a safer and more attractive neighbourhood 
 

14 CRIME AND DISORDER ACT IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

15 VALUE FOR MONEY 
 
None. 
 

16 List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing 
confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 21/01558/PRES4 - link to online case file: 
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QW6LCTLYJY000 
 

17 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
Nottingham Local Plan Part 2 (January 2020) 
Aligned Core Strategies (September 2014) 
 

Contact Officer:  
Mrs Jo Bates, Case Officer, Development Management.  
Email: joanna.briggs@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.      Telephone: 0115 8764041

Page 49

http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=%5eND,KEYVAL.DCAPPL;
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=%5eND,KEYVAL.DCAPPL;


Key
°0 0.04 0.08 km

NOMAD printed map

© Crown copyright and database right 2021. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317. Aerial photography © Getmapping Plc and Bluesky International Limited 2019.
NOMAD print generated by a NOMAD user on 14/09/2021. THIS MAP IS UNSUITABLE FOR PUBLICATION: contact gi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk for high quality maps.

City Boundary No description provided
Description

Copyright Nottingham City Council, © Crown Copyright and database right 2020. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317.

Page 50



- 1 - Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

My Ref: 21/01558/PRES4 (PP-10001649)

Your Ref:

Contact: Mrs Jo Bates

Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Desg
FAO Miss Freya Rideout
11-13 Penhill Road
Pontcanna
CF11 9PQ
United Kingdom

Development Management
City Planning
Loxley House
Station Street
Nottingham
NG2 3NG

Tel: 0115 8764447
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Date of decision: 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS

Application No: 21/01558/PRES4 (PP-10001649)
Application by: Cassidy Group (Triumph House) Ltd
Location: 3 Triumph Road, Nottingham, 
Proposal: Application for the approval of reserved matters relating to condition 2 (details of 

appearance and landscaping) of Section 73 application reference 
20/02228/PVAR3  (Demolition of existing buildings and erection of student 
accommodation - revisions to site layout, footprint and scale of the proposed 
building of outline planning permission reference 19/02581/POUT)

Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby APPROVES the reserved matters 
described in the above application subject to the following conditions:-

There are no conditions in this section.

1. Notwithstanding the submitted plans, no part of the development hereby permitted shall be 
occupied until a detailed landscaping and planting scheme indicating the type, height, species, 
location, sectional pit details and maintenance arrangements of the proposed trees and shrubs 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved 
landscaping scheme shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the 
occupation of the development and any trees or plants which die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased within a period of five years shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority 
gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure a high quality development in accordance with Policy 10 of the ACS and 
Policy DE1 of the LAPP.

Pre-commencement conditions
(The conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the local planning authority 
for approval before starting work)

Pre-occupation conditions
(The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is occupied)

Page 51



- 2 - Continued…

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

There are no conditions in this section.

Standard condition- scope of permission

S1. Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried 
out in complete accordance with the details described in the forms, drawings and other 
documents comprising the application as validated by the council on 13 July 2021.

Reason: To determine the scope of this permission.

Informatives

 1. The reason for this decision, and a summary of the policies the local planning authority has had 
regard to are set out in the committee report, enclosed herewith and forming part of this decision.
Where a condition specified in this decision notice requires any further details to be submitted for 
approval, please note that an application fee will be payable at the time such details are submitted 
to the City Council. A form is available from the City Council for this purpose.

Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet.

Regulatory/ongoing conditions
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters)

Page 52



- 3 -

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

RIGHTS OF APPEAL
Application No: 21/01558/PRES4 (PP-10001649)

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to impose conditions on the grant of 
permission for the proposed development, then he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under 
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Any appeal must be submitted within six months of the date of this notice.  You can obtain an appeal 
form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, Temple 
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN.  Phone: 0117 372 6372.  Appeal forms 
can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at http://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm.  Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an 
online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You can find the service 
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs.

The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeals area of the 
Planning Portal).  This may include a copy of the original planning application form and relevant 
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, together with the 
completed appeal form and information you submit to the Planning Inspectorate.  Please ensure that 
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you that you are happy will 
be made available to others in this way.  If you supply personal information belonging to a third party 
please ensure you have their permission to do so.  More detailed information about data protection 
and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but will not normally 
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons 
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it imposed.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the City 
Council based its decision on a direction given by him.

PURCHASE NOTICES

If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants it 
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial 
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the 
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in 
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

COMPENSATION

In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation 
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The 
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990.

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Wards Affected: St Ann's (May 2019)  Item No:  
 

Planning Committee 
22nd September 2021 

 
Report of Director of Planning and Regeneration 
 
248-262 , Huntingdon Street, Nottingham NG1 3NB 
 
1 Summary 
 
Application No: 21/01023/PFUL3 for planning permission 

 
Application by: Franklin Ellis Architect on behalf of Bildurn (Properties) Ltd. 

 
Proposal: Demolition and redevelopment including retention of corner facade 

to Huntingdon Street / Howard Street frontage to provide purpose 
built student accommodation 

 
The application is brought to Committee because it is a major application on a 
prominent site where there are important land use and design considerations.  
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should have been 
determined by 6th August 2021. An extension of time has been agreed with the 
applicant until 30th September 2021. 
 
 
2         RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1 To GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION for the reasons set out in this report, 
 subject to: 

 
(i) the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in the 

draft decision notices at the end of this report;  
 
(ii) prior completion of a Section 106 Planning Obligation to secure the 

following: 
 
 (a) an off-site Open Space contribution of £302,987 
 (b) local employment and training during construction, including a
 financial contribution of £42,316 
 (c) a student management plan and restriction on occupants keeping 
 private vehicles within the City 
 

2.2 Power to determine the final details of both the terms of the Planning 
Obligation and the conditions of planning permission to be delegated to the 
Director for Planning and Regeneration. 
 

2.3 That Committee are satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning obligations 

Page 55

Agenda Item 4d



sought are (a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning 
terms, (b) directly related to the development and (c) fairly and reasonably 
related in scale and kind to the development. 

 
 
3 SITE, SURROUNDINGS AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The application site comprises the buildings currently occupied by Halfords 

Auto Centre and Archer Accident Group fronting Huntingdon Street, with 
secondary frontages to Howard Street and Perth Street. The site is opposite 
the recently constructed 5 storey student accommodation scheme above 
ground floor commercial units at 185-191 Huntingdon Street and in close 
proximity to the Victoria health centre and Numark pharmacy on Perth Street, 
and the Victoria Shopping Centre on Glasshouse Street.  

 
3.2 The local area is dominated by the multi-story Victoria Centre which rises at 

its highest to 19 storeys in relatively close proximity to the site. Huntingdon 
Street is an edge of City Centre thoroughfare with a mixture of commercial, 
retail and residential/student accommodation uses. 

 
3.3.  None of the buildings within the site are listed nor is this within a designated 

conservation area. However, the adjacent former Barton’s Bus Depot at 270-
276 Huntingdon Street is a Grade II listed building and the building on the 
Huntingdon Street/Howard Street corner within the application site is of 
commensurate age and Art Deco style and included on the Local List.   

3.4 The area immediately around the site has seen significant redevelopment 
over the last ten to fifteen years, which appears set to continue. Recent 
developments near the site include the Confetti Institute of Creative 
Technologies, a further education provider which is now part of Nottingham 
Trent University, as well as several purpose built student accommodation 
(PBSA) schemes approved or currently under construction within the locality. 
A new PBSA scheme has recently been given planning approval on the 
corner of Glasshouse Street and Howard Street which sits adjacent the 
proposed development site. 

 
3.5 The site is within the City Centre boundary defined by the LAPP but falls 

outside of the Creative Quarter and nearest Primary Shopping Area 
designations. 

   
 
4 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 The proposal would involve demolition of the majority of the existing buildings 

on the site with the exception of the art deco façade on the Huntingdon 
Street/Howard Street frontage. The new building would be 4 storeys behind 
the retained façade, 5 storeys along the Howard Street frontage and then rise 
to 7 storeys over the former Halfords unit on the Huntingdon Street and Perth 
Street frontages. In total the scheme would provide 294 student bedrooms in 

Page 56



a variety of studios and cluster flats, with shared recreation facilities, amenity 
space and cycle parking. 

4.2 The majority of the ground floor would be amenity/recreation space with two 5 
bed cluster flats fronting Perth Street, where it is also proposed to enhance 
the public realm along this frontage. The main entrance is to be from the 
corner of Huntingdon Street and Howard Street and service access would 
largely be from Howard Street. 

4.3  80 cycle parking spaces would be provided in secure ground floor enclosures. 
The bin store is located on the accessway between Howard Street and Perth 
Street, providing space for 26 x 1100 litre bins. 

 
4.4 The proposed scheme includes a combination of air source heat pumps and 

secondary gas fired boilers alongside an energy efficient design for the 
building. 

 
5 CONSULTATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS OF OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 
329 Neighbouring properties were notified by letter, a site notice posted and 
press notice published. The overall expiry date was 28 July 2021. 
 
1 letter of objection has been received to the proposal from a member of the 
public. Comments have also been received from the Nottingham Civic Society 
and a Ward Councillor. 
 
The following concerns have been raised by a member of the public: 
 

• The development would cause more student noise on top of the 
students already living in this area.  

• There will be more rubbish at the back of Victoria centre which already 
looks a run-down place, the extra cleaning will cost the council. 

• There will be more students drinking in the street, it’s a no alcohol zone 
but nobody is patrolling this area. 

• Drunken students in the streets, being sick, screaming and shouting 
could have effect on local business by putting off customers who would 
not feel safe in this area. 

• The proposed building will block out any sun that is received in the 
local beer gardens in the summer. 

• There are too many student buildings that are empty. 
 
The Ward Councillor comments as follows: 
 
Strongly object to the proposal. There is great unrest in the community about 
more student flats. We are being surrounded by flats for student 
accommodation. What we need is more social housing for people who have 
been residents for decades and yet their daughters, sons, grandchildren are 

Page 57



being forced to private rent in the area. This issue is breaking up communities 
like St Ann’s.  
 
The Civic Society comment as follows: 
 
Nottingham Civic Society objects to the demolition of part of a building on the 
Nottingham Local List. Retention of only the Art Deco corner facade of the 
office building, robs the heritage asset of its integrity and also results in taller 
elements of the new building dominating and overwhelming the scale of the 
historic structure. 
 
The proposed new building up to seven storeys in height, adversely affects 
the setting of two other twentieth-century buildings which give character to this 
stretch of Huntingdon Street - the Grade II listed former Barton's Bus Depot 
and the retail frontage at Huntingdon House,(278-290) itself recommended for 
the Nottingham Local List. Together with the application premises, these three 
buildings of comparable age and scale, and two of them associated with 
motor transport, form an harmonious group of heritage assets which deserve 
some respect, so it is disappointing that the applicant's Heritage Appraisal 
fails to recognise the value of this group in its assessment of the impact of the 
new development. 
 
The Art Deco office building should be retained in its entirety and the 
proposed Huntingdon Street block adjoining it should be reduced by two 
storeys in height to allow the character of the older buildings to be appreciated 
in the streetscape and to avoid harm to the setting of the listed building. 
 
Additional consultation letters sent to: 
 
Environmental Health and Safer Places: No objection subject to conditions 
regarding: noise and dust management plan, air quality, an environmental 
noise assessment and sound insulation scheme, and contaminated land. 
 
Highways: No objection subject to the submission of details to be secured by 
condition relating to a construction management scheme and the provision of 
a cycle storage. 
 
Drainage: No objection. Satisfied with the additional information provided 
relating to the drainage strategy and treatment of surface water. 
 
City Archaeologist: No objection subject to a condition requiring submission 
of a programme of archaeological works, initially consisting of an archaeological 
evaluation. 
 
Education: No education contribution required as it is a student 
accommodation. 
 
Biodiversity: Satisfied with the submitted Biodiversity Enhancement Plan. 
Wants to see implementation of the suggested measures within the plan. 
 

Page 58



Environment Agency: No objection.  
 
 

6 RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 
 

National Planning Policy Framework (2021): 
 

The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development and that applications for sustainable development should be 
approved where possible.  
 
Paragraph 126 notes that the creation of high quality beautiful and sustainable 
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development 
process should achieve, and that good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development. 
 
Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should 
ensure that developments: 
 
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the 
short term but over the lifetime of the development; 
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and 
appropriate and effective landscaping; 
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding 
built environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging 
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities); 
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of 
streets, spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming 
and distinctive places to live, work and visit; 
e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an 
appropriate amount and mix of development (including green and other public 
space) and support local facilities and transport networks; and 
f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote 
health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future 
users and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine 
the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience. 
 
In determining applications that may affect heritage assets, paragraph 194 of 
the NPPF advises that local planning authorities should require an applicant to 
describe the significance of any heritage assets affected, including any 
contribution made by their setting. The level of detail should be proportionate 
to the assets’ importance and no more than is sufficient to understand the 
potential impact of the proposal on their significance.  

 
Paragraph 197 of the NPPF then states that in determining applications, local 
planning authorities should take account of:  

a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage 
assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;  

Page 59



b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to 
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and  

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local 
character and distinctiveness.  

 
Paragraphs 199 – 202 indicate that when considering the impact of a 
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, 
great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation…irrespective of 
whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less 
than substantial harm to its significance.. Any harm to, or loss of, the 
significance of a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, 
or from development within its setting), should require clear and convincing 
justification.  
 
Where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to (or total loss 
of significance of) a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities 
should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial 
harm or total loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that 
outweigh that harm or loss, or all of the following apply:  

a) the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; 
 and  

b) no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term 
through appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; and  

c) conservation by grant-funding or some form of not for profit, charitable or 
public ownership is demonstrably not possible; and  

d) the harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into 
 use.  

 
Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the 
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed 
against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, 
securing its optimum viable use.  

 
Paragraph 200 states that Local planning authorities should look for 
opportunities for new development within Conservation Areas and World 
Heritage Sites, and within the setting of heritage assets, to enhance or better 
reveal their significance. Proposals that preserve those elements of the setting 
that make a positive contribution to the asset (or which better reveal its 
significance) should be treated favourably. 
 
Paragraphs 203-205 require that the effect of an application on the significance 
of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in determining 
the application. In weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect non-
designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having 
regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage 
asset. Local planning authorities should not permit the loss of the whole or part 
of a heritage asset without taking all reasonable steps to ensure the new 

Page 60



development will proceed after the loss has occurred. 
 
 
Aligned Core Strategies (ACS) (2014) 
 
Policy A: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
Policy 1: Climate Change 
Policy 5: Nottingham City Centre 
Policy 7: Regeneration 
Policy 8: Housing Size, Mix and Choice 
Policy 10: Design and Enhancing Local Identity 
Policy 11: The Historic Environment 
Policy 14: Managing Travel Demand 
Policy 17: Biodiversity 
Policy 19: Developer Contributions 
 
Land and Planning Policies (LAPP) (2020) 
 
Policy CC1: Sustainable Design and Construction 
Policy CC3: Water 
Policy EE3: Change of use to non-employment uses 
Policy EE4: Local and Training Opportunities  
Policy RE1: Facilitation Regeneration 
Policy HO1: Housing Mix 
Policy HO5: Locations for Purpose Built Student Accommodation  
Policy HO6: Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and Purpose Built 
Student Accommodation 
Policy DE1: Building Design and Use 
Policy DE2: Context and Place Making 
Policy EN2: Open Space in New Development 
Policy EN6: Biodiversity 
Policy HE1: Proposals Affecting Designated and Non-Designated Heritage 
Assets 
Policy IN2: Land Contamination, Instability and Pollution 
Policy IN4: Developer Contributions 
Policy TR1: Parking and Travel Planning 

 
 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) 
 
 Biodiversity SPD (2020) 

 The Provision of open Space in New Residential and Commercial 
Development (2019) 

 
Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 

 Act 1990  

Even though the application site itself is not a designated listed building or 
within a Conservation Area, in the near vicinity there is one Grade II listed 
building (former bus garage) at 270-276 Huntingdon Street. As such 

Page 61



consideration needs to be given to section 66 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 which places a duty on local 
planning authorities to have special regard to the desirability of preserving a 
listed building or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historical 
interest which it possesses.  

The duty requires considerable importance and weight to be given to the 
desirability of preserving the setting of all listed buildings (including Grade II) 
however, it does prevent the granting of planning permission. A balancing 
exercise must be undertaken between the harm caused and the benefit the 
development will bring.  

 
7. APPRAISAL 
 
 Main Issues 
   

(i) Principle of the Development 
(ii) Design, Scale and Impact on Townscape and Heritage Assets 
(iii) Impact on the Amenities of Surrounding Residents and Future Occupants 
(iv) Highway Considerations 
(v) Other Matters 

 
 (i) Principle of the Development (Policies A, 5, 7 and 8 of the ACS, Policies 
EE3, RE1, HO1, HO5 and HO6 of the LAPP) 

 
7.1 The proposals would result in the redevelopment of a site which was last in 

retail/ employment use. Policy EE3 of the LAPP requires applications for the 
regeneration of previously used employment sites and premises to be 
assessed against certain criteria to ensure that there is a sufficient supply of 
alternative employment land and premises, and that the regeneration benefits 
of a particular scheme are also taken into consideration. The supporting text 
of the policy states that the developer should demonstrate that any loss of 
employment will not prejudice the supply of sites or premises available for 
employment use. This exercise should be related in scope to the scale of the 
existing employment use. Where the use is of local significance (defined as 
less than 0.4 ha), it will only be necessary to assess alternative supply in the 
locality of the proposal. 

 
7.2 The proposal is considered to be of local significance as the site area is only 

0.226 ha. The existing occupiers have no particular locational need to be in 
this edge of City Centre location and could easily relocate to alternative 
premises within other established industrial areas within the City. The existing 
buildings within the site are of an age and quality that have a limited future life 
that would allow for continued employment use without redevelopment. 
Moreover, the proposed development would create new full and part-time 
employment through construction, and the management and maintenance of 
the PBSA. On this basis, policy EE3 is felt to have been satisfied.  

 

Page 62



7.3 The proposal also needs to be considered against policies 5 and 8 of the ACS 
and policies HO5 and HO6 of the LAPP.  

 
7.4 Policy 5 of the ACS supports City Centre living initiatives including student 

housing where appropriate. Policy 8 of the ACS sets out, inter alia, that 
residential development should maintain, provide and contribute to a mix of 
housing tenures, types and sizes in order to create sustainable, inclusive and 
mixed communities. This includes the development of PBSA in appropriate 
locations, to help reduce the demand for HMO properties and the negative 
impact that high concentrations of these can have on local communities. 

 
7.5 Policy HO5 (Locations for Purpose Built Student Accommodation) and HO6 

(Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and Purpose Built Student 
Accommodation) are also relevant in this regard. Policy HO5 identifies the 
locations where PBSA will be appropriate, subject to a justification for the 
need of the accommodation. It  encourages PBSA within the City Centre 
boundary, subject to accordance with site and area specific policies.. Policy 
HO6 states that HMO/PBSA development will only be granted where it does 
not conflict with policies HO1 (Housing Mix) and HO2 (Protecting C3 
Dwellings) and does not undermine local objectives to create or maintain 
sustainable, inclusive and mixed communities. 

 
7.6 The provision of further good quality PBSA in the City Centre is likely to attract 

students that would otherwise occupy houses of multiple occupation outside 
of the City Centre, freeing up such accommodation for families and assisting 
in rebalancing communities currently with high concentration of student 
occupation. The scheme would therefore help to deliver an important element 
of the Council’s housing policy, including the long term aim to promote high 
quality PBSA in the right locations. It would not only help to meet the housing 
needs of a growing student population, and reduce the demand on the City’s 
existing housing stock, but also have a broader role to play in facilitating 
redevelopment of key sites within the City Centre, adding vitality and the 
economic benefits of regeneration in these areas. 

 
7.7 In spite of the Covid 19 pandemic, monitoring reports on the provision of 

student accommodation have consistently illustrated the need to maintain an 
on-going supply of additional bedspaces in order to meet increases in the 
number of students attending further education courses within the City. The 
strategy to meet this on-going supply has been, in part, to focus upon the 
provision of high quality PBSA within the City Centre, in accordance with 
policy HO5 of the LAPP.. Policy HO6 of the LAPP requires assessment of the 
concentration of student households when considering new student 
accommodation, other than the areas identified within policy HO5 as being 
suitable for such development, as referred to above. 

 
7.8  Policy HO6 also requires that schemes are designed in such a way that they 

are capable of being re-configured through internal alterations to meet general 
housing needs in the future. It is evident from the applicant’s submission that 
the building could be adapted to become an apartment building with no 
significant intervention to its structure or envelope. In addition, stairs are 

Page 63



provided in positions that would allow cluster flats and studios to become 
individual apartments of 1, 2 or 3 bedrooms. The policy requirement for 
adaptability is therefore met.   

 
7.9  In light of the above, the principle of the proposed scheme is considered to be 

acceptable in accord with policies A, 5, 7 and 8 of the ACS, policies EE3, 
RE1, HO1, HO5 and HO6 of the LAPP. 

 
(ii) Design, Scale and Impact on Townscape and Heritage Assets 
(Policies 10 and 11 of the ACS, Policies DE1, DE2 and HE1 of the LAPP. S66 
of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990) 

 
7.10  The majority of the buildings within the site boundary are in a poor state of 

repair and of little or no architectural value, particularly within a City Centre 
context. Redevelopment of the site with buildings of an appropriate scale and 
design would offer the opportunity to improve the contribution the site makes 
to local character. 

 
7.11 The submitted scheme has been developed through extensive pre-application 

and post submission discussions in relation to its design, scale, mass and 
form. The Civic Society has raised concern about the scale/height of the 
proposed development, some of which was shared by officers. The scheme 
has been revised accordingly by reducing one storey above the existing Art 
Deco building and with a redesign of the top floor fronting Perth Street, which 
has been slightly recessed and a more glazed treatment introduced.   

 
7.12 The scale and massing of the proposed scheme has been developed in light 

of the neighbouring development on surrounding streets and by responding 
separately to the particular context of each street frontage. The tallest 
elements (7 storeys) would be situated on the Huntingdon Street frontage, 
acting as a focal when viewed along this primary radial route. The 
development then changes to reflect the different environments along Howard 
Street (5 storeys) and Perth Street (7 storeys but with a recessed and 
lightweight top floor), forming appropriately scaled frontages which activate 
the street and public realm and respond sympathetically to adjacent buildings. 
Attention is in particular focused on the heritage asset within the site which 
becomes assimilated into the overall block, acting as a striking feature of the 
Huntingdon Street frontage. It also respects the historic frontage that along 
with the adjacent heritage assets, it forms an important part of. Whilst the 
concerns raised by the Civic Society regarding this building are noted, the 
proposal is felt to have been a considered and respectful approach to its 
integration within the overall scheme. 

 
7.13 For most of the external facades, brick is proposed as the primary material, 

with the addition of detailed elements in glazed terracotta and perforated 
metal panels. Lighter grey blends are proposed for elevations which sit as a 
backdrop, such as that of the courtyard area and behind the retained Art Deco 
facade. Revisions to the scheme to enhance its design have included: 

 
• Creation of a gap between the Howard Street elevation and new 

Page 64



second floor above the retained Art Deco facade  
• Strengthening of the entrance within the existing building and glazed 

link to Howard Street 
• Redesign of end elevations to both the Howard street and Huntingdon 

Street blocks where they site above the retained facade, to provide 
more interest and reduce mass  

• Redesign of the Huntingdon Street elevation to provide a better 
relationship with the Art Deco frontage. Verticality and detail have been 
improved, colour and symmetry added. The brickwork has been taken 
down to street level.  

• Clerestory introduced (and further refined) to the Perth Street frontage 
and a vertical dark brick introduced between the red brick and the 
buff/grey brick elements on Huntingdon Street and Perth Street 
respectively. Perth Street streetscape opened up with more soft 
landscaping and appropriate boundary enclosure.  

 
7.14  The existing Art Deco building to the corner of Huntingdon Street and Howard 

Street makes a positive contribution to the character of the immediate area. 
The proposed retention and refurbishment of the facade of this building would 
therefore have a positive impact on the street scene. The overall scheme 
would also assist in repairing the frontages of this urban block on Howard 
Street and Perth Street, whilst uplifting the street scene on Huntingdon Street. 

 
7.15 With regards to the impact of the proposal on local heritage assets, the crucial 

aspect for consideration is: 
 

• Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990, and the duty of having special regard to the desirability of 
preserving a listed building or its setting, or any features of special 
architectural or historical interest which it possesses 

 
7.16 The NPPF glossary states that: “The setting of a heritage asset is the 

surroundings in which it is experienced. Its extent is not fixed and may change 
as the asset and its surroundings evolve. Elements of a setting may make a 
positive or negative contribution to the significance of an asset, may affect the 
ability to appreciate that significance or may be neutral”. 

 
7.17 In this instance,  the Grade II listed  former bus depot   at 270 -276 

Huntingdon Street is located adjacent to the site.. The building is a little-
altered, purpose-built bus garage designed in a 'Modern' style for the Barton 
Transport bus company. It was completed in 1939 and is a distinctively 
detailed example of inter-war transport architecture. There is a strong 
correlation between this and the similarly Art Deco styled building on the 
corner of Huntingdon Street/Howard Street within the application site.  This is 
not of national significance but  a locally listed heritage asset, which is  of low 
to medium significance. The most significant element of this building is its 
façade and the scheme has therefore be designed around its retention and, 
indeed, incorporation as a feature of the development. The remainder of this 
building is not of such significance and its demolition is therefore considered 
to be acceptable, within the context of the overall design of the scheme. Not 

Page 65



only does this retained façade help to preserve the setting of the neighbouring 
listed building, but the associated reduction in the scale of the development on 
this corner does likewise.  It is considered that any harm to either of these 
heritage assets would be less than substantial and outweighed by the public 
benefit of regenerating this brownfield site, in both townscape terms and also 
through the provision of much needed student accommodation in an 
appropriate location. 

 
7.18 It is concluded above that the proposed development would have a positive 

visual impact upon the site and its surroundings. The scheme would not 
impact on any key views identified with the Nottingham Urban Design Guide 
and it is considered that the site would not appear or disrupt any wider viewing 
corridors. In relation to the statutory duty imposed by sections 66 of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, it is concluded 
that the setting of the adjacent listed bus garage would be enhanced. 

 
7.19 Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would provide a range 

of positive benefits that would represent a significant enhancement when 
compared with the current site characteristics. Subject to precise materials, 
landscaping and building management details being secured by condition, it is 
considered that the development would be a positive addition to the site and 
wider townscape in accord with policies 10 and 11 of the ACS and policies 
DE1, DE2, HE1 and HE2 of the LAPP. 

 
(iii) Impact on the Amenities of Surrounding Residents and Future 
Occupants (Policy 10 of the ACS, Policies DE1 and IN2 of the LAPP) 
 

7.20 Representation received from a local resident has raised concern about 
potential noise, waste and antisocial behaviour generated by the proposed 
PBSA. The Ward Councillor has also raised concern about impact of further 
student accommodation on the St Ann’s community. 

 
7.21 Whilst the potential for antisocial behaviour will always exist in student 

developments, a student management plan as a requirement of the S106 
obligation would include a commitment for an operator to work proactively with 
the local community, including 24 hour contact details and community liaison. 
Restrictions on keeping private vehicles within the City would also be applied 
and has been a proven deterrent to the potential impact of car parking. It is 
therefore considered that appropriate student management measures would 
mitigate the potential of any impact of the PBSA on the local community in 
accordance with Policy HO6 of the LAPP. 

 
7.22 The site itself is away from main residential areas and is very commercial in 

character and context. Its re-use to accommodate PBSA and to help meet the 
Council’s wider housing aspirations should therefore be supported.   

 
7.23 Noise impact and air quality assessments have been submitted for 

consideration as part of the application, which have been reviewed by 
Environmental Health (EH) colleagues and are considered to be acceptable. 
Standard conditions have been requested to address appropriate mitigation 

Page 66



measures. EH have also requested a Noise and Dust Management Plan to 
minimise disturbance to nearby residents during construction.  
 

7.24 The proposed rooms within the accommodation are of standard size with 
communal areas for the occupants of the building offering a variety of spaces 
for study, relaxation, socialising and entertainment. External amenity space 
would be situated within the courtyard at ground floor level. A secure ‘garden’ 
would be provided along the length of the building on Perth Street, providing a 
green buffer to the street, greater security and improved amenity. 

 
7.25 The proposal therefore complies with policy 10 of the ACS and policies DE1 

and IN2 of the LAPP in this regard. 
 
(iv) Highway Considerations (Policies 10 and 14 of the ACS, Policy TR1 of 
the LAPP) 
 

7.26 The application is supported by a detailed Transport Statement which has 
been reviewed by Highways colleagues. Policy TR1 of the LAPP seeks to 
preclude development that would be detrimental to highway safety and to 
ensure that proposals include a sufficient package of measures to minimise 
journeys by private car and support journeys by sustainable modes of 
transport, in line with the transport hierarchy set out within policy 14 of the 
ACS.  

 
7.27 The proposal does not include any on-site parking provision, which is 

considered appropriate given the site’s location within the City Centre, and 
proximity to sustainable transport modes and core services.  

7.28 It is proposed to provide 80 cycle spaces within the site. NCC’s current 
requirements for cycle storage are 1 cycle space per 4 bed spaces, plus 1 
cycle space per 5 visitors. Based on a total number of beds of 294 – this 
would result in a provision of 132 total cycle spaces. However, given the prime 
city centre location, with local amenities all being within a short walking 
distance, a reduced provision of cycle parking spaces is acceptable. The cycle 
parking would be internal and secure, accessed directly from the building and 
via the secure access way connecting Perth Street and Howard Street. 

  
7.29 No objections have been raised by Highways colleagues and subject to their 

recommended conditions, the development is considered to accord with 
policies 10 and 14 of the ACS and policy TR1 of the LAPP. 

 
(v) OTHER MATTERS 

 
Flood Risk and Drainage (Policy 1 of the ACS, Policy CC3 of the LAPP) 

 
7.30 The site is located within Flood Zone 1 in accordance with Environment 

Agency Flood Map. The application has been reviewed by Drainage 
colleagues and the Environment Agency and no objection raised to the 
proposed development. The site has historically been occupied by built form 
and it is not considered that the proposed development would significantly 

Page 67



alter the flood profile in the area. Further information submitted by the 
applicant has confirmed that the proposal would reduce discharge rates by at 
least 30% (and achieve a greater betterment for more significant events). This 
would be achieved by attenuation and flow control, and with permeable lined 
paving systems. There would also be a green roof which would contribute to 
the overall benefit of the site. All these measures are welcomed by the 
Drainage team. The development therefore accords with policy 1 of the ACS 
and policy CC3 of the LAPP.  
 
Archaeology (Policy HE1 of the LAPP) 
 

7.31 The site is within an area of known medieval activity and the desk based 
assessment has demonstrated that there is potential for archaeological 
remains of medieval and post medieval date, including caves, to survive on 
the site. Conditions relating to a programme of archaeological works, initially 
consisting of an archaeological evaluation, have been requested by the 
Council’s Archaeologist and can be secured by condition. 

 
 Contamination (Policy IN2 of the LAPP) 
 
7.32 A ground contamination report has been submitted with the application and 

reviewed by EH. They have raised no objection and requested standard 
conditions to deal with the risks associated with ground, groundwater and 
ground gas contamination of the site.  

 
Planning Obligations (Policy 19 of the ACS, Policies IN4, EN2 and EE4 of 
the LAPP) 

 
7.33 In order to comply with the requirements of the relevant development plan 

policy and Supplementary Planning Guidance, the developer is required to 
enter into a section 106 obligation to secure the following: 

 
 Public Open Space - a financial contribution of £302,987 (294 bedspaces x 

£1031). The contribution is based on the formula within the Council's Open 
Space Supplementary Planning Guidance, and would be used towards the 
provision or enhancement of off-site open space or public realm. This 
contribution is in accordance with policy 16 of the ACS and policy IN4 of the 
LAPP. 

 
Local Employment and Training (LE&T) - the provision of LE&T opportunities, 
including a financial contribution of £42,316 to facilitate the targets set out 
within the LE&T Plan. This is in accordance with the requirement of policy 
EE4 of the LAPP. 
 
A student management plan. The plan shall include contact details for those 
responsible for managing the behaviour of future residents, provisions to 
prevent students from keeping a motor vehicle in the City whilst in occupation 
at the accommodation, and arrangements for waste and litter management. 
 
 

Page 68



8. Sustainability/Biodiversity (Policies 1 and 17 of the ACS, Policies CC1 and 
EN6 of the LAPP) 

 
8.1 The proposal would deliver long-term biodiversity enhancements to a site that 

is currently devoid of habitats or features of ecological value. The 
enhancement proposals include a planting scheme within the inner courtyard 
and along the frontage to Perth Street. The proposal also include two semi 
extensive green roofs to maximise biodiversity enhancements. Three 
integrated bat boxes and 6 woodstone/woodcrete bird boxes are to be 
provided on the walls of new buildings to enhance roosting and nesting 
opportunities within the site. Four invertebrate boxes would be also provided 
(3 within green roof areas and 1 within inner courtyard). The above measures 
would ensure biodiversity enrichment across the site and in accordance with 
the Biodiversity SPD. The implementation of the proposed enhancement 
measures can be secured through condition. The proposal is therefore in 
accordance with policies 1 and 17 of the ACS and policies CC1 and EN6 of 
the LAPP. 

 
8.2 An Energy statement and Sustainability report has been submitted as part of 

the application. This set out the following sustainability measures to be 
incorporated into the scheme: 

• A fabric first approach is being adopted. The proposal includes insulation 
specification which would deliver a minimum 30% increase to the Building 
Regulation requirement for levels of thermal insulation. 
 

• The Air Permeability target would deliver a minimum 60% improvement on air 
permeability requirements. The proposed ventilation strategy, inclusive of 
mechanical ventilation heat recovery (MVHR), works well with lower air 
permeability. This should improve the efficiency of the units installed and 
ensure heat remains within the development as well as adequate ventilation 
levels. Currently the design would recover approximately 80% of all the heat 
from extracted air. 
 

• The inclusion of Air Source Heat Pumps to provide the whole buildings hot 
water demand, as well as heating and cooling demands to the communal 
spaces. This is in accordance with the aim of Council’s CN2028 to heat 
buildings through low carbon or renewable technologies. The living 
accommodation is to be heated via direct electric heating and whilst this is not 
a low carbon or renewable technology, grid electric is continuing to 
decarbonise thus the CO2 emissions associated with this form of heating 
should continue to decline over time.  
 

9 Financial Implications 
 
 Financial contributions as detailed above are in accordance with policies IN4, 

EN2 and EE4 of the LAPP and relevant Supplementary Guidance.  

 

 

Page 69



10 Legal Implications 
 
The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. 
Should legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting. 
 
There is an overarching statutory duty imposed by s.66(1) of the Planning 
 (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, requires considerable 
weight to be given  to the desirability of preserving the setting of all listed 
buildings,.  
 

11 Equality and Diversity Implications 
 
The proposed development has been designed to be compliant with current 
Building Regulation standards in terms of accessibility and requirements 
under the Disability Discrimination Act. The building will have accessible 
doors and corridors suitable for wheel chair users and lifts are proposed at 
every stair core. 
 

12 Risk Management Issues 
 
None. 
 

13 Strategic Priorities 
 
Neighbourhood Nottingham: Redevelopment of a partially cleared brownfield 
site with a high quality, sustainable and mixed-use development 
 
Safer Nottingham: The development enhances the surrounding pedestrian 
environment and incorporates active ground floor frontages that would 
contribute to a safer and more attractive neighbourhood 
 
Working Nottingham: Ensuring Nottingham’s workforce is skilled through 
Local Employment and Training opportunities 
 

14 Crime and Disorder Act implications 
 
The development would enhance natural surveillance in and around the site.   
 

15 Value for money 
 
None. 
 

16 List of background papers other than published works or those 
disclosing confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 21/01023/PFUL3- link to online case file: 
https://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-
applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage 
 
 

Page 70

https://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage


17 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
NPPF (2021) 
 
Aligned Core Strategies – Local Plan Part 1 (2014) 
 
Land and Planning Policies – Local Plan Part 2 (2020) 
 

 Biodiversity (2020) SPD 

 The Provision of open Space in New Residential and Commercial 
Development (2019) SPD 

 
Contact Officer:  
Mohammad Taufiqul Islam, Case Officer, Development Management.  
Email: Mohammad.Taufiqul-Islam@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

 

Page 71

mailto:Mohammad.Taufiqul-Islam@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


Key
°0 0.025 0.05 km

NOMAD printed map

© Crown copyright and database right 2021. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317. Aerial photography © Getmapping Plc and Bluesky International Limited 2019.
NOMAD print generated by a NOMAD user on 14/09/2021. THIS MAP IS UNSUITABLE FOR PUBLICATION: contact gi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk for high quality maps.

City Boundary No description provided
Description

Copyright Nottingham City Council, © Crown Copyright and database right 2020. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317.

Page 72



 
   

   

1 Continued… DRAFT ONLY 
Not for issue 

 

My Ref: 21/01023/PFUL3 (PP-09753713) 

 
Your Ref:  

Contact: Mr Mohammad Taufiqul-Islam   
Development Management 
City Planning 
Loxley House 
Station Street 
Nottingham 
NG2 3NG 
 
Tel: 0115 8764447 
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
 

Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

 
 
Franklin Ellis Architects  Andy Dowding 
The Old Pumphouse 
5 The Ropewalk 
Nottingham 
NG1 5DU 
United Kingdom 
 

Date of decision:  
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION 
 
  
Application No: 21/01023/PFUL3 (PP-09753713) 
Application by: Sean Akins 
Location: 248-262 , Huntingdon Street, Nottingham 
Proposal: Demolition and redevelopment including retention of corner facade to 

Huntingdon Street / Howard Street frontage to provide purpose built student 
accommodation 

  
 
Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby GRANTS PLANNING PERMISSION 
for the development described in the above application subject to the following conditions:- 
 
  

 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
 
 

 

Time limit 

Pre-commencement conditions 
(The conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the local planning authority 
for approval before starting work) 

Page 73



 
   

   

2 Continued… DRAFT ONLY 
Not for issue 

2. Prior to the commencement of development, a construction traffic management plan (including 
a demolition construction traffic management plan and a traffic management plan for above 
ground works) shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
Provision shall be made for the parking of all site operatives, visitors and construction vehicles 
when loading and offloading during the construction period. The construction traffic 
management plan shall also include a construction traffic routing agreement. 
 
The approved plan shall be implemented at all times whilst the development is under 
construction. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the construction of the development has no adverse impact on the 
local highway network and has no significant impact on neighbouring properties to accord with 
policy DE1 and TR1 of the LAPP. 

3. Prior to the commencement of the development, a Remediation Strategy should be designed 
based on a phase II site investigation that includes the following components to deal with the 
risks associated with ground, groundwater and ground gas contamination of the site shall be 
submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:  
 
a) A Site Investigation, based on Phase I Geo-Environmental Desk Study Report by 
GeoDyne referenced 40260 dated 22nd January 2021  
 
b) a detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those 
off site.  
 
c) A Remediation Plan, based on a) and b) above, giving full details of the remediation 
measures required and how they are to be undertaken (including a contingency plan for 
dealing with any unexpected contamination not previously identified in the Site Investigation).  
 
d) A Verification Plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to 
demonstrate that the works set out in c) above are complete. 
 
The Remediation Strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless 
varied with the express written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 
Reason: To ensure that any contamination of the site is adequately dealt with and to accord 
with policy IN2 of the LAPP. 
 

Page 74



 
   

   

3 Continued… DRAFT ONLY 
Not for issue 

4. Prior to the commencement of development a detailed Noise and Dust Management Plan shall 
be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
 
The Noise and Dust Management Plan shall identify the types and locations of works which 
are likely to cause noise and dust disturbance to sensitive receptors and:   
- Minimise noise and dust arising from such works by technical and physical means, and 
through work scheduling & management best practice 
- Identify (and make stakeholders aware of) the person responsible for recording, 
investigating & dealing with complaints from residents 
- Set out a communication strategy to keep regulators, resident and other stakeholders 
advised well in advance of specific works which are likely to cause noise and dust disturbance  
- Ensure that as much of the disruptive / noisy / dust generating work as possible is 
carried out during the normal construction operating hours  
- Regularly review the Noise and Dust Management Plan. Any amendments which may 
have an impact on noise or dust sensitive receptors shall be agreed in advance with the 
regulator and communicated to all other stakeholders  
 
Reason: To ensure that amenity of the neighbouring residents are not adversely affected by 
noise and dust to accord with policy DE1 and IN2 of the LAPP. 

5. Prior to the commencement of the development, an environmental noise assessment and final 
sound insulation scheme shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  
 
Having regard for the indicative calculation and glazing scheme within the acoustic 
consultancy report by ADT dated April 2021, referenced ADT 3127/ENIA. The ultimate 
acoustic requirements should be based on basline measured data to include the LAFmax from 
impacts of any transportation noise, noise from people on the street and be carried out whilst 
any premises and/or activities in the vicinity that are likely to have an adverse effect on noise 
levels are operating. In addition it shall include predicted noise levels for any plant and 
equipment which will form part of the development, octave band analysis and all assumptions 
made (e.g. glazing and façade areas).  
 
The sound insulation scheme shall include the specification and acoustic data sheets for 
glazed areas of the development and any complementary acoustic ventilation scheme and be 
designed to achieve the following internal noise levels:  
 
i. Not exceeding 30dB LAeq(1 hour) and not exceeding NR 25 in bedrooms for any hour 
between 23.00 and 07.00,  
ii. Not exceeding 35dB LAeq(1 hour) and not exceeding NR 30 for bedrooms and living 
rooms for any hour between 07.00 and 23.00, 
iii. Not normally more than 45dB LAmax(1 min) in bedrooms (measured with F time 
weighting) between the hours of 23.00 and 07.00, 
iv. Not more than 50dB LAeq(1 hour) for garden areas (including garden areas associated 
with residential homes or similar properties).  
 
The sound insulation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 
unless varied with the express written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that future occupants of the building are not adversely affected by noise to 
accord with policy DE1 and IN2 of the LAPP. 

Page 75



 
   

   

4 Continued… DRAFT ONLY 
Not for issue 

6. Prior to the commencement of any above ground development, following detailed design 
elements shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
 
a) Elevations: the glazing system/window frames, ventilation louvers (if any),reveals, brick 
detailing ; 
b)   a large scale sample panel of all proposed materials to be used on the external elevations 
of the approved development shall be constructed on site and reviewed and agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Confirmation of all the proposed external materials shall also 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before above ground 
development commences and the development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance 
with the approved materials. 
 
The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
 
 
Reason:  In order to ensure an appropriate quality of finish to the approved development and 
in accordance with policy 10 of the ACS and policy DE1 of the LAPP. 

7. No development involving the breaking of ground shall take place unless a programme of 
archaeological investigation and works has first been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The programme of archaeological investigation and works shall 
include: 
 
a) an archaeological evaluation of the site; 
b) arrangements, supported by the conclusions of an archaeological evaluation, for the 
excavation of the affected areas, and the implementation of a watching brief during the course 
of the development; 
c) arrangements for the recording of any finds made during the investigation and for the 
preparation of a final report; 
d) arrangements for the deposition of the records of finds, and any significant finds, capable of 
removal from the site, in a registered museum; and 
e) arrangements for the publication of a summary of the final report in an appropriate journal. 
 
The archaeological investigation and works approved under this condition shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved programme. 
 
Reason: To investigate the presence or absence of caves within the site and to ensure that 
any archaeological remains of significance are safeguarded in accordance with policy 11 of 
the ACS and policy HE2 of the LAPP. 

8. Notwithstanding the submitted application documentation, prior to the commencement of 
above ground development, details of the sustainability measures to be incorporated into the 
development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development incorporates sustainable design features to accord 
with policy 1 of the ACS and policy CC1 of the LAPP. 

 
 

 Pre-occupation conditions 
(The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is occupied) 

Page 76



 
   

   

5 Continued… DRAFT ONLY 
Not for issue 

9. Prior to first occupation of the development, verification that the approved scheme based on 
the Air quality Assessment by GEM Air Quality Ltd, referenced AQ1914 dated April 2021and 
the Ventilation Statement by CouchPerryWilkes referenced 201233 dated 15/04/21 has been 
implemented and is fully operational and any scheme of maintenance required shall be 
submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 
Reason: To ensure that the scheme approved to improve the air quality within the local area 
has been implemented to accord with policy 10 of the ACS and policies DE1 and IN2 of the 
LAPP. 

10. Prior to first occupation of the development, the following shall be submitted to and be 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
 
a) A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, to 
demonstrate that the approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground gas contamination of 
the site has been fully implemented and completed.   
 
b) A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, to 
demonstrate that the approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground and groundwater 
contamination of the site has been fully implemented and completed.    
 
Reason: To ensure that any contamination of the site is adequately dealt with and to accord 
with policy IN2 of the LAPP. 

11. Prior to first occupation of the development, verification that the approved sound insulation 
scheme has been implemented and is fully operational shall be submitted to and be approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the sound insulation scheme approved to safeguard residential 
amenity and to deal with noise associated with the operation of the building has been 
implemented to accord with policy 10 of the ACS and policies DE1 and IN2 of the LAPP. 

12. Prior first occupation of the development, a landscaping scheme (both hard and soft 
landscaping, including surfacing and means of enclosure), shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Plants and trees shall be native species selected for 
their biodiversity value and shall include a focus on bee friendly planting. The landscaping 
scheme shall also include proposals for the on-going management and maintenance of the 
external areas of the site, in particular the living walls. 
 
The landscaping scheme shall be provided in accordance with the approved details within the 
first planting season following the completion of the development. Any trees or plants provided 
as part of the approved landscaping scheme which die or are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased within five years of being planted shall be replaced in the next planting 
season with other plants of a similar size and species, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Management and maintenance of the landscaping shall at all 
times be in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To secure a development of satisfactory appearance that accords with policies 10 
and 17 of the ACS and policies DE1 and EN6 of the LAPP. 

Page 77



 
   

   

6 Continued… DRAFT ONLY 
Not for issue 

13. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until provision has been 
made within the application site for the cycle parking for minimum of 80 spaces in accordance 
with details that shall first have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Cycle parking provision shall be covered and secure and that area shall 
not thereafter be used for any purpose other than the parking of cycles. 
 
Reason: To secure appropriate provision of cycle parking in order to encourage an alternative 
mode of transport and to accord with policy 14 of the ACS and TR1 of the LAPP.  

14. The development shall not be brought into use until the submission of a verification report that 
the enhancement measures set out in the Biodiversity Enhancement Report July 2021 has 
been implemented and is fully operational. 
 
Reason: In the interests of conserving protected species and the ecology of the development 
in accordance with Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy EN6 of the LAPP. 
 

15. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until such time that a 
traffic management scheme for the loading and unloading of vehicles collecting and delivering 
the belongings of occupants of the proposed student accommodation at the start and finish of 
each academic term, has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The 
traffic management scheme shall be exercised in accordance with the approved details unless 
varied by the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To avoid the prejudice to traffic conditions in the vicinity of the development site and 
in the interests of highway safety in accordance with policy TR2 of the LAPP. 

 
 

 

Standard condition- scope of permission 

S1. Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried 
out in complete accordance with the details described in the following drawings/documents: 
Drawing reference 2220 revision P4, received 24 August 2021 
Drawing reference 2221 revision P4, received 24 August 2021 
Drawing reference 2222 revision P4, received 24 August 2021 
Drawing reference 2223 revision P5, received 24 August 2021 
Drawing reference 2224 revision P4, received 24 August 2021 
Drawing reference 2225 revision P4, received 24 August 2021 
Drawing reference 2226 revision P4, received 24 August 2021 
Drawing reference 1210 revision P2, received 24 August 2021 
Drawing reference 2227 revision P3, received 24 August 2021 
 
 
Reason: To determine the scope of this permission. 

 
Informatives 
 
 1. Any access gates to the service access should be set back a minimum of 5 metres from the 
back of the highway boundary and shall open inwards to accommodate the largest length of vehicle 
accessing the car park. 
 
 2. The Highway Network Management team at Loxley House must be notified regarding when the 
works will be carried out as disturbance to the highway will be occurring and a construction 
management plan and/or highway licences may be required. Please contact them on 0115 

Regulatory/ongoing conditions 
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters) 

Page 78



 
   

   

7 Continued… DRAFT ONLY 
Not for issue 

8765293 or email Highway.Management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk. All costs shall be borne by the 
applicant. 
 
 3. Planning consent is not consent to work on the highway. To carry out off-site works associated 
with planning consent, approval must first be obtained from the Local Highway Authority. Approval 
will take the form of a Section 278 Agreement, and you should contact Highway Network 
Management on 0115 8765293 to instigate the process. It is strongly recommended that you make 
contact at the earliest opportunity to allow time for the process to be completed as you will not be 
permitted to work in the highway before it is complete. All associated costs will be borne by the 
developer. 
 
 4. TRO's - It may be necessary to amend and/or introduce temporary and permanent tro's to 
surrounding streets. This is a separate legal process and the Order(s) can be made on behalf of the 
developer by Nottingham City Council at the applicant's expense. It is strongly recommended that 
the applicant make contact at the earliest opportunity to discuss this and allow time for the process 
to be completed.  
 
Review of directional Signage - The applicant must contact TM to discuss directional signage for 
the proposed service access, in the interests of highway safety.  
 
Please contact Highway Network Management on 0115 876 5293 initially to instigate the process. 
For TRO advice and further information, the applicant is advised to contact Traffic Management on 
0115 8765245 or via email at Traffic.Management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk. All associated costs 
shall be borne by the applicant. 
 
 
   
 
STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING 
 
Nottingham City Council has a statutory responsibility for agreeing and registering addresses. If the 
development will create one or more new addresses or streets (for example a new build or 
conversion) please contact address.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk as soon as possible, 
quoting your planning application reference. Any addresses assigned outside of this process will not 
be officially recognised and may result in difficulties with service delivery. 
 
 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Wards Affected: Castle (May 2019)  Item No:  
 

Planning Committee 
22nd September 2021 

 
Report of Director of Planning and Regeneration 
 
The Island Quarter - Phase 2 , Nottingham 
 
1 Summary 
 
Application No: 21/01032/PFUL3 for planning permission 

 
Application by: AXIS on behalf of Conygar Nottingham Ltd. 

 
Proposal: Construction and operation of Purpose-Built Student 

Accommodation (PBSA) and associated hard and soft 
landscaping, foul and surface water drainage infrastructure, and 
local highway improvement works. 

 
The application is brought to Committee because it is a major application for a prominent 
site with important design and Highway considerations. 
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should have been determined 
by 24th August 2021 
 
2 Recommendations 
 
2.1 To GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION for the reasons set out in this report, subject to: 
 
(i) the further response of the Highway Authority confirming that the objection to 
the applicant’s proposed junction layout has been overcome. 
 
(ii) the indicative conditions substantially in the form of those listed in the draft 
decision notices at the end of this report; 
 
(iii) prior completion of a Section 106 planning obligation to secure: 
 

(a) a financial contribution of £724,460 towards the provision of off site Open Space  
 

(b) local employment and training benefits including opportunities in the 
construction and operational phases of development together with payment 
of a financial contribution towards employment and training; 
 
(c) a student management plan and restrictions on keeping private vehicles 
 

2.2 Power to determine the final details of both the terms of the planning obligation and 
the conditions of planning permission and listed building consent to be delegated to 
the Director of Planning and Regeneration. 
 
2.3 That Committee are satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning obligations sought are (a) 
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, (b) directly 
related to the development and (c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to 

Page 81

Agenda Item 4e



 
the development. 
 
3 Background 
 
3.1 The application relates to the north eastern corner of the wider Island Site and is 

bounded by Evelyn Street to the north, Manvers Street to the east and City Link to 
the South. The site is currently free from built development and comprises 
temporary car parking, on relatively flat land and semi-mature scrub vegetation. 

 
3.2 The planning application boundary has been drawn generously to encompass other 

areas where associated works that would constitute ‘development’ are proposed. 
For this reason, the planning application boundary area extends to 2.34 hectares.  

 
3.3 The application site falls within the defined city centre area of the adopted Land and 

Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (LAPP) and is 
within the defined Canal Quarter/Creative Quarter area of overlap. It also forms part 
of the larger Island Site allocation for mixed-use development Site Ref: SR59 - 
Canal Quarter - Island Site. 
 

3.4 In its association with the larger Island Site, which is also within the applicant’s 
ownership, the application site has a varied planning history reflecting various 
phases of piecemeal development. However, most relevant to this application is the 
Outline Planning Permission granted for the large-scale mixed-use redevelopment 
of the Island Site on 1 June 2020 (under planning reference 18/01354/POUT). This 
permission included floorspace allowance for student accommodation. 

 
3.5 Whilst the planning application now being submitted is a full application, and not an 

application for the approval of reserved matters pursuant to the above consent, it is 
intended to represent the second phase (Phase 2) of development at the Island 
Quarter, where this and subsequent detailed planning applications would respect 
the design principles and concepts established as part of the outline planning 
application process. 

 
4 Details of the proposal 
 
4.1 The application proposes a total of 23,079.2m2 of new gross external floorspace, 

comprising 702 No. student accommodation units, arranged in three multi-faceted 
blocks of differing heights around a central courtyard and pedestrianised ‘street’. 
The tallest block would comprise 12 storeys (Block A) with the remaining 2 blocks 
being 9 (Block B) and 8 (Block C) storeys high. The blocks would provide 284, 196 
and 226 units respectively, with blocks A and B providing cluster flats and block C 
providing studio flats. 

 
4.2 The building height, massing and design have evolved through an iterative process, 

involving extensive discussions and meetings at pre-application stage. The final 
design has been informed by the masterplan for the Island Site, the City Centre 
Urban Design Guide and the Facades Design Guide.  

 
4.3 In addition to the proposed student accommodation, the proposed development 

would include ancillary construction work, including new hard and soft landscaping 
(public realm), improvements to the local highway network (including changes to 
the Manvers Street junction), a new arterial foul and surface water drainage 
network, associated utilities infrastructure and temporary surface treatments. 
  

Page 82



 
Consultations and observations of other officers 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 
A total of 568 individual notification letters have been sent to neighbouring 
properties, including: 
 
1-11 Fishergate Point 
Unit A1, 6A, 6B, W2a, Premier inn, Media House City Link 
Studios, 1 Thorseby Street 
2-12 (evens), 18-162 (evens), Newark Crescent 
Offices within BioCity 
2 Pennyfoot Street 
Units 1, 2, 3A, 3B, 4, 5A, 5C, 6, 7A, 7B, 8 Davisella House, Lower Eldon Street37, 
99, Nottingham Theatre Trust, Manvers Street 
34-54 (evens) Marham Close 
 
The application has also been publicised by site and press notices. One citizen 
response has been received, objecting to the development on the following 
grounds: 
 

• Dispute the need for student accommodation detailed within the application. Is it 
really taking into account how much student accommodation is being built in the 
city at this time? 
 

• Concerned that this is a cheap way for developers to make money but is not 
necessarily serving Nottingham's interests. There is clearly a problem around 
student flats being exempt from business rates and that is why so many developers 
want to build them. I would urge the city council to address this issue in the round 
and look for a holistic solution - that is forward thinking - so there isn't a bubble 
created that will burst leaving Nottingham with lots of unwanted student flats. 
 

• Concerns that the Sneinton Dragon sculpture, the orchard that it sits in and the 
hermitage caves are not affected by this development. It is not very clear whether it 
is or not. It is very important to Sneinton's history, culture, heritage, food security 
and ecology that these things are not damaged, relocated or effected. 
 

• I am also concerned that the lovely view that we have from Sneinton of the city and 
the lace market sat on the hill will be blocked by these flats - and that it will change 
the feeling of the place. 
 

• In the light of the ecological and climate catastrophes that are under way I don't feel 
that this development has enough green space or enough thought about and 
provision for the local ecology. Is the development carbon neutral for example? It is 
vitally important that it is. 
 
 
Nottingham Civic Society: The height and intensity of this phase of the 
development does not accord with the scale of the approved outline permission in 
this part of the overall development site. 

 
The increase in height does not seem to be justified and conflicts with the advice in 
the Adopted City Centre Urban Design Guide which recognised that taller new 
buildings within the 'Tall Buildings Zone' should not only be reduced in height on the 

Page 83



 
edges adjoining traditionally scaled residential areas but should also avoid 
presenting a solid wall of development to these communities which creates an 
impenetrable visual barrier, cutting off cherished views and connections with the 
city centre. 

 
The intensity and scale would result in the buildings having an overbearing effect 
on the public space. Seven to twelve storeys is not a scale which lends itself well to 
a sense of community and security. The "private space" enclosed by the main 
blocks looks particularly oppressive. 

 
The use of an architectural 'crown' to distinguish the top of the building from the 
remainder of the elevation results in the impression of one building balancing on top 
of another, drawing attention to its overall height. The expression of the elevations 
could be interesting but the choice of sombre grey tones and reliance on vertical 
shafts of buff render which will discolour quickly will contribute to the overbearing 
effect. The CGIs supplied in the application documents do not give confidence that 
there will be a sufficient degree of depth in all the elevations necessary to carry off 
this form of repeated vertical piers successfully.  

 
Details of the main entrances depicting tapering solid walled enclosures below a 
brise soleil would be more welcoming if they were constructed in translucent 
material. 

 
The Manvers Street public-facing edge of the Island Site development will create a 
7 storied defensive wall facing on to low rise Sneinton, blocking out cherished views 
of the St Marys and the Lace Market skyline. A CGI image showing both the new 
development and its integration into the existing streetscape would demonstrate 
this problematic effect. 

 
The public benefits of this tall and intensive development should include some 
contribution to funding the restoration of the derelict listed Great Northern 
Warehouse and its unlisted neighbour the James Alexander Warehouse which, of 
course, are an integral part of the overall Island Quarter. 

 
 

Additional consultation letters sent to: 
 
Environmental Health: No objection subject to conditions requiring the 
pre-existing remediation strategy (Issue 1.1 dated 16th April 2021 (ref TE1319RS)) 
be updated to include reference to the previous investigation works and more 
recent investigative works, an updated Remediation Plan, based on the site 
investigation, giving full details of the remediation measures required and how they 
are to be undertaken and A Verification Plan providing details of the data that will 
be collected in order to demonstrate that the works set out in above are complete. 
 
 
Environment Agency: No objection subject to conditions requiring compliance with 
the submitted FRA and compliance with and verification with the various aspects 
set out within the submitted remediation plan. 
 
Highways: On site public realm enhancements and arrangement of internal 
streets/access are considered acceptable subject to conditions requiring removable 
bollards and restrictions on the locations of bin collections and student drop off (to 
Evelyn Street only). 

Page 84



 
 
Concerns remain in relation to the Manvers Street junction improvements, 
specifically in relation to the uncontrolled arm of the junction, which is to be located 
on the rail bridge structure where there are significant level differences between the 
Manvers Street carriageway and the development land.  This is of concern from a 
highway perspective and as such a detailed structural survey has been requested. 

 
 
Drainage: Details of how occupiers are to be made aware of the flood risk plan and 
evacuation procedures are required. As dwellings are proposed for the ground 
floor, it is imperative that measures are in place to ensure safety of the ground floor 
occupiers.  
 
With regard to the drainage strategy, the layout details have been provided but 
there are no supporting calculations or a proposed maintenance regime. These 
should be submitted to support the drainage layout. Additionally, exceedance 
routing to ensure third parties are not at risk should the drainage design be 
exceeded, are required.  
 
City Archaeologist: No objection. A comprehensive written scheme of 
investigation has been provided and approved by the City Archaeologist to enable a 
comprehensive intrusive investigation exercise, whereby the whole site is, 
essentially, ‘turned over’ prior to any excavation for foundations. A further condition 
requiring the submission of a full scheme of Archaeological Works is 
recommended.  
 
Biodiversity and Green Space Officer: Concerned about the omission of a 
green/brown roof on these buildings. The loss of the open mosaic habitat on 
previously developed land needs to be mitigated. Further details of how green roofs 
will be provided across the wider Island Site should be sought. 

 
The temporary high impact wildflower meadow is welcomed and will enhance the 
biodiversity of the site. 
 
Conditions requiring an ecological enhancement plan, lighting plan, landscape 
planting plan and maintenance plan should be imposed, in line with the 
recommendations detailed within the submitted Ecology report. 

 
 

Education: The proposed student accommodation does not generate any demand 
for school places. Therefore, there is no S106 education claim for this development. 
 

 
Pedals: Pedals in general welcomes opportunities that the current planning 
application present to improve and enable cycle and pedestrian activity within this 
area and support wider cycle/ pedestrian connectivity within our city. 
Pedals would like to see: 
• Assurance that the improvements (Framework Travel Plan 4.2.10) to cycle and 

pedestrian provision on City Link will take full account of the revised DfT Cycling 
Infrastructure Design Guidance standards stated in Local Transport Note (LTN) 
1/20 guidance with improved connections at both ends. 

• Pedestrian and cycle routes segregated on Manvers Street. 

Page 85



 
• Cycle parking provision meets NCC standards. The Framework Travel Plan 

(5.5.1) states that 270 secured covered cycle parking spaces will be provided for 
students and that this is less than the 310 required by NCC standards.  

• That full account is taken of cycle and pedestrian movements in redesigning the 
junction of this site with Manvers Street and Sneinton Hermitage and that these 
also meet the revised DfT guidance stated in LTN 1/20. 

 
 

Nottingham Local Access Forum: Overall Nottingham LAF welcomes the 
opportunities that the current planning application present to improve and enable 
cycle and pedestrian activity within this area and support wider cycle/ pedestrian 
connectivity within our city. 
Nottingham LAF would like to see 
• Assurance that the improvements (Framework Travel Plan 4.2.10) to cycle and 

pedestrian provision on City Link will take full account of the revised DfT Cycling 
Infrastructure Design Guidance standards stated in Local Transport Note (LTN) 
1/20 guidance with improved connections at both ends. 

• Pedestrian and cycle routes segregated on Manvers Street. 
• Cycle parking provision meets NCC standards. The Framework Travel Plan 

(5.5.1) states that 270 secured covered cycle parking spaces will be provided for 
students and that this is less than the 310 required by NCC standards.  

• That full account is taken of cycle and pedestrian movements in redesigning the 
junction of this site with Manvers Street and Sneinton Hermitage and that these 
also meet the revised DfT guidance stated in LTN 1/20. 

Nottingham LAF would also like assurance that the development adequately 
supports future cycle/ pedestrian activity. 
 
Others: 

 
6 Relevant policies and guidance 
 

Aligned Core Strategies 
 
Policy A: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
Policy 1: Climate Change 
Policy 5: Nottingham City Centre 
Policy 10: Design and Enhancing Local Identity 
Policy 17: Biodiversity 
 
Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 
 
Policy CC1: Sustainable Design and Construction 
Policy CC3: Water 
Policy DE1: Building Design and Use 
Policy DE2: Context and Placemaking 
Policy EE4: Local Employment and Training Opportunities 
Policy EN2: Open Space in New Development 
Policy EN6: Biodiversity 
Policy HE1: Proposals Affecting Designated and Non- Designated Heritage Assets 
Policy HO5: Locations for Purpose Built Student Accommodation 
Policy HO6: Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and Purpose Built Student 
Accommodation 
Policy IN2: Land Contamination, Instability and Pollution 
Policy IN4: Developer Contributions 

Page 86



 
Policy RE2: Canal Quarter (overlap) 
Policy RE3: Creative Quarter (overlap) 
Policy SA1 - Site Allocations (SR59: Canal Quarter - Island Site) 
Policy TR1: Parking and Travel Planning 
 
Island Site Nottingham Supplementary Planning Document (April 2016) 
 
NPPF (2021): 
 
The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development 
and that applications for sustainable development should be approved where 
possible.  Paragraph 126 notes that the creation of high quality, beautiful and 
sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and 
development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make 
development acceptable to communities. 
  
Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should 
ensure that developments: 
 
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short 
term but over the lifetime of the development;  
 
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 
effective landscaping; 
 
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging 
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);  
 
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 
places to live, work and visit;  
 
e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate 
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and 
support local facilities and transport networks; and  
 
f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health 
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and 
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life 
or community cohesion and resilience. 
 
 

 
7. Appraisal of proposed development 
 
 Main Issues 

  
(i) Student accommodation use and impact upon the amenity of neighbouring 

occupiers and the wider area. 
(ii) Scale, layout and design and impact upon the amenity of neighbouring 

occupiers and the wider area. 
(iii) Highway improvements 

Page 87



 
 
Issue (i) Student accommodation use and impact upon the amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers and the wider area. (ACS Policy 5 and LAPP Policies 
HO5, HO6, RE2, RE3 and SA1) 
 

7.1 The application site is part of an allocated larger development site in the LAPP 
(Policy SA1, Site Ref: SR59 - Canal Quarter - Island Site). The development 
principles to be applied to this allocation refer to the need for a comprehensive 
masterplan to enable the accelerated delivery of an attractive mixed use 
community, to include new open space and cycling and walking routes linking to the 
surrounding area. Policy RE2: Canal Quarter also repeats the need for a mixed use 
community in line with an agreed masterplan. 
 

7.2  Whist the development being proposed by this application is independent of the 
previously granted Outline Planning Permission, the applicant has stated their 
commitment to the design principles that were established as part of the outline 
planning process.  

 
7.3 The application site is located in the city centre and within convenient walking 

distance of Nottingham Trent University campus (including Confetti on Lower 
Parliament Street/Huntingdon Street), and city centre amenities. Policy 5 of the 
ACS also supports city centre living initiatives including student housing where 
appropriate. 

 
7.4 Policy HO5 of the LAPP acknowledges that purpose built student accommodation 

of an appropriate scale and design will be encouraged within the City Centre 
boundary, subject to accordance with site and area specific policies. 

 
7.5 Policy HO6 of the LAPP states that planning permission will be granted for purpose 

built student accommodation where this does not undermine local objectives to 
create or maintain sustainable, inclusive and mixed communities. In assessing the 
development’s impact on local objectives to create or maintain sustainable, 
inclusive and mixed use communities, regard is to be given to a range of criteria 
including student concentration, but with exceptions being made for those sites 
within areas identified in Policy HO5 where new purpose built accommodation is to 
be encouraged. The application site, being within the city centre, complies with this 
exception and is therefore considered to be appropriate in principle for this 
development based on its location. It is therefore considered that the proposed 
development accords with Policy HO5 and HO6 of the LAPP. 

 
7.6 Notwithstanding the potential impacts of the Covid 19 pandemic upon the future 

demand for student accommodation, monitoring reports on the provision of student 
accommodation have consistently illustrated the need to maintain an on-going 
supply of additional bedspaces in order to meet increases in the number of 
students attending further and higher education courses within the city. The 
strategy to meet this on-going supply has been to focus upon the provision of high 
quality purpose built accommodation within the city centre and thereby to attract 
students that could otherwise occupy houses of multiple occupation outside of the 
city centre. 

 
7.7 The previously granted Outline Planning Permission for the Island Site makes 

provision for up to 27,030 sq m of student accommodation (totalling 666 units) 
within the total quantum of floorspace allowed. The principle of accommodating 
large scale student accommodation provision has therefore already been reviewed 

Page 88



 
and accepted. It is acknowledged that the number of bedspaces in the current 
proposal represents an increase of 36, from that approved in the Outline 
permission, but given that this is contained within the same area of the site and will 
be subject of a Student Management Scheme, it is not considered that this increase 
would have any significant additional impact.  

 
7.8 The layout and mix of studio and cluster flat accommodation within the proposed 

development is arranged with rooms either facing out onto the surrounding streets 
or into the courtyard amenity space that is created between the buildings. The 
floorspace standards within the proposed accommodation are considered to be 
good, and with internal and external communal amenity space being provided for 
use by all student residents. 

 
7.9 Whilst the potential for antisocial behaviour will always exist in student 

developments of the scale being proposed, a student management plan is a 
requirement of the S106 agreement. This will include a commitment for an operator 
to work proactively with the local community, including 24 hour on-site management 
and community liaison. It is also considered that such on-site management will be 
capable of ensuring responsible behaviour within the communal courtyard space to 
be provided within the scheme.  

 
7.10 Restrictions on keeping private vehicles within the city will also be applied and has 

been a proven deterrent to the potential impact of car parking. It is therefore 
considered that appropriate student management measures will therefore minimise 
any impact of the student accommodation use on the local community in 
accordance with Policy HO6 of the LAPP. 

 
7.11 Accordingly, it is considered that the proposed scheme complies with Local Plan 

policies and in particular Policy 5 of the ACS and Policies RE2, RE3, SA1, HO5 and 
HO6 of the LAPP. 

 
 

Issue (ii) Scale, layout and design and impact upon the amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers and the wider area (ACS Policy 10 and LAPP Policies 
DE1, DE2, IN2 and SA1). 

 
7.12 The masterplan approved as part of the outline planning permission is continuing to 

evolve through ongoing discussions between the developer and the LPA. The 
design evolution has seen a greater importance given to the value of public realm, 
green space and connectivity. As a result, the proposed Linear Park or ‘Green 
River’ has been significantly extended, providing a loop of green space through the 
Island Quarter creating interesting vistas, better connected building frontages and 
higher quality public realm. It has also improved connectivity with the surrounding 
city. Consequentially, the arrangement and footprint of the Purpose Built Student 
Accommodation, approved under the previous Outline Permission, has also 
evolved and this is justified within the planning application submission. However, it 
is considered that the proposal will continue to respond to the proposed 
surrounding building mass, height, scale, geometry and proportions to enable the 
building to sit successfully within its current and proposed surroundings. It seeks to 
echo the finer urban grain of the emerging Masterplan, contributing to the creation 
of a diverse and characterful streetscape with improved connectivity within and 
beyond the site. The development is considered to provide a high quality living 
environment for students with integrated facilities as well as indoor and outdoor 
amenity space, including an internal courtyard and roof terrace. 

Page 89



 
 
 
7.13 It is considered that the proposed buildings are appropriate to the location and 

context (existing and proposed). In the City Centre Urban Design Guide the site 
forms part of a zone of reinvention, and is also at the easternmost edge of the Tall 
Buildings Zone, in close proximity to a site identified for a taller building. The height 
of the buildings is therefore considered appropriate and justified. The Civic 
Society’s comments are noted in relation to the massing guidance in the Design 
Guide (ground plus six storeys, reducing to ground plus four where the Eastside 
adjoins residential areas of Sneinton and St Anns). However, it is considered that 
the location of the site in the Tall Buildings Zone, opposite former industrial 
buildings and in proximity to the higher ground levels of Newark Crescent, and the 
character of Manvers Street as a wide, busy main arterial route into the city centre 
provides an appropriate context for buildings of greater height here. The building 
heights have been tested in the 3D city model and do not harm any of the views or 
vistas identified in the guide.  

 
7.14 The façade treatment is considered to be acceptable taking reference from 

surrounding buildings and their heritage rich context. The palette of materials, 
which also takes reference from surrounding buildings, is considered to be 
appropriate in context and would help to deliver a characterful and varied street 
frontage within the wider Island Site. Despite reservations from the Civic Society in 
relation to the use of the ‘Crown’ to distinguish the tallest parts of the buildings, it is 
felt that this is an appropriate way to address the height of the buildings, giving 
them a clear ‘top’ and adding interest to the corner focal point of the site.  

 
7.15 As detailed above, the arrangement of clusters and studios to provide adequate 

outlook over streets or the internal courtyard space, good space standards and 
access to on site facilities and external amenity space, would provide a high quality 
living environment for students, raising no concerns about impact upon residential 
amenity. The proposals would therefore comply with policy DE1 in this regard. 

 
7.16 In view of the above it is considered that the development proposed would comply 

with Policy 10 of the ACS and Policies DE1, DE2 and SA1 of the LAPP). 
 
 

Issue (iii) Highway and Public Realm improvements (Policies DE2 and TR1 of 
the LAPP) 
 

7.17 The overall objective for the public realm within the Island Quarter, is to achieve a 
coherent, high quality, attractive, clutter-free and safe public realm environment. 
The proposed PBSA scheme will include an improved interface with Manvers 
Street, where there will be a new footpath and cycleway. The Sneinton Hermitage 
junction is also to be reconfigured, with a new arrangement that will favour 
pedestrian and cycle movements from Sneinton (and from other areas further east) 
to the Island Quarter. The supporting documentation details aspirations for an area 
with pedestrian dominance with a layout that promotes interaction, encourages 
extended dwell time and provides a safe environment for play. Cycling as 
transportation is encouraged through the provision of plentiful cycle parking (final 
details of numbers are to be confirmed as detailed later in this report). 

 
7.18 The Highway Authority have indicated that bin collection and student pick up/drop 

off should be restricted to Evelyn Street in the interests of highway safety and this 
will be secured by condition. Although the applicant has purposefully proposed 

Page 90



 
minimal street furniture to maintain clear, legible and unimpeded pedestrian routes, 
the Highway Authority have requested the inclusion of removable bollards at the 
entry/access points to ensure that general traffic does not use the internal roads to 
the detriment of highway safety. A condition to this effect is recommended. 

 
7.19 Current NCC standards for student accommodation stipulate a minimum of 1 cycle 

parking space per 4 bedrooms, plus 1 space for visitors for every 5 beds which this 
proposal currently fails to provide. It is the recommendation of the Cycle Team that 
the cycle parking provision for the student accommodation is increased from the 
270 proposed spaces to the required standard of 317 spaces. This has been raised 
with the applicant and it is anticipated that a revised scheme for cycle parking will 
be provided ahead of the Committee meeting. 

 
7.20 Although the proposed alterations to the Manvers Street junction, which have been 

incorporated within this application to enable them to be brought forward, have 
been previously approved in principle (under the outline permission), details of 
traffic modelling to ensure that the new junction arrangements can work safely and 
satisfactorily, are required. Initial proposals presented with the current application 
raise questions about the new location of the uncontrolled arm of the junction, 
which is to be located on the rail bridge structure where there are significant level 
differences between the Manvers Street carriageway and the development land.  
This is of concern from a highway perspective and as such a detailed structural 
survey has been requested. Discussion are ongoing between the Highway 
Authority and the applicant and the latest position will be reported by way of an 
update to Committee. It should be noted that the conditions of the recommendation 
to grant planning permission, include a requirement that outstanding highway 
issues are resolved.  

 
 
 Other Matters (Policies CC3, IN2, HE1 of the LAPP) 
 
7.21 Nottingham Civic Society’s comments in relation to the Great Northern Warehouse 

and James Alexander Warehouse are noted. It is considered that the proposed 
PBSA buildings are sufficiently far away from these buildings, so as not to affect 
their setting. Whilst it remains an objective of the redevelopment of the island site to 
secure a long-term future for these buildings, it is considered that it would not be 
reasonable to seek a developer contribution for as yet un-designed and un-costed 
plans for the restoration of these buildings. Such a contribution did not form part of 
the planning permission and Section 106 agreed in relation to the outline planning 
permission for the site. It is however understood that the applicant, who has 
ownership of these buildings, remains committed to bringing forward proposals for 
these buildings at an appropriate point in the development of the wider site. 

 
7.22 The interim response of Highways is noted and the changes to the Manvers Street 

Junction are being discussed further with the applicant. It is envisaged that a 
solution will be agreed prior to the Committee Meeting and members will be 
informed by way of an update. 

 
7.23 The proposed cycle parking for the student accommodation is provided within a 

secure, undercover cycle store on the ground floor of the building. A total of 270 
cycle spaces will be provided for use by the students and their visitors. Concerns 
have been raised about the fact that this does not accord with the LAPP’s minimum 
standards for student occupants and visitors. Discussions are ongoing with the 
applicant and any amendments will be detailed by way of an update to Committee. 

Page 91



 
Subject to agreement of final numbers for cycle parking and appropriate conditions 
the proposed development is therefore considered to comply with LAPP Policy 
TR1. 

 
7.24 The response of Environmental Health is noted and reflected in the proposed 

conditions regarding ground contamination assessment in accordance with LAPP 
Policy IN2.  

 
7.25 The response of the Drainage team is noted and additional information has been 

requested from the applicant. On receipt of adequate details it is considered that 
the development would comply with LAPP Policy CC3. 

 
7.26 The Sneinton Dragon sculpture, the orchard that it sits in and the hermitage caves, 

which sit beyond the Island Site boundary, would not be affected by this 
development. 

 
7.27 As detailed above, the building heights have been tested in the 3D city model and 

do not harm any of the views or vistas identified in the guide. The loss of an existing 
view is not a material planning consideration for all developments. 

 
7.28 The applicant continues to maintain a close and constructive dialogue with the City 

Archaeologist in respect of excavations on site and a Written Scheme of 
Investigation has already been agreed to enable the preliminary investigations to 
continue prior to commencement of works. The City Archaeologist has confirmed 
that they are satisfied with this approach. The City Archaeologist has confirmed that 
a full program of archaeological work will need to be provided prior to 
commencement and a condition to this effect is recommended.  

 
8. Sustainability / Biodiversity (Policies 1 and 17 of the ACS and Policies CC1 and 

EN6 of the LAPP) 
 
8.1 The proposed building design aims to achieve an optimum use of energy through 

passive design including the maximisation of daylight; using heating, ventilation and 
air conditioning on a zoned basis; using LED lighting throughout, and improving 
thermal performance of the buildings’ fabric.  

 
8.2 An Air Source Heat Pump (ASHP) system is proposed to supply the domestic hot 

water demand of the PBSA development. This system has been designed to deliver 
both an energy efficient supply of heat but will also allow for a future connection to 
a masterplan scale heat or district network.  

 
8.3 A condition is recommended requiring verification that all of the above have been 

incorporated within the scheme, prior to its first occupation. 
 
8.4 The response of the Biodiversity team is noted and reflected in the proposed 

conditions for the incorporation of an Ecological enhancement scheme to include 
bat and bird boxes plus full planting details and use of native species in accordance 
with LAPP Policy EN6 and Policy 17 of the ACS. The applicant has committed to 
providing further information in relation to the wider biodiversity objectives for the 
Island Quarter, as a means of justification for the removal of the green roof from the 
scheme. This will be updated to Committee.  

 
 
 

Page 92



 
9 Section 106 (LAPP Policies HO6, IN4 and EE4) 
 
9.1  A range of S106 planning obligations were negotiated and concluded in association 

with the recently granted Outline Planning Permission for the redevelopment of the 
larger Island Site, including financial contributions towards highways improvements, 
open space improvements, future education provision, affordable housing, and 
local employment and training opportunities. The amount of these individual 
contributions were then to be determined by the scale and content of individual 
phases of development. 

 
9.2  Whilst this application is for full planning permission rather than for reserved 

matters following the grant of the outline planning permission, the applicant has 
indicated their intention to follow the terms of the previously agreed S106 and that 
the policy/SPD-derived obligations, insofar as they relate to Phase 2 will be met in 
full by the Developer. 
 

9.3  In accordance with The Provision of Open Space Within New Residential and 
Commercial Developments Supplementary Guidance open space contributions of 
£724,490 arising from the purpose built student accommodation with 702 
bedspaces is to be provided in accordance with Policies EN2 and IN4. 

 
9.4  It is estimated that the proposed development will deliver full-time equivalent 

construction jobs during the construction period and new operational jobs. The 
applicant has indicated that they will work with the Council’s Employment and Skills 
team in relation to these future local job opportunities, with a financial contribution 
in accordance with Policy EE4 of the LAPP. This contribution is in the process of 
being finalised and will be updated to Committee. 

 
9.5  The proposed obligations accord with planning policy and are therefore reasonable, 

meeting the tests of Regulation 122(2) of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010. 

 
10 Financial Implications 
 
 A financial contributions of £724,490 in accordance Policy IN4 and The Provision of 

Open Space within New Residential and Commercial Developments 
Supplementary Guidance. 

 
 

11 Legal Implications 
 
The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. Should 
legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting. 
 

12 Equality and Diversity Implications 
 
The provision of DDA compliant accessible buildings. 
 

13 Risk Management Issues 
 
None. 
 
 
 

Page 93



 
14 Strategic Priorities 

 
Encourage purpose built student accommodation in places where it reduces 
pressure on family housing. Ensuring that all planning and development decisions 
take account of environmental and sustainability considerations. Ensuring 
Nottingham’s workforce is skilled. 
 

15 Crime and Disorder Act implications 
 
Improved surveillance and community safety. 
 

16 Value for money 
 
None. 
 

17 List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing 
confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 21/01032/PFUL3 - link to online case file: 
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QSRY2ILYI9100 
 

18 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
Aligned Core Strategies – Local Plan Part 1 (2014) 
Land and Planning Policies – Local Plan Part 2 (2020) 
The Provision of Open Space Within New Residential and Commercial 
Developments Supplementary Guidance (2019) 
NPPF (2019) 
City Centre Urban Design Guide (2009) 
 

Contact Officer:  
Mrs Zoe Kyle, Case Officer, Development Management.  
Email: zoe.kyle@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.      Telephone: 0115 8764059

Page 94

http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=%5eND,KEYVAL.DCAPPL;
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=%5eND,KEYVAL.DCAPPL;


Key
°0 0.045 0.09 km

NOMAD printed map

© Crown copyright and database right 2021. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317. Aerial photography © Getmapping Plc and Bluesky International Limited 2019.
NOMAD print generated by a NOMAD user on 14/09/2021. THIS MAP IS UNSUITABLE FOR PUBLICATION: contact gi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk for high quality maps.

City Boundary No description provided
Description

Copyright Nottingham City Council, © Crown Copyright and database right 2020. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317.

Page 95



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

My Ref: 21/01032/PFUL3 (PP-09539088 200001412700)

Your Ref:

Contact: Mrs Zoe Kyle

Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

AXIS
FAO Alistair Yates
Camellia House 
76 Water Lane
Wilmslow
SK9 5BB
England

Development Management
City Planning
Loxley House
Station Street
Nottingham
NG2 3NG

Tel: 0115 8764447
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Date of decision: 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

Application No: 21/01032/PFUL3 (PP-09539088 200001412700)
Application by: Conygar Nottingham Ltd.
Location: The Island Quarter - Phase 2 , Nottingham, Evelyn Street 
Proposal: Construction and operation of Purpose-Built Student Accommodation (PBSA) 

and associated hard and soft landscaping, foul and surface water drainage 
infrastructure, and local highway improvement works.

Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby GRANTS PLANNING PERMISSION 
for the development described in the above application subject to the following conditions:-

 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

1

Time limit

Pre-commencement conditions
(The conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the local planning authority 
for approval before starting work)

Page 96



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

2. Prior to the commencement of the development, an updated Remediation Strategy that 
includes the following components to deal with the risks associated with ground gas 
contamination of the site shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority:

a) A Site Investigation, building on previous investigative work, and a detailed assessment of 
the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site. 

b) An updated Remediation Plan, based on the site investigation, giving full details of the 
remediation measures required and how they are to be undertaken. 

c) An updated Verification Plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to 
demonstrate that the works set out in above are complete. 

The Remediation Strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless 
varied with the express written approval of the Local Planning Authority. Understood and 
agreed.

Reason: To ensure that the site can be developed without health or safety risks to the 
environment and/or adjoining occupiers in accordance with Policy IN2 of the Land and 
Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

3. A) No demolition/development shall take place/commence until a programme of 
archaeological work including a Written Scheme of Investigation has been submitted to and 
approved by the local planning authority in writing. The scheme shall include an assessment of 
significance and research questions; and:  

1.      The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording  
2.      The programme for post investigation assessment  
3.      Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording  
4.      Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of the 
site investigation  
5.      Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site 
investigation  
6.      Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works set 
out within the Written Scheme of Investigation.  

B) No demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with the Written 
Scheme of Investigation approved under condition (A).  

C) The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation 
assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme set out in the Written 
Scheme of Investigation approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis, 
publication and dissemination of results and archive deposition has been secured. 

Reason:  To ensure that any archaeological remains of significance are safeguarded in 
accordance with Policy HE1 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document -
Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

2

Page 97



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

4. Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CTMP shall 
as a minimum include details of the type, size and frequency of vehicles to/from the site, haul 
routes (if any), staff parking provision (including subcontractors), site security, traffic 
management plans, wheel cleaning facilities and measures to prevent the deposit of debris on 
the highway and a timetable for its implementation. Thereafter the CTMP shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details and timetable unless otherwise agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of neighbouring developments in 
accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategies.

5. Prior to the commencement of above ground development confirmation of the proposed 
external materials, to include samples, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and the development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance 
with the approved materials.

Reason:  In order to ensure an appropriate quality of finish to the approved development and 
in accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy DE1 of the Land and 
Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

6. Prior to the commencement of above-ground development a landscaping scheme (hard and 
soft materials, including surfacing and means of enclosure), shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be
implemented in accordance with the approved scheme unless varied with the prior written 
consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development will be satisfactory in accordance 
with Policy 10 of the Adopted Core Strategies (2014) and Policy DE1 of the Land and Planning 
Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

7. Prior to the commencement of the fit out for the Cafe, an environmental noise assessment and 
sound insulation scheme shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The environmental noise assessment shall provide sufficient detail to 
demonstrate that the combined noise from any mechanical services plant or equipment 
(including any air handling plant) specified to serve the development and running at 100% load 
shall not exceed a level 10dB below the existing ambient LA90 background noise level, at a 
point 1 metre from the window of any nearby noise sensitive premises at any time during the 
relevant operational
period of the development.

No items of plant or equipment (either singly or in combination) shall have a distinguishable, 
discrete continuous note (whine, hiss, screech, hum) and/or distinct impulses (bangs, clicks, 
clatters, thumps).

The sound insulation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 
unless varied with the express written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that occupants and neighbouring properties to the development do not 
experience noise nuisance in accordance with Policy IN2 of the Land and Planning Policies 
Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

8. Prior to the commencement of the fit out for the Cafe, a scheme for the ventilation and means 
of discharging and dispersing fumes and the prevention of nuisance caused by odour from the 
development shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

3

Page 98



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

The submission shall include an odour risk assessment, the design configuration, odour 
abatement technology and specification for the scheme for the ventilation and means of 
discharging and dispersing fumes from development.

Reason: To ensure that occupants and neighbouring properties to the development do not 
experience odour nuisance in accordance with Policy IN2 of the Land and Planning Policies 
Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

9. Prior to first occupation of the development, the following shall be submitted to and be 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

a) A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the Verification Plan, to 
demonstrate that the approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground gas contamination of 
the site has been fully implemented and completed.

b) A Verification Report, which shall include the data referred to in the 'Remediation Strategy, 
Options Appraisal and Verification Plan for Phase 2, The Island Quarter, Nottingham' Issue 1.1 
dated 16th April 2021 (ref TE1319RS) and any subsequent updated reports, to demonstrate 
that the approved Remediation Strategy to deal with ground and groundwater contamination of 
the site has been fully implemented and completed. 

Reason: To ensure that the site can be developed without health or safety risks to the 
environment and/or adjoining occupiers in accordance with Policy IN2 of the Land and 
Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

10. Prior to the first use of the ground floor cafe, The applicant shall submit written verification to 
the Local Planning Authority that the approved mechanical services plant or equipment 
(including any air handling plant) specified to serve the development including any mitigation 
measures have been implemented.

Reason: To ensure that occupants and neighbouring properties to the development do not 
experience noise nuisance in accordance with Policy IN2 of the Land and Planning Policies 
Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

11. Prior to first use of the ground floor cafe, verification that the approved scheme for the 
ventilation and means of discharging and dispersing fumes and prevention of odour nuisance 
has been implemented and is fully operational shall be submitted to and be approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that occupants and neighbouring properties to the development do not 
experience odour nuisance in accordance with Policy IN2 of the Land and Planning Policies 
Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

4

Pre-occupation conditions
(The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is occupied)

Page 99



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

12. Prior to occupation of any part of the development the applicant shall submit written 
verification to the Local Planning Authority that the approved mechanical services plant and 
equipment specified in the 'Residential Planning Noise Report' by Sandy Brown dated 15th 
April 2021 (ref 21046-R01-B) (revB) has been implemented If any changes are made these 
should be submitted for approval prior to implementation of the scheme.

Reason: To ensure that occupants and neighbouring properties to the development do not 
experience noise nuisance in accordance with Policy IN2 of the Land and Planning Policies 
Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

13. Prior to first occupation of the development, verification that the approved sound insulation 
scheme specified in 'Residential Planning Noise Report' by Sandy Brown dated 15th April 
2021 (ref 21046-R01-B) (revB) has been implemented and is fully operational shall be 
submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that occupants and neighbouring properties to the development do not 
experience noise nuisance in accordance with Policy IN2 of the Land and Planning Policies 
Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

14. Prior to the occupation of the development, a verification report demonstrating the completion 
of works set out in the approved remediation strategy (Phase 1B Remediation Strategy and 
Verification Plan, Tier Environmental, 14th
December 2020) and the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to, and approved 
in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. The report shall include results of sampling and 
monitoring carried out in accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that 
the site remediation criteria have been met.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put at unacceptable 
risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution in line with 
paragraph 109 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy CC3 of the Land and 
Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020.

15. Prior to the first occupation of the development, details of removable bollards or other street 
furniture to be introduced at the entry/access points of the internal streets within the 
development, shall be submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority

Reason: In the interests of pedestrian and Highway Safety in accordance with Policy 10 of the 
Aligned Core Strategies.

16. Notwithstanding the approved details, prior to the first occupation of the development, secure 
cycle parking shall be made available for use, updated details of which shall have first been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: [To ensure adequate cycle parking for the development in accordance with Policy 
TR1 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 
(2020).

5

Page 100



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

17. Prior to the first occupation of the development verification that the energy and sustainable 
measures included within the
approved Energy Statement by Amber Management and Engineering Services Ltd. 
(Document Ref: Couchperrywilkes 200285, April 2021) have been implemented and are fully 
operational shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure that the identified sustainable design features are incorporated into 
the approved development, in the interests of ensuring the energy efficient and low carbon 
sustainable development of the site and in accordance with Policy CC1 of the Land and 
Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020)  and Policy 1 of the 
Aligned Core Strategies.

18. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted flood risk assessment 
(ref: Conygar Nottingham Ltd, The Island Quarter, Nottingham , Phase 2, Flood Risk 
Assessment, IQ2-BWB-ZZ-XX-YE-0001_FRA, BWB, April 2021) and the following mitigation 
measures it details:

- Finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 25.57 metres above Ordnance Datum (AOD) 
as stated within section 4.3 of the FRA.

These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation of the development 
and subsequently in accordance with the scheme's timing/phasing arrangements. The 
measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout the
lifetime of the development.

Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants in 
accordance with Policy CC3 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - 
Local Plan Part 2 (2020)

19. The outdoor terrace areas on the 6th and 9th floors should not be used between the hours of 
11pm and 8am.

Reason: To avoid noise nuisance for occupants and neighbouring properties in accordance 
with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategies and Policies DE1 and IN2 of the Land and 
Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

20. No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground is permitted other than with the written 
consent of the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put at unacceptable 
risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution caused by mobilised 
contaminants in line with paragraph 109 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Policy CC3 of the Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - 
Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

6

Regulatory/ongoing conditions
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters)

Page 101



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

21. Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be permitted other 
than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may be given for 
those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant unacceptable 
risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.

Reason: To ensure the protection of controlled waters in accordance with Policy CC3 of the 
Land and Planning Policies Development Plan Document - Local Plan Part 2 (2020) 

22. Bin collection should be restricted to Evelyn Street and shall not take place on Manvers Street.

Reason:In the interests of Highway Safety in accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core 
Strategies.

23.

Standard condition- scope of permission

S1. Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried 
out in complete accordance with the details described in the forms, drawings and other 
documents comprising the application as validated by the council on 25 May 2021.

Reason: To determine the scope of this permission.

Informatives

 1. This permission is valid only for the purposes of Part III of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. It does not remove the need to obtain any other consents that may be necessary, nor does it 
imply that such other consents will necessarily be forthcoming. It does not override any restrictions 
contained in the deeds to the property or the rights of neighbours. You are advised to check what 
other restrictions there are and what other consents may be needed, for example from the 
landowner, statutory bodies and neighbours.  This permission is not an approval under the Building 
Regulations.

 2. Environment Agency

From a combustion perspective:
New development within 400 metres of an installation (London Road Heat Station, EPR/AP3730LT) 
could result in impacts including the nearby community being exposed to atmospheric emissions. 
The severity of these impacts will depend on the prevailing meteorological conditions and the 
magnitude of the emissions. Planning policy requirements (paragraph 182 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework, NPPF) state that new development should integrate effectively with existing 
businesses and not place unreasonable restrictions upon them. Where the operation of an existing 
installation could have significant adverse effects on new development (including changes of use), 
the applicant should be required to provide suitable mitigation for these effects. Mitigation can be 
provided through the design of the new development to minimise exposure to and/or through 
financial contributions to the operator of the facility to support measures that minimise impacts. 
Environmental Permitting Regulations require operators to demonstrate that they have taken all 
reasonable precautions to mitigate impacts of their operations. This is unlikely to eliminate all 
emissions and there is likely to be residual impacts. In some cases, these residual impacts may 
cause local residents concern. There are limits to the measures that the operator can take to 
prevent impacts to residents. Consequently, it is important that planning decisions take full account 
of paragraph 182 of the NPPF. When a new development is built near to an existing installation this 
does not automatically trigger a review of the permit. In terms of atmospheric emissions, London 

7

Page 102



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

Road Heat Station demonstrates a good level of permit compliance and there is no obvious reason 
that both the installation and new development cannot harmoniously co-exist 

From a pharmeceuticals perspective:
A small scale pharmaceuticals production plant is located on Mabel Street, permitted under the 
Environmental Permitting Regulations , ref. EPR/RP3137SF. The site has very little environmental 
impacts and do not generate any noise or odour complaints. The site is located to the south west of 
the development but the development should not have an impact on the plant as it is separated by 
the canal, main road and railway lines. 

From a radioactive substances point of view:
There are a number of small radioactive substances users near to the proposed development, 
controlled under environmental permits. Due to the low external risk and small scale of the 
radioactivity used in these locations, we believe that these sites would not impact or be impacted by 
the proposed development. 

From a waste perspective
The area of the proposed development lies 200-250m north of the Eastcroft Energy from Waste 
Facility. This operation holds an  Environmental permit issued by the Environment Agency (Permit 
Ref EP3034SN) allowing it to incinerate up to 200,000T a year of domestic, commercial and 
industrial waste currently. Subject to a number of preoperational conditions the site annual capacity 
may increase to 300,000T when the 3rd End 5 line is installed. As with any facility managing waste 
the incineration site has the potential for amenity impacts on the surrounding premises. The 
number of amenity complaints received by the Environment Agency in recent years alleging impact 
from this operation is very low, and the operator has demonstrated a good level of compliance. The 
incinerator facility supplies steam to the nearby Enviroenergy plant which in turn provides heat for 
the district heating scheme. We would encourage the developer to investigate this source of energy 
for their development if they haven't already done so.

 3. Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs)
Prior to occupation of the consented development it will be necessary to amend the Traffic 
Regulation Orders on Manvers Street and Evelyn Street to take account of the development. This is 
a separate legal process and the Order can be made on behalf of the developer by Nottingham City 
Council at the applicant's expense. It is strongly recommended that it is made at the earliest 
opportunity to allow time for the process to be completed. Please contact Highways Network 
Management on 0115 876 5293 to instigate the process. For TRO advice and further information, 
the applicant is advised to contact Scott Harrison on 0115 876 5245.

Street Lighting
The alterations to the highway layout on Manvers Street will result in the PFI maintained street 
lighting being affected. It will be necessary to ensure that the street lighting that is reintroduced on 
Manvers Street as part of the highway upgrade is appropriate in its design to be maintained by the 
PFI. Full details of the proposed street lighting to Manvers Street should be submitted for approval 
as part of the Section 278 Agreement.

Highway licences
The Highways Network Management team at Loxley House must be notified regarding when the 
works will be carried out as disturbance to the highway will be occurring and licences may be 
required. Please contact them on 0115 876 5238. All costs shall be borne by the applicant.

Section 278 Agreement - highway works
Planning consent is not consent to work on the highway. To carry out off-site works associated with 
the planning consent, approval must first be obtained from the Local Highway Authority. Approval 
will take the form of a Section 278 Agreement and you should contact Highways Network 
Management on 0115 876 5293 to instigate the process. It is strongly recommended that you make 

8

Page 103



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

contact at the earliest opportunity to allow time for the process to be completed as you will not be 
permitted to work on the Highway before it is complete. All associated costs will be borne by the 
developer. We reserve the right to charge commuted sums in respect of ongoing maintenance 
where the item in question is above and beyond what is required for the safe and satisfactory 
functioning of the highway.

Section 38 Agreement - road adoption
The alterations to The Manvers Street/City Link junction highway layout will result in new areas of 
adopted highway being created. In order for the new sections of highway to become adopted and 
maintained by Nottingham City Council as Local Highway Authority the developer will need to enter 
into a legal Agreement with the Authority under Section 38 of the Highways Act of 1980. A Section 
38 Agreement can take some time to complete therefore it is recommended that the developer 
make contact with the Highway Authority as early as possible. At this stage, developers will be 
asked to provide the Local Highway Authority with full technical details for the construction of the 
highway and the appropriate fees. At the time approval is given to the technical details, the 
developers are invited to enter into a Section 38 Agreement. Please contact Highways Network 
Management on 0115 876 5293 in the first instance. To note a combined Section 278/38 
Agreement will be accepted which will reduce the complexity/cost of the Agreements.

Commuted sums
The Highway Authority reserve the right to charge commuted sums in respect of ongoing 
maintenance where the item in question is above and beyond what is required for the safe and 
satisfactory functioning of the highway. For this scheme this purports mainly to the use of modular 
paving in the public realm. For further information regarding the collection of commuted sums the 
applicant should contact Network Management on 0115 876 5293.

Adopted Highway Extents
The Highway Authority believe it is the intention of the developer for City Link to remain private. The 
Highway Authority request that a highway adoption plan is submitted by the developer at their 
earliest opportunity to confirm this intention and the road status proposals for the rest of the 
development site.

 4. Environmental Health

Commercial Noise
The environmental noise assessment must be suitable and sufficient and must be undertaken with 
regard to BS 7445: 2003 Description and Measurement of Environmental Noise. The environmental 
noise assessment must include details of the type and model of all mechanical services plant or 
equipment (including any air handling plant) together with its location, acoustic specification; 
mitigation measures and
relevant calculations to support conclusions.

The mechanical services plant or equipment (including any air handling plant), including any 
mitigation measures, must be maintained, serviced and operated in accordance with 
manufacturer's recommendations while the development continues to be occupied.

Control of Odour & Provision of Adequate Ventilation
The design of the approved scheme for the ventilation and means of discharging fumes shall have 
regard to the Guidance on the Control of Odour & Noise from Commercial Kitchen Exhaust 
Systems (EMAQ, 2018). The approved scheme shall be designed to provide for ventilation and 
means of discharging and dispersing fumes, the prevention of odour nuisance and the minimisation 
of the risk of ducting fires. The approved scheme must be maintained, serviced and operated in 
accordance with manufacturer's recommendations and other authoritative guidance while the 
development continues to be occupied.

9

Page 104



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

Fire safety advice for restaurants, fast food outlets and take away shops may be obtained from 
Nottinghamshire Fire & Rescue Service (email: fireprotectionsouth@notts-fire.gov.uk ). (NB 
Cheshire Fire & Rescue Servicehave useful advice on their website See -
http://www.cheshirefire.gov.uk/business-safety/fire-safety-guidance/restaurantsfast-
food-outlets-and-take-away-shops ).

The approved scheme must be kept under review by the operator and alterations or improvements 
may be required to prevent odour nuisance where any subsequent significant change to the 
operation of the development is proposed which may affect the control of odour or risk of fire:
Significant changes to the operation of the development which may affect the control of odour 
include:
i. The intensification of use of the kitchen,
ii. The nature of the food prepared, served or cooked on site
iii. The method of preparation and cooking of the food served or cooked on site
iv. The extension of operating times
It is the duty of the operator to design, install and maintain the ventilation system to prevent an 
odour nuisance. Adequate measures must be taken to prevent nuisance due to odours passing 
through windows, floors or walls etc. into adjoining properties.

Adequate Ventilation
The operator of any cooking appliance must ensure that there is effective and suitable ventilation in 
order to enable the effective combustion of fuel and the removal of the products of combustion. The 
specification of a ventilation system shall be determined on the basis of a risk assessment, taking 
account of factors such as the cooking arrangements taking place and the need to replace 
extracted air.
The ventilation system must be designed, installed and maintained in accordance with 
manufacturer's instructions. Guidance on the design specifications of kitchen ventilation systems is 
contained within "DW/172" produced by the Building and Engineering Services Association 
(formerly the Heating and Ventilating Contractors Association). Supporting guidance has been 
published by the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) within Catering Information Sheet 10 
(CAIS10), available at http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/cais10.pdf . Gas appliances are subject to 
specific legislation and standards. Newly installed gas appliances should be fitted with an interlock 
to shut the gas supply off in the event of a failure to the ventilation system. Further guidance on gas 
safety in catering is available within Catering Information Sheet 23 (CAIS23), available at 
http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/cais23.pdf . The onus for ensuring that the system does not cause 
odour nuisance or present a risk of fire rests with the operator. If the system is found to be causing 
an odour nuisance or a risk of fire at any point, then suitable modification works will be required to 
be carried out and an enforcement notice may be served.

Verification that the approved sound insulation scheme has been implemented shall include;
- The specification and acoustic data sheets for glazed areas of the development and any 
complementary acoustic ventilation scheme
- example photographs of the products eg glazing and ventilation units in situ (prior to identifying 
labels being removed)-  photographs, drawings (and where applicable) product data sheets of any 
other sound insulation measures eg floor joists, floating floors, independent acoustic ceilings or 
walls etc

The approved sound insulation scheme must be maintained &, in the case of mechanical 
ventilation, must be maintained, serviced and operated in accordance with manufacturer's 
recommendations.

Contaminated Land, Ground Gas & Groundwater
The Remediation Strategy (including its component elements) must be undertaken and 
implemented in accordance with the Environment Agency's Land Contamination Risk Management 
guidance published at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/land-contamination-

10

Page 105



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

riskmanagement- lcrm, CIRIA C735 Good Practice on the Testing & Verification of Protection 
Systems for Buildings Against Hazardous Ground Gases (2014) and other authoritative guidance. 
The Remediation Strategy must also provide
details of:
-  'Cut and fill' operations on site
-  How trees retained on site will be dealt with
-  How gas precautions including any radon gas precautions will be verified
-  How compliance with the requirements of the Nottingham City Council - Guidance on Cover 
Layers & Verification Testing 2019 will be achieved
-  Any asbestos surveys carried out, the method statement for removal of asbestos and subsequent 
validation of air and soil following asbestos removal and demolition.

Following completion of the development, no construction work, landscaping or other activity must 
be undertaken which may compromise the remediation measures implemented to deal with ground, 
groundwater and ground gas contamination of the site.
Any ground gas protection measures included in the original development are designed for the 
buildings as originally constructed to protect against possible dangers to public health and safety 
arising from any accumulation of methane, carbon dioxide or other gas and to ensure that the site 
can be developed and used without health or safety risks to the occupiers of the development 
and/or
adjoining occupiers. These protection measures may be compromised by any future extension of 
the footprint of the original building or new building structures within the curtilage of the site 
including the erection of a garage, shed, conservatory or porch or similar structure. Advice from the 
Council's Environmental Health Team regarding appropriate gas protection measures must be 
sought should future extension of the footprint of the original building or new building structures 
within the curtilage of the site be proposed (regardless
of whether the proposed construction requires planning permission or building regulation approval).

It is a requirement of current Building Regulations that basic radon protection measures are 
installed in all new constructions, extensions conversions & refurbishments on sites which are 
Radon Class 3 or 4 and full radon protection measure are installed on site which are Radon Class 5 
or higher. Advice from the Council's Environmental Health Team regarding appropriate gas 
protection measures must be sought where there are both radon issues and ground gas issues 
present. The responsibility and subsequent liability for safe development and secure occupancy of 
the site rests with the developer and/or the landowner. The developer is required to institute a 
thorough investigation and assessment of the ground conditions, nature and degree of 
contamination on the site to ensure that actual or potential risks to public health and safety can be 
overcome by appropriate remedial, preventive or precautionary measures. The developer shall 
provide at his own expense such evidence as is required to indicate clearly that the risks 
associated with ground, groundwater and ground gas contamination of the site has been addressed 
satisfactorily.

 5. The reason for this decision, and a summary of the policies the local planning authority has had 
regard to are set out in the committee report, enclosed herewith and forming part of this decision.

Where a condition specified in this decision notice requires any further details to be submitted for 
approval, please note that an application fee will be payable at the time such details are submitted 
to the City Council. A form is available from the City Council for this purpose.

Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet.

11

Page 106



- 12 -

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

RIGHTS OF APPEAL
Application No: 21/01032/PFUL3 (PP-09539088 200001412700)

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to impose conditions on the grant of 
permission for the proposed development, then he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under 
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Any appeal must be submitted within six months of the date of this notice.  You can obtain an appeal 
form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, Temple 
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN.  Phone: 0117 372 6372.  Appeal forms 
can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at http://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm.  Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an 
online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You can find the service 
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs.

The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeals area of the 
Planning Portal).  This may include a copy of the original planning application form and relevant 
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, together with the 
completed appeal form and information you submit to the Planning Inspectorate.  Please ensure that 
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you that you are happy will 
be made available to others in this way.  If you supply personal information belonging to a third party 
please ensure you have their permission to do so.  More detailed information about data protection 
and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but will not normally 
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons 
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it imposed.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the City 
Council based its decision on a direction given by him.

PURCHASE NOTICES

If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants it 
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial 
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the 
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in 
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

COMPENSATION

In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation 
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The 
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990.
  

STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING

Nottingham City Council has a statutory responsibility for agreeing and registering addresses. If the 
development will create one or more new addresses or streets (for example a new build or 
conversion) please contact address.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk as soon as possible, 

Page 107



- 13 -

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

quoting your planning application reference. Any addresses assigned outside of this process will 
not be officially recognised and may result in difficulties with service delivery.

Page 108



 
 
Wards Affected: Berridge Item No:  
 

Planning Committee 
22 September 2021 

 
 
Report of Director of Planning and Regeneration 
 
Val Roberts House , 25 Gregory Boulevard 
 
1 Summary 
 
Application No: 21/00726/PFUL3 for planning permission 

 
Application by: Allan Joyce Architects Ltd on behalf of Framework Housing 

Association 
 

Proposal: Three storey building to provide 6 no. 1 bedroom self-contained 
flats. 

 
The application is brought to Committee because it has generated significant public 
interest contrary to the officer recommendation. 
 
To meet the Council's Performance Targets this application should have been determined 
by 26th May 2021 
 
 
2 Recommendation 
 
2.1 To GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the indicative conditions 

substantially in the form of those listed in the draft decision notice at the end of this 
report. 
 
Power to determine the final details of the conditions of planning permission to be 
delegated to the Director of Planning and Regeneration. 
 

3 Background 
 
3.1 Val Roberts House is a three storey, flat roofed building on the north side of 

Gregory Boulevard, occupied by Framework Housing Association. There is a car 
park on the north side of the building which can be accessed from both Premier and 
Leslie Roads, which run alongside the building. The buildings on the north side of 
Gregory Boulevard are generally in office use whilst the roads which run north into 
Forest Fields are residential. The specific site of the proposal is a section of the car 
park adjacent to Premier Road and to number 1 Premier Road to its north. 

 
4 Details of the proposal 
 
4.1 Planning permission is sought for a three storey, pitched roof building providing six 

one-bed flats. The applicant, Framework Housing Association, have confirmed their 
belief that the proposed flats would be occupied within Use Class C3 of the Use 
Classes Order (that is, use as a dwellinghouse by a single person or by people 
forming a single household). Framework note that “people living in these flats will 
have their own tenancies. They will live independently with a low level of visiting 

Page 109

Agenda Item 4f



 
support. This won’t be daily support but will amount to between zero and three 
hours of support per person per week. There is no communal space, no on-site 
staffing and no care will be provided”. 
  

4.2 The proposed building would be three storeys with a gabled roof and three storey 
bays, of red brick stone and dentil brickwork detailing. The building and its entrance 
would face Premier Road where the boundary would be a low brick wall with 
railings and gate piers. The one bed flats would be arranged two on each floor, with 
living rooms at the front facing Premier Road and bedrooms and bathrooms at the 
rear.  
 

5 Consultations and observations of other officers 
 

Adjoining occupiers consulted: 
 
Adjoining occupiers on Premier Road, Leslie Road and Gregory Boulevard were 
notified of the application on 27.04.2021. Following the receipt of revised plans and 
additional information regarding the proposed use, residents were renotified on 
09.08.2021, with the number of letters sent being increased to include the whole of 
Premier Road. 
 
Representations have been received from the occupiers of twelve properties on 
Premier Road, objecting to the proposal for the following reasons: 
 
- Proposal would add to the high number of single person accommodation on 

Premier Road, of which there are already too many, affecting the character. 
 

- Objectors state that up to 50% of Premier Rd is made up of HMOs, rented 
accommodation, student accommodation or supported schemes. Objectors 
state that of the 38 houses on Premier Road, there are now 19 which are rented 
as houses as either official (registered) as HMOs or unofficial houses in multiple 
occupation. 

 
- Increasing imbalance between family housing and rented / student 

accommodation has the potential to destroy the existing successfully integrated 
community. Selective licensing and refusal of planning permission for changes 
from family housing to flats in order to maintain the area for family housing help 
to keep a clean neighbourhood and reduce the level of high occupancy 
turnover. 

 
- Residents do not consider the proposed accommodation to be Class C3. As 

Framework are a housing association and there is no accommodation or space 
for couples, children, cars or visitors, the use must be that of a house in multiple 
occupation. 

 
- Objectors argue that the proposal is not for C3 dwellings, and so the application 

should be considered in light of Policy HO4 of the Local Plan (Specialist and 
Adaptable Housing). 

 
- Community education and support is a crucial factor in formerly homeless 

people sustaining their tenancies. They need to feel that they are part of 
community, have a stake in that community and can develop their lives as 
home-full people do, via community events, cultivating a garden, welcoming 
people to their homes. This scheme offers no capacity for this, being in a car 

Page 110



 
park and opposite another car park. The residents will be forced on to each 
other's company and those of still homeless companions instead of developing 
their own networks. 

 
- There are concerns regarding the ‘Housing First Model’ on Frameworks’ website 

and the form of funding being accessed by Framework in relation to the 
proposed development. 

 
- Development will make it even harder for the existing family homes on the street 

to remain as such, contrary to Local Plan aims of retaining family houses. 
Proposal will reduce the desirability of the street for families who want to rent or 
own in the area. 

 
- Impact on adjacent property 1 Premier Road in terms of loss of light. The roof 

will block daylight and specifically sunlight into the two third floor rooms one of 1 
Premier Road; these are the only windows into the rooms. The new building will 
block light to windows in the side elevation of 1 Premier Road. 

 
- Presence of habitable room windows on the rear elevation of the new building 

will lead to loss of privacy and noise nuisance for 1 Premier Road. 
 

- Development will lead to on-street parking problems. 
 
- The applicants, Framework, have not consulted or engaged with the local 

community prior to submitting the planning application. Framework removed two 
mature cherry trees from the car park which were in the position of the proposed 
building. 

 
Ward Councillor Quddoos objects to the proposal on the grounds that that this 
development will be the ‘tipping point’ for Premier Road to become primarily one of 
multiple occupancy use, which will impact the lives of the longstanding residents. 

 
Additional consultation letters sent to: 
 
Pollution Control: no objection. 
 
Highways: no objection. 

 
 
6 Relevant policies and guidance 
 

National Planning Policy Framework (2019): 
 

The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development 
and that applications for sustainable development should be approved where 
possible. Paragraph 126 notes that the creation of high quality buildings and places 
is fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve, and 
that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development. 
 
Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should 
ensure that developments: 
 
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short 
term but over the lifetime of the development; 

Page 111



 
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 
effective landscaping; 
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging 
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities); 
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 
places to live, work and visit; 
e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate 
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and 
support local facilities and transport networks; and 
f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health 
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users and 
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life 
or community cohesion and resilience. 

 
Aligned Core Strategies (2014): 
 
Policy 1 - Climate Change 
Policy 8 - Housing Size, Mix and Choice 
Policy 10 - Design and Enhancing Local Identity 
 
Local Plan Part 2 - Land and Planning Policies (January 2020) 

 
Policy CC1 - Sustainable Design and Construction 
Policy HO1 - Housing Mix 
Policy HO4: Specialist and Adaptable Housing 
Policy DE1 - Building Design and Use 
Policy DE2 - Context and Place Making 
 

 
7. Appraisal of proposed development 
 
 Main Issues 

 
(i) Principle of the Development. 
(ii) Design and Impact on the Streetscene. 
(iii) Impact on Residential Amenity. 

  
 Issue (i) Principle of the Development (ACS Policy 8 and LAPP Policies HO1 
and HO4) 
 

7.1 The acceptability of the principle of this proposal lies primarily with the interpretation 
of whether the proposed flats are ‘dwellinghouses’ falling within Use Class C3 and 
subject to Policy HO1) or are a different form of residential accommodation which 
would lie outside Class C3 and generally be described as a ‘hostel’ (which is a ‘sui 
generis’ use) and subject to Policy HO4. 

 
7.2 The applicants have confirmed their belief that the flats would be occupied within 

Use Class C3 of the Use Classes Order (that is, use as a dwellinghouse by a single 
person). They point to individual tenancies, independent living and a low level of 
support. It is noted that Class C3 allows for a level of support to be provided for 
occupiers of a house or flat (for example, social care provided to allow an elderly 
person to live in their own home). The proposed units comply with the Nationally 

Page 112



 
Described Space Standards and are physically independent from the main site. 
Access to the flats is from Premier Road and there is no reason why the flats could 
not be occupied as a ‘stand-alone’ unit of accommodation. 

 
7.3 A recent Housing Market Assessment has confirmed the need for more housing 

types, of all tenures, in almost all wards in Nottingham; this includes 
affordable/social one bedroom self-contained homes, the need for which is 
presented in both the council’s Housing Strategy and the cities Homelessness 
Prevention and Rough Sleeping Strategy. Supporting people into independent, 
settled accommodation is a key feature of the strategic approach to rough sleeping 
and single homelessness, providing a transition from supported accommodation to 
fully independent living. An identified need exists for one bedroom self-contained 
residential accommodation within Class C3, particularly of a type which Registered 
providers such as the applicant do provide to help the council deliver and meet 
local need. If the flats are considered to be within Class C3, the proposal itself is 
considered to comply with Policy HO1 and the council’s Housing Strategy and 
therefore acceptable in principle. 

 
7.4 Part of the objectors’ argument is that the flats are not within Class C3. The flats are 

being built within the car park of the main office of a Registered Provider whose 
main function is to tackle homelessness / rough sleeping. A high level of support 
will be available to tenants due to the location of the flats. The flats would be 
‘specialist housing’ and should therefore be considered in the light of Policy HO4. 
Policy HO4 allows for the provision of such housing provided that (among other 
things) the amenity of existing local residents would not be compromised and the 
use would not result in over-concentration of similar uses in any one area leading to 
a material change in character. Berridge Ward is known to have high levels of 
hostels (understood by Councillor Quddoos to be 21, with only Hyson Green & 
Arboretum Ward having higher). Residents say that 50% or properties in Premier 
Road are already in multiple occupancy or other non-family housing use. The 
provision of a further six units of accommodation occupied by short-term tenants 
and having the characteristics of supported or hostel accommodation would lead to 
a detrimental and material change in character of the area. If the flats are 
considered to be outside Class C3, the proposal is considered to be contrary to 
Policy HO4 and therefore unacceptable in principle. 

 
7.5 Notwithstanding these concerns, it is considered that there is no basis to consider 

the application otherwise than as applied for. Permission is sought for C3 use so it 
would be granted on this basis, and any alternative use, such as a hostel, would 
require separate planning permission. 

 
7.6 The objectors’ comments regarding the applicants’ lack of engagement with 

residents prior to submitting the application are noted, as are comments that the 
cherry trees were removed to make way for the development. There has also been 
discussion regarding the type of funding the applicants are receiving for this 
scheme. Whilst engagement with residents is advisable and encouraged, these 
matters do not in themselves impact on the acceptability of the scheme in planning 
terms. 

 
 Issue (ii) Design and Impact on the Streetscene (ACS Policy 10 and LAPP 

Policies DE1 and DE2) 
 
7.6 The proposed building has been through a number of iterations and is now 

considered to be visually acceptable. The scale of the building, the bays and 
Page 113



 
window proportions reflect the existing houses on Premier Road without resorting to 
pastiche. Materials (red brick and slate) and detailing (brick and stone) are 
appropriate. A low wall, railings and gate piers is an acceptable treatment for the 
front boundary. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with ACS Policy 10 
and LAPP Policies DE1 and DE2. 

 
Issue (iii) Impact on Residential Amenity (ACS Policy 10 and LAPP Policies DE1 
and DE2) 

 
7.7 The relationship between the proposed building and the adjacent property number 

1 Premier Road is now considered to be acceptable. The proposed building is less 
deep than the neighbouring houses and therefore has a lower roof ridge as well as 
lower eaves. Whilst it is accepted that the new building would have some impact on 
1 Premier Road, particularly on the facing third floor windows, the lower ridge and 
relative shallowness of the building means that this impact is not considered 
sufficient to warrant a refusal, particularly as this is a relationship repeated 
elsewhere on Premier Road. The layout of the flats has been revised so that the 
rear windows are now bedrooms and windows in the north (side) elevation have 
been omitted. Having bedroom windows in a rear elevation of a neighbouring 
property is an acceptable and common relationship. It is not considered that the 
proposed flats would lead to noise nuisance any more than other residential 
properties. The proposal would lead to the loss of 8 parking spaces from a total of 
28 in the existing car park for Val Roberts House. It is noted that this is a 
sustainable travel location close to bus stops and to the tram network and Forest 
park and ride site. There is no Highway objection and a joint Travel Plan for both 
Val Roberts House and the proposed flats can help to ensure more sustainable 
travel arrangements for the site as a whole. The proposal is therefore considered to 
comply with ACS Policy 10 and LAPP Policies DE1 and DE2. 

 
8. Sustainability / Biodiversity 
 

The scheme includes the use of sustainable drainage. Whilst no specific features 
have been highlighted in the planning application, the building would need to 
incorporate appropriate energy/water conservation measures in order to comply 
with current Building Regulations. It is considered that this is sufficient to satisfy the 
requirements of Policy 1 of the Aligned Core Strategies and Policy CC1 of the 
Nottingham Local Plan. 

 
9 Financial Implications 
 

None. 
 

10 Legal Implications 
 
The issues raised in this report are primarily ones of planning judgement. Should 
legal considerations arise these will be addressed at the meeting. 
 

11 Equality and Diversity Implications 
 
None. 
 

12 Risk Management Issues 
 
None. 

Page 114



 
 

13 Strategic Priorities 
 
Neighbourhood Nottingham: Providing a high quality and sustainable development. 
 

14 Crime and Disorder Act implications 
 
None. 
 

15 Value for money 
 
None. 
 

16 List of background papers other than published works or those disclosing 
confidential or exempt information 
 
1. Application No: 21/00726/PFUL3 - link to online case file: 
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QQTKPFLYKIG00 
 

17 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
Nottingham Local Plan Part 2 (January 2020) 
Aligned Core Strategies (September 2014) 
NPPF (2019) 
 

Contact Officer:  
Mr Phil Shaw, Case Officer, Development Management.  
Email: philip.shaw@nottinghamcity.gov.uk.      Telephone: 0115 8764076

Page 115

http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QQTKPFLYKIG00
http://publicaccess.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QQTKPFLYKIG00


Key
°0 0.015 0.03 km

NOMAD printed map

© Crown copyright and database right 2021. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317. Aerial photography © Getmapping Plc and Bluesky International Limited 2019.
NOMAD print generated by a NOMAD user on 14/09/2021. THIS MAP IS UNSUITABLE FOR PUBLICATION: contact gi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk for high quality maps.

City Boundary No description provided
Description

Copyright Nottingham City Council, © Crown Copyright and database right 2020. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317.

Page 116



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

My Ref: 21/00726/PFUL3 (PP-09675398)

Your Ref:

Contact: Mr Phil Shaw

Email: development.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Allan Joyce Architects Ltd
16-20 Bath Street
Nottingham
NG1 1DF
United Kingdom

Development Management
City Planning
Loxley House
Station Street
Nottingham
NG2 3NG

Tel: 0115 8764447
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Date of decision: 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION

Application No: 21/00726/PFUL3 (PP-09675398)
Application by: Framework Housing Association
Location: Val Roberts House , 25 Gregory Boulevard, Nottingham
Proposal: Three storey building to provide 6 no. 1 bedroom self-contained flats.

Nottingham City Council as Local Planning Authority hereby GRANTS PLANNING PERMISSION 
for the development described in the above application subject to the following conditions:-

 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development shall not be commenced until details of the following have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

a) the external materials of the new building;
b) the design, appearance and materials of the means of enclosure of the site;
c) the design, appearance and materials of the bin and cycle stores.

The development shall be acarried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is acceptable in accordance with 
Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategies and Policies DE1 and DE2 of the Local Plan.

3. The development shall not be commenced until details of a Travel Plan for both the existing 
Val Roberts House and the new residential development have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan should detail promotion of 

1

Time limit

Pre-commencement conditions
(The conditions in this section require further matters to be submitted to the local planning authority 
for approval before starting work)

Page 117



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

sustainable transport measures and include promotional material for cycling, walking and 
public transport use.

No dwelling shall be occupied until the Travel Plan has been implemented.

Reason: In the interests of sustainable transport and the living conditions of nearby residents 
in accordance with Policies 1 and 10 of the Aligned Core Strategies and Policies CC1 and 
DE1 of the Local Plan.

4. A landscaping and planting scheme shall be provided for the development. In particular:

a) no dwelling shall be occupied until a detailed landscaping scheme indicating the type, 
height, species and location of all new trees and shrubs, comprising native species and plants 
attractive to pollinators, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority;
b) the approved landscaping scheme shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
seasons following the occupation of the dwellings or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; and
c) any trees or plants which die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased 
within a period of five years shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar 
size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory and in the interests 
of biodiversity in accordance with Policies 10 and 17 of the Aligned Core Strategies and 
Policies DE1, DE2 and EN6 of the Local Plan.

There are no conditions in this section.

Standard condition- scope of permission

S1. Except as may be modified by the conditions listed above, the development shall be carried 
out in complete accordance with the details described in the following drawings/documents:
Elevations reference 3827-06 revision D, received 8 September 2021
Planning Layout reference 3827-04 revision E, received 8 September 2021

Reason: To determine the scope of this permission.

Informatives

 1. This permission is valid only for the purposes of Part III of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. It does not remove the need to obtain any other consents that may be necessary, nor does it 
imply that such other consents will necessarily be forthcoming. It does not override any restrictions 
contained in the deeds to the property or the rights of neighbours. You are advised to check what 
other restrictions there are and what other consents may be needed, for example from the 
landowner, statutory bodies and neighbours.  This permission is not an approval under the Building 
Regulations.

2

Pre-occupation conditions
(The conditions in this section must be complied with before the development is occupied)

Regulatory/ongoing conditions
(Conditions relating to the subsequent use of the development and other regulatory matters)

Page 118



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

 2. The reason for this decision, and a summary of the policies the local planning authority has had 
regard to are set out in the committee report, enclosed herewith and forming part of this decision.

 3. Construction & Demolition

Proposed Method of Demolition
Where the method of proposed demolition includes the use of a mobile crusher on site the 
applicant must notify the Nottingham City Council's Environmental Health Team (email: 
pollution.control@nottinghamcity.gov.uk) before crushing operations commence on site, so it may 
be inspected to ensure it is operating correctly under the Permit conditions imposed by the Pollution 
and Prevention and Control Act 1999. 

Noise Control: Hours of Work and Equipment
The acceptable hours for demolition or construction work are detailed below; -

Monday to Friday: 0730-1800 (noisy operations restricted to 0800-1800)
Saturday: 0830-1700 (noisy operations restricted to 0900-1300)
Sunday: at no time
Bank Holidays: at no time

Work outside these hours may be acceptable in exceptional circumstances but must be agreed with 
Nottingham City Council's Environmental Health Team (Tel: 0115 9152020; email: 
pollution.control@nottinghamcity.gov.uk)

Equipment
All equipment shall be properly maintained, serviced and operated in accordance with the 
manufacturer's recommendations and with appropriate noise suppression / silencers.

Dust/Grit and Other Fugitive Emissions 
Construction and demolition work invariably generates grit and dust, which can be carried off-site 
and cause a Statutory Nuisance, and have a detrimental effect on local air quality.

Contractors are expected to use appropriate methods to minimise fugitive emissions, reduce the 
likelihood of justified complaint and avoid costly restriction and development delays.
Appropriate measures include;-

Flexible plastic sheeting
Water sprays /damping down of spoil and demolition waste
Wheel washing.
Periodic road cleaning.

 4. Sound Insulation and Building Regulations
The resistance to the passage of sound in buildings must comply with Approved Document E of the 
building regulations which sets out standards for the resistance to airborne sound and impact 
sound between and within dwellings. Approved Documents E covers:

- Separating walls, floors & associated flanking transmissions for new buildings
- Internal walls, floors & stairs for new buildings
- Dwelling houses & flats formed by a material change of use
- Rooms for residential purposes
- Common internal parts of buildings containing flats or rooms for residential purposes. 

Approved Document E requires pre-completion airborne sound and impact sound insulation testing 
in the following situations:

3

Page 119



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

i. Purpose built dwellings and flats
ii. Dwelling houses and flats formed by a material change of use
iii. Purposed built rooms for residential purposes
iv. Rooms for residential purposes formed by material change of use

unless design details approved by Robust Details Ltd are incorporated into the construction (see 
Annex E to Approved Document E) 

Approve Document E states that it is good practice to consider the layout of rooms in separate 
dwellings at the design stage to avoid placing noise sensitive rooms next to rooms in which noise is 
generated eg not situating living areas or kitchens above or next to bedrooms. This will reduce the 
likelihood of future complaints about impact noise. 

 5. Highways
1. Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) & mud on the road
The applicant should provide a CTMP. It is an offence under Section 148 and Section 151 of the 
Highways Act 1980 to deposit mud on the public highway and as such you should undertake every 
effort to prevent it occurring. If the development works will have any impact on the public highway, 
please contact Network Management on 0115 8765293 or email 
Highway.Management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk. All associated costs will be the responsibility of the 
developer.

2. Highway licences
The Highways Network Management team at Loxley House must be notified regarding when the 
works will be carried out as disturbance to the highway will be occurring and licences may be 
required. Please contact them on 0115 8765293. All costs shall be borne by the applicant.

3. Section 278 agreement - highway works
Planning consent is not consent to work on the highway. To carry out off-site works associated with 
the planning consent, approval must first be obtained from the Local Highway Authority. Approval 
will take the form of a Section 278 Agreement and you should contact Highways Network 
Management on 0115 8765293 to instigate the process. It is strongly recommended that you make 
contact at the earliest opportunity to allow time for the process to be completed as you will not be 
permitted to work on the Highway before it is complete. All associated costs will be borne by the 
developer. We reserve the right to charge commuted sums in respect of ongoing maintenance 
where the item in question is above and beyond what is required for the safe and satisfactory 
functioning of the highway. 

4. Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs)
Prior to occupation of the consented development, it may be necessary to amend and introduce 
Traffic Regulation Orders. This is a separate legal process and the Order can be made on behalf of 
the developer by Nottingham City Council at the applicant's expense. It is recommended that you 
make contact at the earliest opportunity to allow time for the process to be completed. Please 
contact Highways Network Management on 0115 876 5293 to instigate the process. For TRO 
advice and further information the applicant is advised to contact 
Traffic.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk or phone on 0115 8765245.

Where a condition specified in this decision notice requires any further details to be submitted for 
approval, please note that an application fee will be payable at the time such details are submitted 
to the City Council. A form is available from the City Council for this purpose.

4

Page 120



Continued…DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

Your attention is drawn to the rights of appeal set out on the attached sheet.

5

Page 121



- 6 -

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

RIGHTS OF APPEAL
Application No: 21/00726/PFUL3 (PP-09675398)

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the City Council to impose conditions on the grant of 
permission for the proposed development, then he or she can appeal to the Secretary of State under 
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Any appeal must be submitted within six months of the date of this notice.  You can obtain an appeal 
form from the Customer Support Unit, The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, Temple 
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN.  Phone: 0117 372 6372.  Appeal forms 
can also be downloaded from the Planning Inspectorate website at http://www.planning-
inspectorate.gov.uk/pins/index.htm.  Alternatively, the Planning Inspectorate have introduced an 
online appeals service which you can use to make your appeal online. You can find the service 
through the Appeals area of the Planning Portal - see www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs.

The Inspectorate will publish details of your appeal on the internet (on the Appeals area of the 
Planning Portal).  This may include a copy of the original planning application form and relevant 
supporting documents supplied to the local authority by you or your agent, together with the 
completed appeal form and information you submit to the Planning Inspectorate.  Please ensure that 
you only provide information, including personal information belonging to you that you are happy will 
be made available to others in this way.  If you supply personal information belonging to a third party 
please ensure you have their permission to do so.  More detailed information about data protection 
and privacy matters is available on the Planning Portal.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but will not normally 
be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if the City Council could not for legal reasons 
have granted permission or approved the proposals without the conditions it imposed.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the City 
Council based its decision on a direction given by him.

PURCHASE NOTICES

If either the City Council or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants it 
subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial 
use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the 
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. This procedure is set out in 
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

COMPENSATION

In certain limited circumstances, a claim may be made against the City Council for compensation 
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State. The 
circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990.
  

STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING

Nottingham City Council has a statutory responsibility for agreeing and registering addresses. If the 
development will create one or more new addresses or streets (for example a new build or 
conversion) please contact address.management@nottinghamcity.gov.uk as soon as possible, 

Page 122



- 7 -

DRAFT ONLY
Not for issue

quoting your planning application reference. Any addresses assigned outside of this process will 
not be officially recognised and may result in difficulties with service delivery.

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4a King Edward Court King Edward Street Nottingham
	Report of Director of Planning and Regeneration

	4b 3 Triumph Road Nottingham
	Report of Director of Planning and Regeneration

	4d 248-262  Huntingdon Street Nottingham NG1 3NB
	Report of Director of Planning and Regeneration

	4e The Island Quarter - Phase 2  Nottingham Evelyn Street  NG2 4LA
	4f Val Roberts House  25 Gregory Boulevard Nottingham NG7 6NX
	Report of Director of Planning and Regeneration




